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Note: The format of the Trust’s 
Annual Report for 2019-20 is 
in line with the revised Annual 
reporting guidance in view of the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic . 
As such this annual report does 
not include a Performance 
Analysis section, as has been the 
case in previous years .
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Welcome to our Annual Report and Accounts for 2019/20
Staff at East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust (ELHT) achieved some amazing things during a year 
in which the Trust began facing the biggest challenge the NHS has ever seen. The Covid-19 virus 
dominated the lives of all ELHT staff for the final quarter of this reporting period. 

We managed the continuous substantial 
demand for our services, whilst planning 
for a predicted significant increase in 
critically ill Covid-19 positive patients . 
These plans were then implemented to 
enable ELHT to provide Safe Personal 
and Effective Care to our patients . 

Perhaps the biggest achievement pre 
Covid-19 was the completion of our 
£15m Fairhurst Building at the Burnley 
General Teaching Hospital site . This 
new building has provided state of 
the art facilities for a number of our 
services such as Ophthalmology and 
Maxillofacial . On the ground floor, the 
easy access Outpatients Department 
provides a total of 21 consulting 
rooms and a dedicated blood room, 
an important specialist facility that the 
previous outpatient facilities did not 
have . The new Outpatients Department 
will be of huge benefit to staff and the 
58,000 patients who visit each year . 

Throughout the year, our staff 
continued to strive tirelessly to provide 
both the quality of care and the speed 
of access to treatment to which we 
aspire . We are confident that we have 
done both although the continued 
increase in patient numbers has at times 
made it difficult . We are determined to 
improve our performance to achieve the 
standards our patients expect . We are 
encouraged by the terrific results we 
achieve in the NHS Friends and Family 
test, with patients overwhelmingly 
recommending ELHT as a place to 
receive their care .

After achieving our best ever 
performance in the NHS Staff Survey for 
2018, we continued to do even better 
this year . The 2019 NHS Staff Survey 
was completed by a record 46 .9 per 
cent of employees (3,942 respondents 
in total) . This showed that staff at ELHT 
rate the organisation higher than ever 
in comparison to working environments 
at England’s other acute hospital and 
community trusts .

The latest results saw ELHT score 
higher than the national average for 9 
of the survey’s 11 key themes . These 
include health and wellbeing, quality 
of care, morale, quality of appraisals, 
safety culture, staff engagement and 
team working . Staff rated the Trust 
‘significantly above average’ for 93 of 
the survey’s 104 questions, and there 
were no ratings of ‘significantly worse’ 
in any area . From these results there is 
clear evidence that ELHT is among the 
best places to work in the NHS for staff 
morale, team working, safety culture 
and staff health and wellbeing .

The past 12 months have seen us 
continue to improve delivery of 
emergency and urgent care services . 
This delivery is fully integrated within 
the local health and care system and 
meets the needs of the new NHS Long 
Term Plan . Following the opening 
of new Ambulatory Emergency Care 
and Surgical Ambulatory Emergency 
Care units in the last period, we were 
delighted to receive funding to build a 
new £10 million Emergency Care 

Village at the Royal Blackburn Teaching 
Hospital . The approval of this further 
significant investment into purpose-built 
emergency care facilities is excellent 
news for patients, staff and the people 
in East Lancashire . The construction 
work for this project commenced in 
summer 2019 and currently remains 
on schedule to be completed in Winter 
2020/21 . 

ELHT continues to be fully engaged 
with the Integrated Care Partnerships 
which are playing a key role in how 
health and social care services are being 
transformed . More and more, ELHT 
works closely with our NHS and local 
authority partners to meet the needs 
of our local population with greater 
co-ordination between providers here 
in Pennine Lancashire and the wider 
Lancashire and South Cumbria region .

It is important to remember that even 
in a publicly funded service such as 
ours, charitable funding needs to play 
an important part in our activities . 
A separate report is available which 
details our charitable activities and we 
would like to thank all our supporters 
who fundraise for our official charity 
ELHT&Me in so many different ways .

To summarise, this year has seen 
unprecedented challenges as is the case 
for many NHS organisations . However, 
the Trust continues to learn, progress 
and achieve excellence because of 
our dedicated staff to whom we are 
indebted .

Professor Eileen Fairhurst, Chairman 
Mr Kevin McGee, Chief Executive Officer

Foreword
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Performance 
Overview
Introduction and background
East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust (ELHT) was established in 2003 and is a large integrated 
health care organisation providing acute secondary and community healthcare for the people  
of East Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen. 

Our population includes patients who 
live in several of the most socially 
deprived areas of England .

We aim to deliver high quality, high 
value care and contribute to a health 
gain for our community . Located in 
Lancashire in the heart of North West 
England, with Bolton and Manchester 
to the South, Preston to the West and 
the Pennines to the East we have a 
combined population of approximately 
530,000 . We employ over 8,000 staff, 
some of whom are internationally 
renowned and have won awards for 
their work and achievements .

We offer care across five hospital sites, 
and various community locations, 
using state-of-the-art facilities . In 
addition, our patients are also offered 
a range of specialist hospital services 
which are provided either by the Trust, 
neighbouring Trusts, with some being 
delivered in Manchester .

The majority of the Trust’s services 
are funded by NHS East Lancashire 
and Blackburn with Darwen Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS 
England . The Trust continues to work 
alongside our commissioners and local 
authorities to deliver the best possible 
care in the most appropriate locations 
for the people of East Lancashire .

Our absolute focus on patients as part 
of our vision ‘to be widely recognised for 
providing safe, personal and effective 
care’ has been demonstrated in the 
Trust’s continued progress and being 
rated ‘Good with areas of outstanding’ 
by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) .

The underlying performance position 
of the Trust has continued its upward 
path during 2019-20, with steady 
improvement in the four-hour treatment 
target measured in the Emergency 
Department . Further details of our 
performance against key national, local 
access and treatment priorities can be 
found later in this document .
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Performance 
Report
Chief Executive’s Statement

Staff at ELHT achieved some amazing things during a year in which the Trust began facing  
the biggest challenge the NHS has ever seen. The Covid-19 virus dominated the lives of all  
ELHT staff for the final quarter of this reporting period. 

The Trust reported a one per cent 
financial performance surplus for the 
2019-20 financial year, which is in line 
with the 2019-20 financial plan .

The Trust achieved the majority of its 
performance targets for the year, with 
the notable exception being the Accident 
and Emergency four hour standard . 

Our most obvious achievement was 
the completion of our £15m Fairhurst 
Building at the Burnley General Teaching 
Hospital site . This new building has 

provided state of the art facilities for 
our Outpatients, Ophthalmology and 
Maxillofacial services . 

However, it’s truly in times of 
adversity that you see teamwork and 
commitment shine through . Our staff 
and volunteers worked tirelessly to deal 
with the operational pressures that we 
experienced during the last financial  
year and the Trust remains committed  
to delivering safe, personal and effective 
care to every patient every time .
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Vision and values
Our vision is to be widely recognised for providing safe, personal and effective care.

We will do this by achieving our objectives to:
 � put safety and quality at the heart of everything we do

 � invest in and develop our workforce

 � work with key stakeholders to develop effective 
partnerships

 � encourage innovation and pathway reform and deliver 
best practice .

Our objectives are underpinned by our values.  
We have committed in all our activities and 
interactions to:

 � put patients first

 � respect the individual

 � act with integrity

 � serve the community, and

 � promote positive change .

In achieving the objectives our staff observe  
our operating principles:

 � Quality is our organising principle

 � We strive to improve quality and increase value

 � Clinical leadership influences all our thinking

 � Everything is delivered by and through our clinical  
divisions

 � Support departments support patient care

 � We deliver what we say we will deliver

 � Compliance with standards and targets is a must;  
this helps secure our independence and influence

 � We understand the world we live in, deal with its 
difficulties and celebrate our successes .

Our staff are committed to delivering against 
these challenges by continually improving the 
quality of the services we provide to meet the 
needs of our local population. Our improvement 
priorities for the year were to:

 � reduce mortality

 � avoid unnecessary admissions

 � enhance communication and engagement

 � deliver reliable care

 � ensure timeliness of care .

Reducing mortality Safe

Avoiding uncessessary admissions Safe

Enhancing communications and engagement Personal

Delivering reliable care Effective

Timeliness of care Effective
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Our services
2019 saw the formation of a new Division within the Trust – Community and Intermediate  
Care Services.

The Division has been established 
to reflect our out of hospital work 
with partner organisations and our 
communities alongside the emerging 
Primary Care Networks to advance our 
Case Management model which delivers 
person centred care as close to an 
individual’s home as possible . 

Our Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 
are at the centre of these developments 
and consist of nursing and therapy 
staff who are now providing care with 
GPs, social service colleagues and local 
voluntary sector organisations . Our 
Integrated Discharge Service, Intensive 
Home Support Service, Intermediate 
Care Allocation Team, Podiatry Service 
and Specialist Palliative Care Service also 
form part of the Division .

2019 also saw the further development 
of our Intensive Home Support Services 
and Intermediate Care Allocation 
Team to work with North West 
Ambulance Service to prevent any 
avoidance conveyance to the Emergency 
Department and unnecessary admissions 
to hospital . In January 2020, these 
services supported our 5000th patient 
to return home from hospital on our 
nationally recognised Home First Service .

We provide a full range of acute hospital 
and adult community services . We are 
a specialist centre for Hepatobiliary and 
Pancreatic Surgery and Interventional 
Vascular Centre .

Royal Blackburn Hospital provides  
a full range of hospital services to 
adults and children . This includes:

 � General and specialist medical

 � Elective and Emergency Surgery

 � Full range of diagnostic (e .g . MRI, 
CT scanning) and support services

 � 11 Operating Theatres including 
Robotic assisted Surgery

 � Urgent Care Centre

 � Emergency Department

 � 2 cardiac catheterisation 
laboratories

 � 3 endoscopy rooms

 � state of the art inpatient facilities

 � Centralised outpatients department

 � Renal Dialysis services (provided 
by Lancashire Teaching Hospitals 
Foundation Trust)

Burnley General Hospital provides 
a full range of elective hospital services . 
This includes:

 � general, specialist medical and 
surgical services

 � 13 Theatres, 2 Obstetric and  
1 procedures room

 � full range of diagnostic (e .g . MRI,  
CT scanning) services

 � Urgent Care Centre for minor injuries 
and illnesses

 � The Lancashire Women and 
Newborn Centre, comprising:

– Centralised consultant-led 
maternity unit

– Level 3 Neonatal Intensive  
Care Unit

– Midwife-led birth centre

– Purpose-built Gynaecology unit

 � Lancashire Elective Centre

 � 3 endoscopy rooms

 � Phase 8 development to include  
new specialist ophthalmology 
centre, maxillo-facial department 
and outpatient facilities

 � Specialised Neuro-Rehabilitation

 � Renal Dialysis services (provided 
by Lancashire Teaching Hospitals 
Foundation Trust)

Accrington Victoria Community 
Hospital provides inpatient services 
and a Minor Injuries Unit for the local 
population . The hospital also has access 
to dedicated specialist services together 
with a range of outpatient services . 

Many consultants and specialties use this 
busy facility which allows local people to 
be seen within their community . Services 
include:

 � Audiology clinics

 � Inpatient services

 � Minor injuries

 � Occupational therapy

 � Outpatient services

 � Physiotherapy

 � Renal services (provided by 
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals 
Foundation Trust)

 � X-Ray

Clitheroe Community Hospital 
provides:

 � 32-bed inpatient ward on the first 
floor

 � outpatient clinics and other services 
on the ground floor, including a 
restaurant for visitors

 � inpatient and Rehabilitation services 
for people 16 years old or over

 � outpatient facility sees patients of any 
age as requested by the consultants

Our outpatient services are also 
provided at a range of local community 
settings, enabling patients to access 
care closer to their homes wherever 
appropriate . The Trust also provides 
community services such as district 
nursing and health visiting in patients’ 
homes .

Pendle Community Hospital in 
Nelson provides:

 � Rehabilitation service for people 
following illness or injury

 � Two 24 bed rehabilitation wards

 � A 24 bed stroke rehabilitation unit

 � East Lancashire Community Stroke 
Team 

 � Outpatient services
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Trusts Statement on Covid-19 and its Impact upon the Trust 
Towards the end of the 2019-20 financial 
year Trusts across the country were faced 
with the need to respond to the Covid-19 
outbreak . The Trust implemented 
Incident Command and Control 
arrangements for the management of the 
Covid-19 outbreak . A Trust Incident Co-
ordination Centre was established and 
functioned on a 24/7 basis under the 
leadership of the Director of Integrated 
Care and Partnerships and Director of 
Infection Prevention and Control . 

Operational Co-ordination Centres were 
established for all Clinical Divisions 
and Corporate Directorates and these 
reported to the Trust’s Incident Co-
ordination Centre . Nothing in these 
command and control arrangements 
impaired the Chief Executive or Deputy 
Chief Executive from discharging their 
leadership and direction to the Trust . 

The Trust established an Incident 
Management Team meetings initially 
held twice daily and subsequently once 
daily . The Incident Management Team 
meetings were chaired by the Director 
of Integrated Care and Partnerships or 
Director of Operations and consisted 
of the Incident Co-ordination Centre, 
one representative of each Operational 
Co-ordination Centre and a Clinical 
Commissioning Group representative . 

Operational Co-ordination Centres 
established their meetings to act as a 
cascade for information and actions from 
Incident Management Team meetings . 
Executive oversight was maintained 
through twice weekly Trust Executive 
meetings chaired by the Chief Executive 
or Deputy Chief Executive .

The Trust Executive meetings supported 
the effective oversight of the incident 
and provided a space for any other 
relevant Trust business not related to the 
Covid-19 outbreak to be conducted and 
managed .

The control environment to respond 
to the Covid-19 outbreak is described 
above . A Trust Covid-19 Bulletin 
was produced to support effective 
communication across the Trust . Initially 
these bulletins were produced twice daily 
(morning and afternoon/evening) and 
subsequently once daily . Bulletins were 
produced by the Communications and 
Engagement Operational Co-ordination 
Centre (OCC) and approved and issued 
in the name of the Director of Integrated 
Care and Partnerships and Director of 
Infection Prevention and Control as the 
Incident Co-ordination Centre Leads .

In addition, an information cascade 
system was also established to ensure 

all key priority services received a verbal 
communication of Covid-19 Bulletins . 
This included:

 � Assessment Units (including 
Ambulatory Pathways, Paediatrics 
and Maternity)

 � Critical Care

 � Emergency Medicine

 � Medical Handover

 � Patient Services

 � Theatres

The Operational Co-ordination Centres 
for the relevant key priority areas were 
responsible for implementing this verbal 
cascade system .

Issues potentially affecting business 
continuity or service disruption were 
identified through the arrangements 
described above . Such issues were 
identified, eliminated or mitigated such 
that business continuity and/or service 
provision was maintained, adapted or 
stopped as necessary . 

The Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion 
has not been affected by the Trust’s 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, nor 
has the overall review of effectiveness 
or the control environment by the Chief 
Executive .

10 | Performance Report



www.elht.nhs.uk

Staff
The Trust is a major local employer and 
sees itself as an anchor organisation 
within the local area . We recognise that 
our ongoing success is due to the hard 
work, dedication and commitment of all 
our staff and volunteers and have agreed 
a new People Strategy to ensure that The 
Trust can achieve its ambition to be seen 
as the ‘Best Place to Work’ . During the 
course of the year the Trust has worked 
hard to recruit and retain nursing and 
medical staff .

Recognising that in order to provide 
consistent high standards of safe, 
personal and effective care means high 
staffing requirements at times of peak 
demand . The Trust continues to increase 
our Staff Bank and reduce the cost of 
agency staff .

As well as ensuring that we have the 
appropriate workforce numbers, the 
Trust has worked hard to recognise the 
importance of employee engagement . 
Our Trust has an Employee Engagement 
Strategy which was designed and 

developed with input from staff across 
the organisation and a focused staff 
engagement team is in place .

In addition to the information and data 
from the national NHS Staff Survey, we 
conduct more focused surveys to enable 
staff to feedback confidentially their 
experience of working for the Trust . We 
do this regularly and then monitor the 
actions that have been taken to improve 
the staff experience at our monthly 
Employee Engagement Sponsor Group 
chaired by the Chief Executive .

Employee engagement
At ELHT we believe our employees are 
our greatest asset, and we all have a 
part to play in setting and achieving our 
vision, values and key priorities . 

Our people are at the heart of 
everything that we do, striving for 
excellence and driving up standards 
of care . We want our staff to enthuse 
pride in their service and similarly for 

our patients and carers to be proud of 
us as their local health provider .

As an organisation we are committed 
to improving employee engagement 
and empowerment . Our strategy led by 
the Chief Executive and championed 
by the Director of Human Resources 
and Organisational Development 
(HR&OD) has enabled ELHT to drive the 
organisation forward by highlighting the 
importance of employee engagement 
as well as implementing evidence based 
interventions to enhance it .

We have devised, implemented and 
embedded a systematic approach to 
engage and empower our employees 
through our 10 Enablers of Employee 
Engagement which has now created 
an environment whereby our workforce 
demonstrates high levels of advocacy is 
truly involved and motivated, working 
together towards our shared vision of 
being widely recognised for providing 
safe personal and effective care . 
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Finance
Financial duties
The Trust reported a £5 .1 million 
adjusted financial performance surplus 
for the 2019-20 financial year . The 
surplus includes a non-recurrent £12 .6 
million allocation from the Provider 
Sustainability Fund and Marginal rate 
emergency tariff (MRET) funding, 
approved by the Department of Health 
and Social Care (DHSC) and HM 
Treasury . This is in line with the 2019-20 
financial plan .

The Trust achieved this outturn whilst 
delivering a £16 .4 million Waste 
Reduction Programme (WRP) improving 
the way it delivers services . In addition, 
the Trust achieved all its other financial 
duties as set out later in this report .

Better Payments Practice Code
Although it is not a financial duty, the 
Trust met the Better Payment Practice 
Code target by paying more than 95% 
of undisputed invoices within 30 days 
of receipt of the goods or invoice, 
whichever is the later .

Where our money comes from 
In 2019-20, the Trust received income 
of £567 .7 million compared with £512 .7 
million in the previous year, including 
£426 .8 million for healthcare services 

provided to people living in East 
Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen .

Most of the Trust’s income comes from 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 
who purchase healthcare on behalf 
of their local populations . The Trust 
negotiates an annual contract with the 
local CCGs for the payment of services .

Where our money goes
From a total revenue spend of £601 .1 
million in 2019-20, £385 .8 million 
or 64% was spent on staff costs . 
Throughout the year the Trust employed 
an average of 7,686 staff and contracted 
a further average 915 staff .

At £42 .1 million, drugs costs were the 
next highest area of expenditure with 
the Trust spending a £33 .7 million on 
other clinical supplies and services 
and a further £16 .1 million on clinical 
negligence ‘insurance’ premiums .

During the year the Trust’s valuer has 
carried out a full revaluation of the 
Trust estate, this has resulted in a net 
impairment charge of £38 .9 million . 

Capital Expenditure 
The Trust has continued to invest in 
healthcare facilities, including a further 
£5 .0 million on the Fairhurst Building, 

the new Ophthalmology Department 
at Burnley General Teaching Hospital, 
which opened in October 2019 and 
was funded from Public Dividend 
Capital (PDC) received from DHSC . An 
additional £4 .5 million of PDC funding 
has been spent on the new Emergency 
Care Village at the Royal Blackburn 
Teaching Hospital site, with further 
investment of £5 .5 million planned in 
advance of the scheduled opening in 
December 2020, backed by a further 
£2 .5 million of PDC funding . 

In total the Trust invested £22 .9 million 
on new building works, improvements 
and equipment across all its sites .

Financial Outlook for 2020-21 
The financial outlook for the NHS 
is uncertain due to the Covid-19 
pandemic . Prior to pandemic the Trust 
had submitted a draft annual financial 
plan of a £36 .4 million deficit, which 
included a Waste Reduction Programme 
of £17 million . Since the submission of 
the draft financial plan the planning 
round has been suspended for the NHS, 
for the first four months of the financial 
year NHS England/Improvement 
have set block contracts with further 
guidance on the outlook for 2020-21 
expected imminently .

Modern Slavery Act 2015 – Annual Statement 2019-20 
In accordance with the Modern Slavery 
Act 2015, East Lancashire Hospitals 
NHS Trust (ELHT) agreed the final 
statement regarding the steps it has 

taken in the financial year 2019-20 to 
ensure that Modern Slavery i .e . slavery 
and human trafficking, is not taking 
place in any part of its own business 

or any of its supply chains . The full 
statement can be found on the Trust’s 
website (www .elht .nhs .uk) . 
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Principal activities of the Trust
Our principal activities are to provide:

 � elective (planned) operations and care to the local 
population in hospital and community settings

 � non-elective (unplanned emergency or urgent) operations 
and care to the local population in hospital settings

 � diagnostic and therapy services on an outpatient and 
inpatient basis to the local population in hospital and 
community settings

 � specialist services within a network of regional and 
national organisations e .g . Level 3 Neonatal services, 
Interventional Vascular Centre and specialist Hepatobiliary 

and Pancreatic Centre

 � ELHT also provides Robotic Assisted Surgery within 
Urology, Colorectal and Head and Neck Services

 � learning and development opportunities for staff and 
students

 � additional services commissioned where agreement has 
been reached on service delivery models and price

 � support services to deliver the above activity and support 
the activity of other local health providers where these 
have been commissioned and agreement has been 
reached on service delivery models and price .

Lancashire and Cumbria Integrated Care System
Lancashire and South Cumbria experience significant levels of 
health inequality with an average life expectancy significantly 
worse than the national average . To help address this, an 
overarching programme is being developed to help transform 
health and care services to make them more effective and 
efficient . In so doing they will become more sustainable . 
Within Lancashire and South Cumbria there are five health 
and care economies . ELHT is part of the ‘Pennine Lancashire’ 
health and care economy (Pennine Lancashire Integrated Care 
Partnership) . It is recognised that the majority of the required 
transformation will need to take place in each local health 
and care economy; however for some services this will be 
across the whole of Lancashire & South Cumbria .

The transformation or change programme aims to deliver:

 � Financial improvement – We estimate there is a recurrent 
resource gap of over £800 million facing the Lancashire 
& South Cumbria health and care economy over the next 

five years (about £250 million in Pennine Lancashire and 
over £100 million in ELHT) . We intend to close this gap by 
greater standardisation of our clinical processes, reducing 
waste, by rationalising our estates and continuing to 
transform our workforce .

 � Access standards – With the exception of the four-hour 
standard, ELHT’s performance is robust . In the course of 
2019-20 we have continued to modify our acute pathway 
which has helped to sustain our performance; however  
we need to improve access to out of hospital services .

 � Reducing variability – As a health and care economy, we 
see variability in services and duplication across a range 
of health and social care providers . The transformation 
programme aims to significantly reduce this meaning care 
is more coordinated and therefore more effective and 
efficient .
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Local health and care system vision
The Pennine Lancashire leadership (ELHT, East Lancashire 
Clinical Commissioning Group, Blackburn with Darwen Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Lancashire and South Cumbria Care 
NHS Foundation Trust, Blackburn with Darwen Council and 
Lancashire County Council) have worked together to further 
develop the integrated care partnership . This partnership, 
or coming together of organisations and the services they 
provide, works to ensure people in Pennine Lancashire have 
long and healthy lives but also that when they need extra 
help and support this is easy to find . 

A new model of care has been developed, through 
engagement and consultation with the public . ELHT will 
continue as the single largest provider of secondary care 
services to the community of Pennine Lancashire . Partners 
continue to work together to develop and implement 
neighbourhood teams to continue to develop the high quality 
care that is delivered across the Pennine Lancashire area, 
including closer and more integrated working with primary 
care . ELHT also has a significant role to play in preventing 

people from becoming ill .

The executive team at ELHT are closely involved with the 
governance arrangements at both the ICS and ICP . From 
the ICS Partnership Board through to the Care Professionals 
Board, Digital Health Board and the Finance & Investment 
Group, ELHT executives are helping to shape and respond 
to the needs of the Five Year Forward View and new 
models of care . The work of the Executive extends out to 
broader leadership roles including for example the following 
workstreams: Cancer services, Hyper Acute Stroke, Acute 
services, vulnerable services, collaborative services, pathology 
reconfiguration and the broader configuration of diagnostics 
services .

These partnership arrangements aim to secure improved 
sustainable outcomes for our population . The partnership 
approach extends between the NHS, Local Authorities, the 
third sector and patients groups .

Stakeholder Engagement
The Trust’s Patient, Carer and Family Experience Strategy 
2018 to 2021 sets out how staff, patients, families, carers and 
stakeholders can all work together to review, develop and 
improve services . This ensures patients have the best possible 
experience whilst using our services .

Any patient or carer of a patient is welcome to attend our 
Public Participation Panel (PPP) to give us their views about 
the services we provide and work with us to improve them . 
Set up in 2018, PPP meetings offer the opportunity for 
independent observers to make a meaningful contribution to 
the development of Trust services .

A patient story is presented at each public Board meeting . 
Patients/carers attend in person to relate their experience and 
identified opportunities for change/improvement direct to the 
Board . In addition to routine media activity, we work with 
patients from across the Trust to share their experience of our 
services . Stories from a purely patient perspective regularly 
appear in national and local publications .

The good relationships with the local, regional and national 
media provide an opportunity to publicly share our plans and 
developments, and celebrate the skill and professionalism of 
our staff . Our social media accounts are proving an effective 
and engaging method of two way contact, with the following 
average reach per week:

 � Facebook – 352,559

 � Twitter impressions – 126,350

 � Instagram impressions – 1,950 (reach of 1,085)

We routinely involve patient representatives in Quality 
Improvement projects . For example the Frailty Care Pathway 
project, Electronic Patient Record Project, development of an 
information booklet for patients, family and carers and the 
End of Life Steering Group .

Acting on feedback from local MPs, we have developed a 
light version of our monthly Team Brief which we issue to 
staff . The MP version includes performance information, areas 
of development and key messages from the executive board . 
In addition the MPs have regular meetings with our Chief 
Executive .

The Trust works closely with Healthwatch Lancashire and 
Healthwatch Blackburn with Darwen and with the Carers 
Services for East Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen . 
Regular meetings are held between the Trust and these 
organisations and representatives are invited to take part  
in quality improvement projects . The Trust is also involved in  
and contributes to Healthwatch projects; for example the  
‘The Young Person’s Voice’ project on the Children’s Ward, 
and the ‘Spotlight on Accident & Emergency’ project . 

Representatives from Healthwatch, the Carers Services and 
the local CCGs are invited to participate in ‘mini’ inspections 
which are carried out on our wards and departments, 
and Healthwatch representatives take part in the annual 
Patient-Led Assessments of the Care Environment (PLACE) 
assessments along with representatives from ELMS (East 
Lancs Medical Services) and the Patient Voices Group .
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The Trust has established partnerships 
with the University of Central Lancashire 
(UCLan) and Blackburn, Burnley and 
Nelson and Colne colleges which help 
us attract local young people to come 
and work at the Trust . The Trust will 
benefit from students and graduates 
from UCLan’s Medical School as 
well as IT, HR and Finance and other 
administrative professions .

The Trust works closely with the CCGs 
to ensure that issues raised by GPs and 
local healthcare providers via the CCG 
‘Connect’ mailbox, are investigated and 
responded to .

We are continuously working closely 
with our NHS partners . For example, 
in the Pennine Lancashire Together a 
Healthier Future programme, we are 
part of:

1 . Partnership Leadership Forum

2 . Transformation Steering Group 

3 . Care Professionals Board

4 . Finance and Investment Group

5 . Joint Cost Improvement/Quality, 
Innovation, Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) Plans

6 . Out of hospital working groups 

around development of the 
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

7 . On a wider Lancashire and South 
Cumbria footprint, we are part of 
the Integrated Care Partnership 
Board

8 . Provider Board

9 . Acute and Specialist work stream 

10 . Working groups on ICS priorities 
e .g . Stroke, Urology, Vascular, 
CAMHS, Head and Neck Cancer, 
Diagnostics etc .

Principal risks
The Trust has identified and assessed 
its risk areas and put in place mitigation 
strategies .

The Board Assurance Framework and 
Corporate Risk Register are regularly 
presented to the senior leadership at 
the Operational Delivery Board and to 
the Directors at the Trust Board . The 
five main risks outlined on the Board 
Assurance Framework during last year 
were relating to:

1 . Transformation and improvement 
schemes fail to deliver their 
anticipated benefits, thereby 
impeding the Trust’s ability to 
deliver safe personal and effective 
care .

2 . Recruitment and workforce 
planning fail to deliver the Trust 
objectives 

3 . Lack of effective engagement 
within the partnership 
organisations of the Integrated 

Care System (ICS) for Lancashire 
and South Cumbria and the 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) 
for Pennine Lancashire results 
in a reduced ability to improve 
the health and wellbeing of our 
communities . 

4 . The Trust fails to achieve a 
sustainable financial position and 
appropriate financial risk rating 
in line with the Single Oversight 
Framework 

5 . The Trust fails to earn significant 
autonomy and maintain a positive 
reputational standing as a result 
of failure to fulfil the regulatory 
requirements defined in the 
NHS Constitution and relevant 
legislation .

6 . Covid-19: this is a new risk that has 
been added to the Board Assurance 
Framework in March 2020 as 
a result of the global pandemic 
related to the Covid-19 .

Risks 1, 2, 4 and 5 were high and their 
scoring was above 15 throughout the 
year . Various actions were undertaken 
to reduce and mitigate the risks and 
the detail of those is provided in the 
Board Assurance Framework which is 
published as part of the Trust Board 
Reports . The Annual Governance 
Statement which follows later in 
the document describes the risk 
approach for the Trust and provides 
details of risk management across the 
organisation and gives more details 
about the significant risks that the Trust 
encountered in the year . 

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020
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Accountability 
Report
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a) Corporate Governance Report

i. Statement of the Accountable Officer

Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as the Accountable Officer of the Trust
The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of power conferred on the NHS Trust Development Authority, has 
designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the Trust . The relevant responsibilities of Accountable 
Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum . These include ensuring that:

• there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the implementation  
of corporate governance;

• value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust;

• the expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and conform to the 
authorities which govern them;

• effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

• annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income 
and cash flows for the year .

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken all 
the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s 
auditors are aware of that information .

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as  
an Accountable Officer .

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020
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ii. Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Accounts
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial year . The Secretary of 
State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and 
of the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year . In preparing those accounts, the 
directors are required to:

• apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury

• make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the accounts and

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material uncertainties over going concern .

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned 
direction of the Secretary of State . They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities .

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the 
accounts .

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the 
information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust’s performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020

Signed (electronically): 
Michelle Brown, Director of Finance  
Date: 1 July 2020
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iii. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

Scope of responsibility
1 . As Accountable Officer and Chief Executive of East 

Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust, I have responsibility 
for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supports the achievement of the Trust’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds 
and departmental assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities 
assigned to me . 

I am also responsible for ensuring that the Trust is 
administered prudently and economically and that 
resources are applied efficiently and effectively . I also 
have responsibility for safeguarding the Trust’s quality 
standards . In carrying out these obligations I and the 
Trust Board adhere to the NHS Codes of Conduct and 
Accountability . I also acknowledge my responsibilities 
as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer 
Memorandum . These include:

a) Ensuring that the accounts of the Trust that are 
presented to the Board for approval are prepared 
under principles and in a format directed by the 
Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury .

b) Ensuring that the accounts disclose a true and fair 
view of the Trust’s finances

c) Ensuring that managers at all levels have a clear 
view of their objectives and the means to assess 
achievements in relation to those objectives, have 
well defined responsibilities for making the best 
use of resources, have the training, information and 
access to expert advice they need to exercise their 
responsibilities effectively and are appraised and 
held to account for the responsibilities assigned to 
them

d) Ensuring the Trust achieves value for money from 
the resources available to it, avoiding waste and 
extravagance in the Trust’s activities

e) Ensuring the implementation of any 
recommendations affecting good practice

f) Ensuring the National Audit Office is provided with 
information it requests and that the Trust co-
operates with external auditors in their enquiries

g) Ensuring internal audit arrangements comply with 
the NHS Internal Audit Manual

h) Ensuring prompt action is taken in response to 
concerns raised by internal or external audit

i) Ensuring the Director of Finance properly discharges 
his responsibilities for the effective and sound 

financial management and information and that 
the Trust meets the financial objectives set by the 
Secretary of State for Health and the assets of the 
Trust are properly safeguarded

j) Ensuring that the Codes of Conduct and 
Accountability are promoted to and observed by 
staff

k) Ensuring appropriate advice is tendered to the 
Board on all matters of financial probity and 
regularity and all considerations of prudent 
and economical administration, efficiency and 
effectiveness

l) Ensuring that the appropriate action is taken if the 
Board or Chairman contemplates a course of action 
which I consider would infringe the requirements 
of propriety and regularity or adversely affect my 
responsibility for obtaining value for money from the 
Trust’s resources .

2 . As Accountable Officer I have fulfilled these duties by:

a) Continuing to review and realign the responsibilities 
of the Executive Directors

d) Being a member of the Finance and Performance 
Committee which provides assurance on 
the delivery of the finance and performance 
requirements of the organisation

e) Maintaining the Board focus, through my Chief 
Executive Report, on actions taken to address any 
areas of slippage on performance and advise the 
Board of emergent national and regional priorities

f) Ensuring there is effective partnership between the 
Trust and the wider health economy and beyond 
and establishing processes to ensure that I and the 
senior management team have effective working 
relationships with our partner organisations, the 
Care Quality Commission, local commissioners and 
social care providers, local and regional education 
partners, local councils and MPs, other NHS 
providers including Trusts and GPs and the public .  
I also chair the system wide Accident and 
Emergency Delivery Board

g) Attendance at Chief Executive Forums and other 
appropriate local, regional and national conferences

h) Attendance and pro-active participation at the 
meetings in relation to the Pennine Lancashire 
Integrated Care Partnership and the Lancashire and 
South Cumbria Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership .
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The Governance Framework of the Trust

Board Committee Structure
3 . The Trust Board has overall responsibility for setting the strategic direction of the Trust and managing the risks to 

delivering that strategy . All committees with risk management responsibilities have reporting lines to the Trust Board .

Committe

e

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Trust Education 
Board

Health and Safety 
Committee

Internal  
Safeguarding 

Board

Serious Incidents 
Requiring 

Investigation Panel

Patient Safety  
and Risk Assurance 

Committee

Patient  
Experience 
Committee

Clinical  
Effectiveness 
Committee

Financial  
Assurance  

Board

Infection 
Prevention and 

Control Committee

Finance and  
Performance 
Committee

Quality 
Committee

Audit 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Indicates Risk Committee

Trust Charitable 
Funds 

Committee

Trust Board
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Board and Committee Attendance Records and Scope of Work
4 . The Trust Board is responsible for monitoring the overall programme for management of risk across the organisation and 

its activities and decides the risk appetite of the Trust . The Trust Board sets the strategic direction of the Trust and receives 
regular reports on the performance of the Trust in meeting its objectives .

5 . The Board utilises the Risk Appetite for NHS Organisations matrix to support better risk sensitivity in decision making .  
The risk appetite of the Board varies between a ‘Preference for ultra-safe delivery options that have a low degree of 
inherent risk’ and ‘Willing to consider all potential delivery options and choose while also providing an acceptable level of 
reward (and value for money (VfM))’ depending upon the risk area/matter under consideration .

Y Attended D Deputy attended A Apologies received

Name Role
2019/20

May July Sept Nov Jan Mar

Professor Fairhurst Chairman Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr McGee Chief Executive/Accountable Officer Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mrs Anderson Non-Executive Director  
(Leave of absence from 10 May 2019  
to 3 October 2019)

Y A Y Y

Professor Baldwin Non-Executive Director 
(From 1 January 2020)

A A

Mr Bannister Executive Director of Operations 
(To 24 May 2019)

Y

Mr Barnes Non-Executive Director Y Y A Y Y Y

Mrs Brown Executive Director of Finance  
(From 1 August 2019)

Y Y A Y

Mr Catherall Associate Non-Executive Director 
(From 1 July 2019)

Y Y A Y Y

Mr Hodgson Executive Director of Service 
Development/Deputy Chief Executive

Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mrs Hughes Executive Director of Communications 
and Engagement

Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Husain Executive Medical Director 
(From 17 February 2020)

Y

Miss Malik Non-Executive Director Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Moynes Executive Director of HR and OD A Y Y Y Y Y

Mrs Patel Associate Non-Executive Director 
(From 1 July 2019)

Y Y Y Y Y

Mrs Pearson Executive Director of Nursing Y Y Y Y Y A

Mr Rehman Associate Non-Executive Director 
(From 1 January 2020)

Y Y
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Name Role
2019/20

May July Sept Nov Jan Mar

Dr Riley Executive Medical Director 
(To 30 April 2019)

Acting Chief Executive  
(1 May 2019 to 31 October 2019)

Responsible Officer  
(1 November 2019 to 16 February 2020)

Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Smyth Non-Executive Director Y Y Y Y Y Y

Dr Stanley Acting Executive Medical Director 
(1 May 2019 to 31 October 2019)

Y A Y

Professor Thomas Associate Non-Executive Director 
(To 31 December 2019)

Y Y Y Y

Mr Wedgeworth Associate Non-Executive Director Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Wharfe Non-Executive Director 
(To 28 February 2020)

A Y A Y Y

Mr Wood Executive Director of Finance 
(To 31 July 2019)

Y Y

6 . The Audit Committee is the high level risk committee operating on behalf of the Board and concerns itself with the 
function and effectiveness of all risk committees . It is charged with ensuring that the Board and Accountable Officer gain 
the assurance they need on governance, risk management, the control environment and the integrity of the financial 
reporting .

Name Role
2019/20

Apr May June July Oct Jan

Mr Smyth Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair) Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mrs Anderson
Non-Executive Director  
(Leave of absence from 10 May 2019  
to 3 October 2019)

Y 

Professor 
Thomas

Associate Non-Executive Director 
(To 31 December 2019)

Y Y Y A Y

Mr Wharfe Non-Executive Director 
(To 28 February 2020)

A Y Y Y Y A
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7 . The Quality Committee provides assurance to the Board that all aspects of the delivery of safe, personal and effective  
care are being appropriately governed and that the evidence to support that assurance is scrutinised in detail on behalf  
of the Board .

Name Role
2019/20

May July Sept Nov Feb

Mrs Anderson

Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair to 10 May 2019 
and from 1 January 2020)

Leave of absence from the Trust from 10 May 2019 to  
3 October 2019

Y Y

Miss Malik Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair 11 May 2019 to 
31 December 2020)

A Y Y Y A

Mr Bannister Executive Director of Operations (To 24 May 2019) D 

Mr Husain Executive Medical Director (From 17 February 2020)

Mr Moynes Executive Director of HR and OD D Y D D Y 

Mrs Patel Associate Non-Executive Director (From 1 July 2019) Y Y Y A Y 

Mrs Pearson Executive Director of Nursing Y D Y Y Y

Dr Riley

Acting Chief Executive Officer (Until 31 October 2019)

Executive Medical Director (To 30 April 2019)

Responsible Officer (1 November 2019 to 16 February 2020)

Strategic Clinical Lead (From 1 November 2019 to ongoing)

Y D A

Dr Stanley Acting Executive Medical Director (1 May 2019 to 31 
October 2019)

Y Y Y Y

Professor Thomas Associate Non-Executive Director (To 31 December 2020) A Y Y

Mr Wedgeworth Associate Non-Executive Director Y A Y Y Y
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8 . The role of the Finance and Performance Committee is to provide assurance on the delivery of the financial plans approved 
by the Board for the current year, develop forward plans for subsequent financial years for consideration by the Board 
and examine in detail risks to the achievement of national and local performance and activity standards . It maintains an 
overview of the financial and performance risks recorded on the Board Assurance Framework .

Name Role
2019/20

May June July Sept Oct Nov Jan Feb Mar

Mr Wharfe

Non-Executive Director  
(To 28 February 2020) 
(Committee Chair to  
31 December 2019)

Y Y Y Y Y A A A

Mr Barnes
Non-Executive Director  
(Committee Chair from  
1 January 2020)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr McGee Chief Executive D D Y A A A A A A

Mrs Anderson

Non-Executive Director 
(Leave of absence from the 
Trust from 10 May 2019 to  
3 October 2019)

Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Bannister Executive Director of 
Operations (To 24 May 2019)

Y

Mrs Brown Executive Director of Finance 
(From 1 August 2020)

Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Catherall Associate Non-Executive 
Director (From 1 July 2019)

Y Y Y Y Y Y

Mr Hodgson
Executive Director of Service 
Development/Deputy Chief 
Executive

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Dr Riley
Acting Chief Executive  
(1 May 2019 to 31 October 
2019)

Y A Y Y

Prof. Thomas
Associate Non-Executive 
Director (To 31 December 
2019)

A Y Y Y Y

Mr Wood Executive Director of Finance 
(To 31 July 2019)

Y Y D

Mr Rehman Associate Non-Executive 
Director (From 1 January 2020)

Y Y Y
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Board Performance and Effectiveness 
9 . The Board is committed to continuous improvement 

and development . The Trust has worked with the Good 
Governance Institute since 2015 when it carried out  
an independent review of the Board’s performance .  
A resultant action plan was developed and completed 
which paid particular attention to the well-led 
framework as well as other governance matters to 
ensure the Trust’s ongoing improvements in corporate 
and clinical governance . Part of the work focused 
on a measurement of the Board against the Good 
Governance Institute Matrix of Board Maturity and the 
action plan was developed to promote and evidence 
evolution of behaviours and processes . During 2019-20 
the Board continued to work with the Good Governance 
Institute and had several strategy sessions discussion 
the challenges of the evolving health sector landscape 
and the opportunities for the organisation to continue 
on its journey of delivering safe, personal and effective 
care to the population of East Lancashire and indeed 
the Lancashire and South Cumbria population whilst 
improving our governance systems and processes and 
providing increasingly robust assurance .

10 . The Trust Board considers the success of each Trust 
Board meeting in public at the conclusion of the meeting 
with particular focus on whether Board members 
have had sufficient focus on aspects such as patient 
experience, quality, risk and partnership working .

11 . The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out a Well 
Led Review of the Trust on the 25 and 26 September 
2018 . The outcome of the review has resulted in the 
Trust being awarded an overall rating of ‘Good’ by the 
regulator .

12 . The Trust has a clear vision, objectives, values, operating 
principles and improvement priorities . The hospital 
services are supported by strong governance processes 
including well managed risk registers and processes 
feeding into the Trust Board . This ensures a robust 
overview of the risks within the organisation . There 
is on-going work to enhance the Board Assurance 
Framework and risk management in the Trust and this 
is included in the action plan from the CQC Well Led 
Review which is regularly monitored through the Quality 
Committee . The Trust has a Clinical Strategy in place . 
The Trust Board has undertaken a programme of Board 
development with an external partner since 2015 and 
this has elements of both self and external assessment . 
The Board is committed in its support of continuous 
learning and professional development; is clear on roles 
and accountabilities in relation to Board governance 
and there are clearly defined and understood processes, 
for escalating and resolving issues and managing 
performance . The Trust Board ensures that it actively 
engages with its patients, staff and its shadow 

governors and other stakeholders as appropriate on 
quality, operational and financial performance . Reports 
are taken to the Trust Board at each meeting on matters 
of performance and through the assurance committees 
of the Trust .

Highlights of Board Committee Reports
13 . The Audit Committee has been active throughout 

the year in providing assurance on governance, 
risk management, the control environment and the 
integrity of the financial statements . Reports have been 
considered in detail from management representatives 
where ‘limited assurance’ opinions have been given by 
the internal audit service . Audit Committee members 
assess the strength of assurances received from a 
number of sources over the course of the year . These 
sources include but are not limited to:

a) Internal Audit Reports

b) External Audit Reports

c) Anti-Fraud Service Reports

d) The Quality Committee

e) The Finance and Performance Committee

f) External reviews and self-assessments against best 
practice guidance

g) External reviews commissioned by the Trust

h) Stakeholder feedback

i) Management responses to internal audit reports, 
providing updates on actions taken to address any 
recommendations given as a result of audits .

j) Media reports

k) Learning from other organisations

l) Reports from internal service providers .

14 . The Trust Board has additionally considered a number 
of annual reports, including, but not limited to those 
in relation to Infection Control, Emergency Planning, 
Winter Planning, Medicines Management, and the 
recommendations of national reports . The Trust Board 
has engaged proactively in the development of a five 
year Clinical Strategy for the Trust and the wider health 
and social care economy that was approved in April 
2016 . 

15 . The Clinical Strategy is subject to regular review . Whilst 
it’s basic tenets remain as relevant today as when first 
written it has been revised to be more reflective of 
the integrated system working prevalent within both 
the Pennine Lancashire Integrated Care Partnership 
and also the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated 
Care System . It was also reviewed subsequent to the 
publication of the NHS Long Term Plan to ensure it is 
coherent with the key recommendations and overall 
national policy direction .
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16 . Through this process, initiated through the 2019-20 
planning round, we are confident there is a ‘golden 
thread’ from the NHS Long Term Plan, the Pennine Plan, 
ELHT’s Clinical Strategy, the corporate Operational Plan 
and the individual Clinical Divisional and Directorate 
plans . Such plans have been shared with partners and 
there are some tangible areas of service development 
that have improved services to patients e .g the 
development of Same Day Emergency Care, more 
integrated working with Neighbourhood Teams and 
General Practice .

Quality Governance
17 . The Trust is committed to the continuous improvement 

of the quality of care given to local people and, in so 
doing, achieving our organisational aim ‘to be widely 
recognised for providing safe, personal and effective 
care’ . All Executive Directors have responsibility for 
Quality Governance across their particular spheres 
of activity and the Executive Medical Director is the 
delegated lead for Quality on the Board overall .

18 . Quality monitoring occurs through our Clinical 
Governance structure, reporting to the Board via 
the Quality Committee . The Quality Committee is 
informed by the Patient Safety and Risk Assurance Sub-
Committee, Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation 
Panel, Clinical Effectiveness Sub-Committee, Patient 
Experience Group Sub-Committee, Health and Safety 
Committee, Internal Safeguarding Board and Infection 
Prevention and Control Sub-Committee . Divisional 
Directors or their agreed deputies attend and report at 
these committees . Reporting in Divisions replicates this 
corporate structure to ensure consistent reporting from 
‘floor to Board’ .

Safe 
Incident Management
19 . The Trust has robust systems to manage and learn from 

incidents . The Board receives a regular written report 
on serious incidents requiring investigation at each 
meeting held in public where new incidents are reported 
and an update is given in relation to the progress of the 
management of incidents, including Duty of Candour 
and a section on what lessons have been learnt as 
a consequence of the incident investigation process 
and how the lessons have been translated to deliver 
improvements in the quality and safety of services . 

20 . The Trust also has a Serious Incident Requiring 
Investigation (SIRI) Panel which is supported by a Non-
Executive Director . The Panel reviews the investigations 
undertaken as a result of never events and serious 
incidents to ensure that a thorough review is completed, 
the Duty of Candour is observed and that learning 
from incidents is circulated appropriately across the 

organisation . The Panel has senior representatives 
from local commissioning organisations and provides 
assurance to the Quality Committee on the matters 
within the remit of its Terms of Reference .

21 . Incidents are reported in accordance with the NHS 
England Serious Incident Framework (SIF) and no 
significant control issues have been identified as a result 
of the incidents investigated during the course of the year . 

22 . Never Events are also managed in accordance with the 
SIF, reported via StEIS and investigated and validated 
in partnership with our Commissioners, East Lancashire 
CCG .

Risk Management Strategy, Policy and Plan
23 . The Trust’s Risk Management Strategy currently 

shows inspiration from the AS/NZS Risk Management 
Standards ISO 31000:2009 including ISO 31000:2018 
and best practice in robustly crafting and articulating its 
risk management framework, escalation and governance 
arrangements from `Ward to Board  ̀. The Trust will be 
revising its risk management plan during 2020/21 . New 
processes have been implemented following an Internal 
Audit in early 2019 and improvements have been 
made to the overall approach and monitoring of risk 
management during 2019-20 . 

24 . The Trust is committed to implementing a structured, 
standardised, systematic, integrated, comprehensive, 
performance-based and whole-system approach to 
managing both operational and strategic risks . The 
Trust’s risk management process which includes 
establishing the context, risk identification, assessment, 
prioritisation, monitoring and review is:

a) Based on best available information e .g . data .

b) Systematic, consistent, timely and underpinned by  
a structured enterprise-wide approach that seeks  
to contribute to efficiency and reliable results . 

c) Transparent and inclusive and involves appropriate 
stakeholders at all levels of the organisation . 

d) Enhanced training delivered digitally and face to 
face throughout the trust .

e) Dynamic, iterative and responsive to change . 

f) Capable of continual improvement and 
enhancement in patient care and safety . 

g) Wrapped around the values of the Trust – Value-
based Risk Management . 

h) Focused on encouraging staff to continuously 
scan the horizon for emerging risks and to ensure 
appropriate mitigations are in place .

i) Driven by the need to develop and strengthen staff 
capacity and capability in risk management through 
education and training .
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j) Underpinned by a succinct Risk Management 
Strategy which is available on the Trust’s intranet 
system for staff to access, explore and utilise . 

25 . The Trust uses Equality Impact Assessments as part of 
its policy development and ratification process . Policies 
are assessed against the equality standards and are 
integrated into the process through the Trust’s Policy 
Council .

26 . Sharing the learning through risk related issues, 
incidents, complaints and claims is an essential 
component to maintaining the risk management culture 
within the Trust . In order to complement learning, the 
Trust also places emphasis on training and developing 
staff capacity and capability in risk management 
underpinned by the use of clearly articulated descriptors 
for likelihood and consequence as well as the use 
of the 5X5 matrix . These have not only enabled 
engagement and consistency but have established a 
common currency, framework and methodology for 
the assessment of all types of risk . Learning is shared 
in a wide variety of ways at departmental, divisional 
and corporate levels through a number of face to face 
meetings and bulletins and the publication of the Trust’s 
Share to Care newsletters . Learning is acquired from a 
variety of sources including:

a) Analysis of incidents, complaints and claims and 
identification of trends with appropriate mitigating 
actions

b) External inspections

c) Internal and external audit reports

d) Clinical audits

e) Outcome of investigations and inspections relating 
to other organisations

f) Quality Improvement Programmes

Personal
Learning from Complaints and Patient Experience
26 . The Trust has made significant organisational, cultural, 

and behavioural changes to achieve its ‘Good’ CQC 
rating in 2019 . One aspect to the achievement has been 
the Trust’s improvements in responding to patient and 
family’s concerns and complaints; through strengthening 
the communication with complainants and providing 
rigorous investigations that understand the causes of 
the dissatisfaction . As stated within this document, 
complaints and the learning from there are closely 
aligned to incident reporting and Quality Improvement, 
so not only the individual and area will learn from 
identified issues, but the organisation as a whole . Key to 
the Trust’s approach is to keep the patient central to the 
process .

27 . Patient Experience is pivotal in all aspects of how the 
Trust deliver patient care, and to the wider support 
of their families; with the Patient Experience team 
supporting staff to enhance all parts of their interactions 
with patients . The Patient Experience team gather, share 
and utilise patient experience metrics collated from 
sources such as Friends and Family Test, national surveys 
regarding Inpatient, Maternity and Children and Young 
People . They are also involved in analysing local surveys, 
where patients and carers have given their views; 
helping staff to interpret the information into genuine 
service improvements . 

28 . Complementing the above work has been the 
establishment of the Trust’s Patient Participation Panel, 
which consists of members of the public providing a 
critical friend role to the Trust, through examining and 
being involved in service delivery and improvement 
work . We now have the foundation and opportunity to 
consider with our patients where the Trust wants to go 
from here in providing experience excellence .

Effective
Clinical Effectiveness
29 . The Trust has a Clinical Effectiveness Team which 

reports regularly to the Clinical Effectiveness Committee, 
which is a sub-committee of the Quality Committee 
via assurance reports which measure the quality and 
safety of care against national best practice indicators . 
Having identified areas for improvement, the Quality 
Improvement team supports clinical teams in the 
implementation of improvement and action plans and 
measuring the effectiveness of tests of change on an 
on-going basis . A summary of the work of the Clinical 
Audit and Effectiveness Department is reported to the 
Quality Committee .

Quality Improvement
30 . In order to support the delivery of safe, personal and 

effective care the Trust has a robust process for the 
identification and agreement of key quality priorities . 
Those that require quality improvement are consolidated 
into our Quality Improvement Plan including Harms 
Reduction Programme, Clinical Effectiveness (reliability) 
and Patient Experience, and monitored for progress 
through this structure .

31 . Our Quality Improvement methodology is the 7 Steps 
to Safe Personal Effective Care . The 7 steps are noted 
to be: define the project aims, discover (Project Set 
Up); measure, investigate opinions (Diagnostic Phase), 
test out the change, implement change (intervention 
and impact phase) and celebrate, spread and sustain 
(Sustain and spread phase) . This is based on the 
Model for Improvement and also incorporates Lean 
and other tools . For large multi-team improvements we 
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run Breakthrough Series Collaboratives . The Quality 
Improvement Team has strengthened its partnership 
working with the wider Improvement Programme 
Office to ensure governance priorities are supported 
and aligned with the implementation of the Vital Signs 
programme .

32 . We have strengthened our quality improvement team of 
facilitators and analyst as part of the Quality and Safety 
Unit, linking with the Quality Committee structure .  
A staff development programme in quality improvement 
skills is in place both internally and through our 
membership of Advancing Quality Alliance (AQuA) . 
Professionals in training are supported to develop and 
participate in quality improvement projects, and support 
for projects is agreed at the Quality Improvement 
Projects Triage group . 

33 . Our Harm Reduction Programme now has a 
standardised approach to identifying high risk areas 
through review of incident reports and proactive 
identification of risk . Once identified, a number of 
different tools are used to drive improvement . Specific 
notable areas of improvement include falls, deteriorating 
patient, sepsis, medication errors and still births 
through a collaborative approach, and the reduction of 
medication safety incidents .

34 . The Trust has adopted the Care Quality Commission 
methodology of assessment to use on a regular basis to 
understand how quality governance arrangements are 
working across all spheres of activity by undertaking 
mini assessments . Regular meetings with the Care 
Quality Commission enhance a wider understanding of 
our progress and ensure we are able to access learning 
from other organisations . The Trust was last inspected 
by the Care Quality Commission in August/September 
2018 . The outcome of the inspection was that the Trust 
was awarded an overall rating of ‘good’ with some 
areas of Outstanding . 

35 . The Trust produces a regular Share to Care magazine 
based on sharing the learning and improvement work 
that has been initiated within the organisation following 
the identification of challenges, serious incidents and/
or common themes . The trust’s Human Factors Share to 
Care publication won a Gold award for Best Publication, 
from the Chartered Institute of Public Relations in 2019 .

Data Quality
36 . The Trust has a Data Quality Group which reports to 

the Trust Contracting and Data Quality Group . The 
group reviews the Secondary Uses Service data quality 
dashboards and the Dr Foster data quality summary 
dashboard . We have an online report for key data 
quality risks which has named leads for each data 
quality risk and an overall data quality log including risk 
scoring .

37 . We work closely with the local Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and Commissioning Support Unit including 
a monthly Contract Performance and Delivery Group 
where we discuss data quality issues and monitoring  
of the data quality plan .

38 . East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust submitted records 
during 2019-20 to the Secondary Uses Service for 
inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are 
included in the latest published data . 

39 . The Trust undertakes a weekly review at specialty level 
of all patients which includes Quality and accuracy of 
elective waiting time data .

Discharge of Statutory Functions
40 . As Accountable Officer my enquiries have confirmed 

that there are arrangements in place for the discharge 
of statutory functions and that the arrangements have 
been checked for irregularities and they are legally 
compliant . The Trust has taken action to ensure that 
the estate is statutorily compliant and that compliance 
processes are audited and monitored through the 
Estates and Facilities Quality and Safety Board and Trust 
Quality Committee . The Trust has confirmed compliance 
with Emergency Planning, Resilience and Response 
(EPRR) requirements in line with the Civil Contingencies 
Act 2004 and has substantial compliance with the 
associated EPRR standards .

The purpose of the system of internal control 
41 . The system of internal control is designed to manage 

risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives . It 
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness . The system of internal 
control is based on an on-going process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
the policies, aims and objectives of East Lancashire 
Hospitals NHS Trust; to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised; and to manage them efficiently, effectively  
and economically .

42 . In addition to a system of internal controls, a 
performance management approach compromising 
two KPIs (compliance and maturity) is also used 
in undertaking a health check of the Trust`s risk 
management culture . There is sufficient energy and 
momentum across the Trust in effectively minimising 
and managing risks by strengthening and developing 
integrated and agile risk management systems and 
processes which are wrapped around appropriate 
governance, scrutiny, assurance and oversight . Datix 
is the principal risk management system while risk 
registers are used as repositories for risks . As a general 
principle, the Trust will seek to eliminate or effectively 
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control all risks to patients, staff, and other stakeholders 
including those which pose a threat to its reputation .

43 . The system of internal control has been in place in 
East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust for the year ended 
31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts . 

Capacity to handle risk 
44 . All members of the Trust Board have signed up to 

the Trust Risk Management and Governance plans 
which clearly identify the Board’s responsibilities and 
accountability arrangements . These are reflected in 
the Trust’s Standing Orders and Standing Financial 
Instructions, the Scheme of Reservation and Delegation 
and the Trust’s Performance Accountability Framework . 
These are, in turn, repeated in the internal guidance and 
policies of the organisation . 

45 . Scrutiny by the Trust’s Non-Executive Directors and 
internal and external auditors provide assurance on 
the systems and operation of the processes for internal 
control across the whole of the Trust’s activities 
including probity in the application of public funds and 
in the conduct of the Trust’s responsibilities to internal 
and external stakeholders .

46 . In addition to the Committees outlined in the diagram 
earlier in this document which have Non-Executive 
Director membership, the Trust also has the Operational 
Delivery Board . The function of this committee is: 
to provide a forum by which the senior staff in the 
organisation can assist in the development of strategies 
to present to the Board; monitor operational delivery 
against the Trust’s strategic objectives and policies; 
advise the Board on the emerging risks to operational 
and strategic objectives; and the mitigation plans being 
deployed to ensure the delivery of safe, personal and 
effective care .

47 . The Trust risk management process clearly identifies 
a score-based system in allocating responsibility for 
reviewing and scrutinising risks to specific committees 
and individuals . Directorate and Divisional risk registers 
are reviewed and discussed at appropriate directorate 
and divisional meetings . The Corporate Risk Register, 
the Trust-wide Risk Register and Board Assurance 
Framework are also sighted at appropriate meetings 
which include Risk Assurance Meeting, Patient Safety 
and Risk Assurance Committee, Quality Committee, 
Operational Delivery Board and the Trust Board . Risk 
register reports reviewed and scrutinised at the above 
meetings provide assurance as well as consistently 
confirm the Trust’s attachment to the robust scrutiny, 
governance and oversight of our risk management 
culture . Whilst risks scoring 1-8 and 9-12 are managed 
at Directorate and Divisional levels respectively, those 

scoring 15 and above are escalated by the Divisions 
for consideration by the Risk Assurance Meeting 
for inclusion onto the Trust Corporate Risk Register 
although ownership is still locally owned and led . 
The Corporate Risk Register and the Board Assurance 
Framework are linked as they feed-off and inform each 
other .

48 . The Board has in place established risk management 
groups and supporting governance structures that 
together are responsible for identifying, assessing, 
managing and reporting the risks associated with 
clinical, corporate, financial and information governance . 
The Medical Director has the lead responsibility for the 
risk management processes including the development 
and implementation of the Board Assurance Framework, 
Risk Management Strategy Policy and Plan and 
associated learning and development to ensure all 
staff are appropriately trained and supported thereby 
ensuring our risk management processes are thoroughly 
embedded across the organisation .

49 . The Medical Director is supported by the members 
of the Executive Team in providing leadership to the 
risk management process . Executive Directors are 
lead directors for the strategic risks on the Board 
Assurance Framework . In this way the senior leaders 
in the organisation have an operational and strategic 
oversight of the key risks to achieving the Trust’s 
strategic objectives . Each area of risk is mapped to the 
Care Quality Commission’s Core Outcomes and risks 
contained in the Corporate Risk Register . The Trust 
Board receives a regular update on recommended 
changes to the Board Assurance Framework taking 
into account the progress of mitigation plans, positive 
assurances received since the last report to the Trust 
Board, and gaps in assurance identified in the period . 
In addition, two of the Sub-Committees of the Trust 
Board (Quality Committee and Finance and Performance 
Committee) continue to undertake deep-dives of the 
risks on the Board Assurance Framework (BAF) . Work is 
continuing on refining the Board Assurance Framework 
and the Corporate Risk Register . This work is described 
in the CQC action plan following the last inspection and 
the plan is regularly monitored

50 . The Executive Medical Director, as Responsible 
Officer, reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer . 
The Executive Medical Director has oversight of the 
systems and processes to ensure there is strong clinical 
education across the whole of the organisation, that 
medical revalidation arrangements are robust and 
effective and that the professional standards required of 
our medical staff are met, addressing any shortcomings 
effectively within the guidance issued by the General 
Medical Council . The Caldicott Guardian, who reports 
to the Executive Medical Director, is the senior person 
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responsible for protecting the confidentiality of patient 
and service-user information and enabling appropriate 
information-sharing . 

51 . The Executive Director of Nursing provides professional 
leadership to nursing and midwifery staff within the 
organisation and provides senior leadership along with 
the Executive Medical Director, to the organisation in 
relation to patient safety and quality of service delivery . 
She is supported by the Deputy Director of Nursing 
and Divisional Directors of Nursing within the clinical 
divisions, who ensure there is a continuing focus on the 
delivery of safe, personal and effective care . As a senior 
leadership team they ensure that there are sufficient 
appropriately qualified nursing and midwifery staff 
deployed on a daily basis to meet the levels of capacity 
and acuity and to meet safe staffing requirements .

52 . The Executive Director of Finance is accountable to the 
Trust Board and Chief Executive for the Trust’s financial 
risk management activities . They are responsible for 
ensuring that the Trust carries out its business of 
providing healthcare within sound Financial Governance 
arrangements that are controlled and monitored 
through robust audit and accounting mechanisms that 
are open to public scrutiny on an annual basis . She also 
has delegated responsibility for ‘Registration Authority’ . 
The Executive Director of Finance is the Board lead for 
Information Security and the Senior Information Risk 

Officer (SIRO) .

53 . The Directors of Operations are responsible for the 
overall management of all patient services, ensuring that 
all key access targets are met . They are the Accountable 
Emergency Officers under the 2004 Civil Contingencies 
Act . The Trust Lead for Emergency Preparedness, 
Resilience & Response is one of the Directors of 
Operations . The Trust also has a nominated Non-
Executive Director with oversight of EPRR within their 
specific duties .

54 . The Executive Director of HR and OD is responsible 
for the management of risks within his areas of 
operational responsibility, especially those risks 
associated with sickness absence, bullying and 
harassment . He is responsible for ensuring provision 
of employment services across the Trust and ensuring 
that there is a systematic approach to managing the 
risks of employment checks and professional clinical 
registration .

55 . Each clinical division is further supported by Quality and 
Safety Leads working with the divisions and reporting to 
the Associate Director of Quality and Safety . 

56 . The Trust supports the whole workforce to ensure they 
are appropriately trained and equipped to manage risk 
relevant to their role and requirements . 
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57 . All staff are required to complete Core Skills Training 
(CST) and any essential to role training identified by 
their line manager . All managers have access to live CST 
compliance reports via the Learning Hub . Staff and their 
managers will receive 90, 60 and 30 day reminders of 
any CST due, enabling them to schedule this in .

58 . As part of the Appraisal process all staff have the 
opportunity to contribute to their development via 
the Learning and Development Journey and are able 
to further support their personal and professional 
development using the e-portfolio area of the Learning 
Hub .

59 . The Agency Group meets monthly to review the detail 
and identify appropriate actions to ensure maximum use 
and productivity of our workforce . These groups report 
into the Executive Oversight Committee that meets 
monthly to review agency spend and receive assurance 
that risks and hotspot areas are being addressed in 
order to reduce agency spend in line with the target set 
by NHS Improvement . There are multiple workstreams 
which underpin our programme to reduce agency spend 
and ensure the most effective use of our resources .

The Risk and Control framework
60 . The main thrust of the Trust Risk Management Strategy 

is to support the development of an organisation-wide 
and integrated risk management culture that not only 
embeds an awareness of safety and risk alertness 
across all levels of the Trust but empowers staff to 
frequently scan the horizon for emerging risks . This is 
also underpinned by an enterprise-wide and consistent 
approach which includes appropriate ranking, grading, 
prioritisation, management, escalation and governance 
of risks in accordance with best practices and the Good 
Governance Framework . This equally ensures that both 
operational and strategic risks are consistently managed 
and mitigated to acceptable or tolerable levels . 
Significant residual risks are openly accepted, monitored 
and managed by systematically addressing any gaps in 
control via action plans while reducing their potential 
impact to both individuals and the organisation as far 
as reasonably practicable . Analysis of the severity and 
likelihood of risks determines their overall ratings, level 
of management and governance . 

The overarching performance management framework 
for risk management within the organisation endeavours 
to ensure that there are appropriate controls in place 
to mitigate and manage any risks to the delivery of key 
performance targets . National priorities highlighted 
either by NHS Improvement, NHS England or the Care 
Quality Commission are systematically reported to the 
Trust Board while risks to the achievement of strategic 
objectives are monitored through the Board Assurance 
Framework . 

61 . The objective of the Risk Management Strategy is to 
support the development of a culture that not only 
embeds an awareness of safety and risk across all levels 
of the organisation, but ensures the application of a 
consistent approach to a risk management process, thus 
allowing risks to be ranked and graded in order that 
they may be prioritised . This minimises and mitigates 
risk to acceptable levels . Where significant risks 
remain, we can openly accept and monitor those risks, 
systematically addressing any gaps in control measures 
and reducing their impact to both individuals and the 
organisation so far as reasonably practicable .

62 . The identification of risk to the organisation achieving 
its objectives is undertaken by staff at all levels of 
the organisation . The Trust focuses on a proactive 
identification of risks although staff may also identify 
risks reactively from the following internal and external 
sources: 

a) Non Clinical Risk Assessments 

b) Incident reports, Deep Dives, Internal Reviews, 
Walkabouts etc . 

c) Complaints / Patient Experience or Claims Audits 
and work place surveys 

d) Clinical risk assessments 

e) Patient satisfaction surveys 

f) External/Internal Audits, Coroner Reports, External 
Visits, 

g) Regulatory Agency notices (e .g . CQC Reports, 
Safety Notices e .g . MHRA)

h) National Enquiry Reports, Benchmarking and Key 
Performance Indicators .

i) Financial

63 . An acceptable risk is one which the Trust Board or 
the Operational Delivery Board and the Divisions are 
prepared to accept provided that acceptable mitigation 
is put in place to address any negative impacts to 
the achievement of its objectives . Once a risk has 
been accepted, staff choose from a range of tools 
often referred as the 4Ts (Treat, Tolerate, Terminate 
and Transfer) as to how best to effectively control 
and mitigate the risk . Risk treatment is closely linked 
to prioritisation which is underpinned by available 
information and sound judgements . Deciding what is an 
acceptable risk involves identifying and assessing risks 
in relation to the impact . A risk is deemed acceptable 
when there are adequate control mechanisms in place 
and the risk has been mitigated and managed, as far as 
is considered to be reasonably practicable .

64 . As a general principle the Trust will seek to eliminate 
or control all risk which has a potential to harm its 
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patients, staff, and other stakeholders, which would 
result in loss of public confidence in the Trust and/or its 
partner agencies and/or would prevent the Trust from 
carrying out its functions on behalf of its local residents . 
However, the following list identifies areas which would 
never be deemed to be acceptable:

65 . Any act, decision or statement which; 

a) would result in death

b) would contravene Trust Standing Orders or Standing 
Financial Instructions 

c) would be illegal and/or breach of legislation 

d) would result in significant loss of Trust assets or 
resources 

e) would constitute wilful contravention of Trust 
policies or procedures 

f) would fail to observe key targets and objectives

66 . The risk grading system in use is adapted from the 
National Patient Safety Agency ‘Risk Matrix for Risk 
Managers’ and uses a scoring mechanism of a 5x5 grid 
approach to grade risks in respect of consequence and 
likelihood . The Trust uses DATIX to record incidents and 
risks and access to this system is via the Trust intranet, a 
web based package and an application for mobile users . 

67 . Each entry onto the DATIX system is allocated a 
manager to review and action the risk and monitor 
the effectiveness of the risk mitigation plan . Low and 
moderate risks (those scoring 1-8) are managed at a 
local level by wards and teams and the department 
manager using appropriate controls . These are recorded 
on the local risk register . Significant risks (those scoring 
9-12) are managed at a divisional level with assurance 
being sought through divisional structures and recorded 
on divisional risk registers . Extreme risks scoring 15 
or above escalated by the Divisions, are presented at 
the Risk Assurance Meeting for approval for inclusion 
onto the Corporate Risk Register . The Trust has clear 
risk governance arrangements in place which offer the 
platform for risks to be discussed, challenged, reviewed, 
scrutinised, approved and where necessary the score 
of the risk including title and description may be 
modified . These mechanisms leverage the opportunity 
for informed scrutiny, accountability and oversight in line 
with the Principles of Good Governance . Risks included 
on the corporate risk register are monitored via the 
Operational Delivery Board, Quality Committee and the 
Trust Board . 

68 . Directorate and Divisional risk registers are reviewed 
and discussed at Directorate and Divisional Quality & 
Safety Meetings and the Divisional Management Board 
respectively in line with the Trust Risk Management 
Strategy . The Trust-wide Risk Register and the Corporate 

Risk Register are both regularly reviewed, scrutinised 
and monitored at the Risk Assurance Meeting with the 
latter presented to other sub-committees of the Board 
as articulated above . The Trust focuses on ensuring 
that risks are locally led, owned and managed, thereby 
prioritising local ownership and engagement as tools for 
effective risk management and embedding an effective 
risk awareness culture across the organisation . It is 
everyone’s responsibility from ‘ward to board’ to actively 
manage risks However, it is the responsibility of the risk 
lead/handler to regularly refresh and update them as 
well as ensuring that appropriate actions are in place to 
mitigate them . Therefore effective governance sits with 
the appropriate committee as stated in the Trust Risk 
Management Strategy . 

69 . The Trusts key strategic risks in 2019-20 were:

a) Transformation and improvement schemes fail to 
deliver their anticipated benefits, thereby impeding 
the Trust’s ability to deliver safe personal and 
effective care .

b) Recruitment and workforce planning fail to deliver 
the Trust objectives

c) Lack of effective engagement within the partnership 
organisations of the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) for Lancashire and South Cumbria and the 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) for Pennine 
Lancashire results in a reduced ability to improve 
the health and wellbeing of our communities .

d) The Trust fails to achieve a sustainable financial 
position and appropriate financial risk rating in line 
with the Single Oversight Framework

e) The Trust fails to earn significant autonomy and 
maintain a positive reputational standing as a 
result of failure to fulfil the regulatory requirements 
defined in the NHS Constitution and relevant 
legislation .

f) Covid-19: this is a new risk that has been added 
to the Board Assurance Framework in March 2020 
as a result of the global pandemic related to the 
Covid-19 .

70 . The consistently high scoring risks in 2019-20 related 
to risks ’b’ and ‘d’ above . As a result of the gaps in 
assurance for these particular risks the Finance and 
Performance Committee and Quality Committee 
agendas were structured to specifically focus on these 
elements . Summary reports from the Committees were 
provided to the Trust Board covering each of these 
elements to ensure that the Trust Board, both through 
the Board Assurance Framework, and the reports of 
sub-committees were continually sighted on the risks 
and the actions being taken to mitigate them and the 
positive assurances being received in a timely manner .
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71 . The Trust tests for gaps in assurance via the following 
actions:

a) Independent assurance provided to or requested 
by the Audit Committee from internal and external 
auditors

b) Independent assurance provided to the Quality 
Committee and supporting subcommittees from 
external reviews, inspections and assessments and 
monitoring of subsequent action plans to address 
any gaps identified

c) Review by internal departments such as the Quality 
and Safety Unit with Clinical Effectiveness, Clinical 
Audit and Divisional teams and Directorates 
reporting to Board sub-committees and the 
Operational Delivery Board 

d) Rapid responsive reviews of areas of clinical practice 
in response to incidents, complaints and concerns 
whether these are raised internally by staff or 
externally by stakeholders such as Coroners and 
Commissioners .

72 . A range of other actions designed to address identified 
gaps in controls and assurances have been implemented 
throughout the year including:

a) Deteriorating Patients: Implementation of a Trust-
wide approach to improve the recognition and the 
response to the deteriorating patients

b) End of life care: Optimise learning from complaints 
to improve end of life care

c) Hand Hygiene: Increase compliance with hand 
hygiene and infection prevention guidance through 
‘Prompt to Protect’ improvement package

73 . Risk management is embedded in the activity of the 
organisation and the Trust has continued to take 
significant steps to encourage incident reporting . The 
Trust has signed up to and promotes the ‘Speak Out 
Safely’ campaign to encourage an open culture both 
of raising concerns and learning from them across the 
organisation . The Trust uses safety huddles across all 
clinical areas and Share to Care meetings where staff 
meet on a weekly basis to share good practice and 
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learn from areas of improvement identified in their own 
practice and from other services across the organisation . 

74 . The Trust seeks to actively engage with a wide variety 
of stakeholders including the Shadow Governors and 
Trust members to consult and communicate with them 
on issues of mutual concern . The Trust recognises that 
there are significant benefits to be gained from this 
engagement . The Trust also proactively engages with 
statutory and other stakeholders on a regular basis 
including staff, Healthwatch, Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, Local Overview and Scrutiny Committees and 
local education providers . The Trust has held regular 
stakeholder events throughout the year and invited 
stakeholders to meet with the senior leadership teams 
to ensure transparency of decision making processes 
and appropriate consultation takes place .

Workforce Strategies
75 . The Trust’s workforce strategy is cognisant of the aims 

of the NHS Long Term Plan and the recommendations 
from ‘Developing Workforce Safeguards’ by ensuring 
that the Trust maintains safe staffing levels and 
effectively deploys its workforce . 

76 . The Trust has a divisionally owned, multi-disciplinary 
annual workforce plan which is developed through 
the Business Planning process, and triangulates these 
plans with our Clinical Strategy, Safely Releasing Costs 
Programme, key service developments, guidance from 
bodies such as the Royal Colleges and incorporates the 
outputs of the annual professional judgement reviews 
in respect of registered and non-registered nurse and 
midwifery staffing in line with the guidance from the 
National Quality Board (NQB) to ensure that we deploy 
the right staff with the right skills at the right place and 
time . 

The Trust Board has oversight of the workforce plan 
which is signed off annually by the Chief Executive 
and executive leaders . The Finance and Performance 
Committee acts as an assurance committee of the 
Board and receives regular reports detailing workforce 
related metrics, including matters relating to embedding 
the recommendations of the Developing Workforce 
Safeguards report . In addition to the annual workforce 
planning cycle, the workforce plan is a dynamic 
plan which is reviewed as and when required as 
a consequence of changing service need which is 
identified on an on-going basis through the business 
case process .

77 . To ensure that the Trust effectively deploys its 
workforce, we have developed detailed action plans 
in respect of minimizing the need for agency usage 
and increasing our eRostering levels of attainment and 
oversight of this is held at Executive level through the 

Agency Group meetings that reports into the Finance 
and Performance Committee through the regular 
workforce report . The Trust has also embedded an 
electronic job planning process which provides evidence 
of available clinical capacity across the seven day 
working week and assurance is provided through the 
Integrated Performance Report which is considered 
by the Finance and Performance Committee on an 
exception basis and by the Board bi-monthly .

78 . The Trust continues to consider the use of emerging 
roles in its future workforce through the use of evidence 
based tools and data, adopting the Health Education 
England STAR tool to support wider workforce 
transformation, which has 5 main points of focus – 
Supply, Upskilling, New Roles, New Ways of Working 
and Leadership . This is further supported across the 
Trust and across the Integrated Care System (ICS) using 
the Workforce Repository and Planning Tool (WRaPT) 
which is an activity-based workforce capacity and 
demand modelling tool which allows managers to test 
scenarios and develop new models of care . This ensures 
that the Trust has a workforce plan which is safe and 
sustainable . 

79 . The Trust also actively benchmarks its performance 
against key workforce indicators through the data held 
in the Model Hospital and the Board has oversight of 
all of all workforce issues and risks through monthly 
reporting through the Operational Delivery Board (ODB) . 

CQC Registration
80 . The Trust remains registered unconditionally with the 

Care Quality Commission to provide the following 
regulated activities:

a) Diagnostic and screening procedures

b) Family planning services

c) Management of supply of blood and blood derived 
products

d) Maternity and midwifery services

e) Nursing care

f) Surgical procedures

g) Termination of pregnancies

h) Treatment of disease, disorder or injury

81 . The Trust is rated as ‘Good’ with some areas of 
‘Outstanding’ following the most recent CQC inspection 
in August and September 2018 .

82 . The Trust is fully compliant with the registration 
requirements of the Care Quality Commission .
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Declarations of Interest
83 . The Trust has published in its website an up-to-date 

register of interests, including gifts and hospitality, for 
decision-making staff (as defined by the Trust) within 
the past twelve months, as required by the ‘Managing 
Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’ guidance and can be 
found on the Trust’s website under ‘Publication Scheme’ 
(Section 6: Lists and Registers) . 

NHS Pension Scheme Statement of Compliance
84 . As an employer with staff entitled to membership of 

the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place 
to ensure all employer obligations contained within the 
Scheme regulations are complied with . This includes 
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s 
contributions and payments into the Scheme are in 
accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member 
Pension Scheme records are accurately updated 
in accordance with the timescales detailed in the 
Regulations .

Diversity and Equality
85 . Control measures are in place to ensure that all the 

organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and 
human rights legislation are complied with .

Sustainable Development
86 . The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a 

sustainable development management plan in place 
which takes account of UK Climate Projections 2018 
(UKCP18) . The trust ensures that its obligations under 
the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting 
requirements are complied with .

87 . The Trust is improving the performance of its estate 
by upgrading or replacing aged and dilapidated stock 
with new or refurbished buildings with inherently better 
energy performance .

88 . The Trust has also adopted the Building Research 
Establishment Environment Assessment Method 
(BREEAM) healthcare toolkit for all significant new 
and refurbishment building projects . The most recent 
example is the new £15 .6 million Ophthalmology Unit, 
General Outpatients, Maxillofacial Department and 
ancillary services facility at Burnley General Teaching 
Hospital (Phase 8) which is rated at a BREEAM standard 
of ‘Very Good’ .

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
of the use of resources 
89 . The Audit Committee is charged with reviewing the 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use 
of resources throughout the course of the year and 
ensuring that there is a robust system of integrated 
governance and internal control across all spheres of the 
Trust’s activity . Having reviewed the regular reporting 
of the Audit Committee on its activities presented to 
the Trust Board I am satisfied that it has met these 
requirements during the course of the year and assisted 
in the further development and improvement in the 
embedding of internal control systems . Together with 
the comprehensive programme of quality improvement 
work for the care of patients reporting to the Quality 
Committee and the Trust Board I am satisfied that there 
are clear lines of governance and accountability within 
the Trust for the overall quality of clinical care and these 
are reflected in the achievements highlighted in the 
Trust’s annual Quality Account . 

Information governance 
90 . The Trust has an Information Governance (IG) Steering 

Group charged with ensuring the effective operation 
of safeguards for, and appropriate use of, patient and 
personal information and compliance with the NHS 
Data Security Protection (DSP) Toolkit . The Trust has a 
policy of proactively managing incidents and reporting 
Information Governance Incidents and near misses 
to the Information Commissioner when required by 
guidance and legislation . The Trust has self-reported 
four incidents in year . The Information Commissioner 
has seen fit to take no further action in relation to these 
incidents and near misses reported .

91 . The Trust has undertaken a comprehensive review of 
its declaration of compliance with the requirements 
of the NHS DSP Toolkit and is expecting to declare 
standards met against all DSP Standards of Health and 
Care Assessment Assertions 2019-20 . This has been 
monitored at the Finance and Performance Committee 
during the course of the year and reported to the Trust 
Board . The IG Steering Group reports to the Trust’s 
Audit Committee and reports are provided to the SIRO 
on an on-going basis . Information Governance (Personal 
Data Breaches) incidents escalated to the ICO 2019-20 
are detailed below:
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Date of Incident 
(Month Reported 

to ICO)

Type of 
breach

Number 
Affected

How Many 
Patients Were 

Informed
Lessons Learned

08/11/2019

Personal 
Data Breach 

(Unauthorised 
Access)

1 1

Trust wide communications to remind staff of policies

Reviewed warning messages on key systems in 
relation to unauthorised access

Communication to all staff reminding them of 
responsibilities and repercussion which could result in 
legal action / dismissals/criminal record etc

04/10/2019

Personal 
Data Breach 

(Unauthorised 
Access)

2 2

Trust wide communications to remind staff of policies

Reviewed warning messages on key systems in 
relation to unauthorised access

Communication to all staff reminding them of 
responsibilities and repercussion which could result in 
legal action / dismissals/criminal record etc

21/06/2019

Personal 
Data Breach 

(Unauthorised 
Access)

1 1

Trust wide communications to remind staff of policies

Reviewed warning messages on key systems in 
relation to unauthorised access

Communication to all staff reminding them of 
responsibilities and repercussion which could result in 
legal action / dismissals/criminal record etc

92 . The Trust has invested significantly over the past 12 
months in cyber defences to ensure personal data is 
kept as secure as possible, with major investments in 
software such as Vectra (AI to monitor network traffic), 
new Firepower and Checkpoint Firewalls and enhanced 
Active Directory management . In working to obtain 
Cyber Essentials accreditation, the Trust has been liaising 
with Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) to externally 
monitor, support and validate the actions taken to 
ensure compliance . The Trust successfully submitted its 
DSP toolkit for 2020 and was independently verified . 
Where possible, all systems have been brought into 
central management by the Informatics Systems team 
and those that remain in divisions are now registered on 
our central database . 

Although the majority of the electronic systems in the 
Trusts are legacy, regular Business Continuity and Data 
Quality Audits take place and such audits are available 
for review . All patching and system updates are tested 
prior to roll out and ELHT responds to Care Cert alerts 
well within the required timescales . New backup 
systems have been procured and are in the process 
of installation (completion Aug 2020), to provide 
additional levels of assurance should there be a system 
failure . Dedicated Information Governance, Subject 
Access Request, Cyber and FOI teams exist within the 
Informatics Department and a report is produced to 
each months IG steering group re progress . Weekly Data 
Quality reviews take place and data quality issues are 

addressed by on call and full time staff during ‘down 
times’ . All systems have audit trails and regular reports 
are produced and access checked to ensure compliance . 
The biggest risk to the Trust remains the absence of a 
full core electronic patient record including the lack of 
an electronic prescribing and administration system . 
These risks are identified within the Trust Datix system, 
the corporate risk register and highlighted at ICS level . 
All new systems are subject to a full Data Protection 
Impact Assessment (DPIA) and signed DPIA’s . All clinical 
systems have a full Clinical Safety Case completed by 
the Chief Nursing Information Officer (CNIO) and these 
are available for review and audit . Any breaches of 
data security are initially managed by the IG team and 
escalated to the Data Protection Officer (DPO), Senior 
Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Caldicott Guardian . 

Advice is sought from the ICO as required . A full training 
programme re patient confidentiality, Information 
Governance and Cyber Security is undertaken by staff 
with compliance numbers produced monthly . The 
Informatics department issues regular and timely cyber 
alert emails to staff and undertakes simulated ‘phishing’ 
attacked to manage and review compliance . Finally, 
the Trust commissions external agencies to undertake 
regular system penetration tests to understand system 
vulnerabilities . The most recent test indicated a high 
level of protection from outside attack was being 
maintained . Results are available for audit .
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Cyber Security Incidents escalated to the ICO 2019-20.
93 . There was one cyber security incident that occurred in 

the 2019-20 year which required escalation to the ICO, 
it is detailed below:

Date of Incident 
(Month Reported 

to ICO)
Type of breach Number 

Affected

How Many 
Patients Were 

Informed
Lessons Learned

01/08/2019
Network Information 
Services Directive (NIS) 
Phishing Email

2 2
Communication to all levels of staff 
reminding them of cyber security policies 
and guidance

Annual Quality Account
94 . The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 

and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality 
Accounts for each financial year .

95 . The Trust publishes an annual Quality Account which 
is subject to a review by the Trust’s External Auditors, 
Messrs Grant Thornton, who are able to provide 
independent assurance on the data that is published 
and the systems that are used to collate the information 
presented in the Quality Account and in reports to 
the Board and its Committees on a regular basis . The 
Quality Account is reviewed by the Audit Committee, 
the Quality Committee and the Operational Delivery 
Board prior to a recommendation being made to the 
Trust Board that the Annual Quality Report should be 
released for publication . The Quality Account is also 
reviewed and commented upon by our health and social 
care partners to ensure that there is a consistent view 
on the quality both of the data that is published and the 
quality of the patient experience of our services .

96 . Among the controls in place to ensure the accuracy of 
data used in both the Quality Account and on-going 
internal and external reporting of data are:

a) Specific policies on the recording of data and quality 
indicators including 

i . Root Cause Analysis Policy

ii . Risk Management Policy

iii . Clinical Records Policy

iv . Production of Patient Information

v . Information Governance Policy

vi . Clinical Audit Policy

b) Continued development and expansion of near real 
time dashboard reporting systems with reporting of 
quality indicators at every level from ward to Board

c) Training programmes to ensure staff have the 
appropriate skills to record and report quality 
indicators including training on particular software 
and hardware systems, Information Governance 
Toolkit training and corporate and departmental 

induction and mandatory training

d) A rolling programme of audits on quality reporting 
systems and metrics

e) Alignment of the internal audit, clinical audit and 
counter fraud work plans on a risk based approach 
linked to the Board Assurance Framework and the 
Corporate Risk Register .

97 . The Trust utilises its quality and risk associated 
committee structure to routinely review the data and 
information that is included within the Quality Report . 
This provides the Board with assurance that the Quality 
Report presents a balanced view of the action taken by 
the Trust in year to ensure the provision of high quality, 
safe and effective services .

98 . Our quality priorities for 2019-20 were:

a) Support safe discharges to continuing care

b) Ensure safe transfers of care between providers

c) Continue the work on improving the recognition 
and response to acutely deteriorating patients

d) Continue the work reducing the number of patients 
who fall in our care .

Review of Effectiveness 
99 . As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for 

reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control . My review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control is informed by the work of the internal 
auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers 
and clinical leads within the NHS Trust who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the internal control framework . I have drawn on the 
information provided in this annual report, as well as 
the content of the quality report attached to the annual 
report and other performance information available to 
me . My review is also informed by comments made by 
the external auditors in their management letter and 
other reports . I have been advised on the implications 
of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control by the Trust Board, the 
Audit Committee and the Quality Committee and a 
plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place .
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100 . The Head of Internal Audit opinion by Mersey Internal 
Audit found that: ‘Substantial Assurance can be given 
that that there is a good system of internal control 
designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently .’

101 . During the year 17 internal audit reports have been 
presented to the Trust by Mersey Internal Audit Agency 
(MIAA) in 2019-20 . Of those, three audits received 
either moderate or limited assurance ratings, they were 
noted to be: 

a) Consultant Job Plans (limited assurance)

b) Financial Systems Hosted Services (Moderate 
Assurance)

c) DNA CPR (Moderate Assurance)

102 . Appropriate actions have been or are being undertaken 
to address the recommendations set out within the 
limited assurance reports and management are satisfied 
that there are no significant control or governance 
weaknesses identified as a result of the limited 
assurance reports .

103 . The Assurance Framework and the internal auditor’s 
opinion on the effectiveness of the systems and 
processes supporting the Assurance Framework provide 
me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
manage the risks to the organisation in achieving its 
principal objectives have been reviewed .

104 . My review is also informed by internal and external 
information including:

a) Detailed reports from the Trust’s internal auditors 
(Mersey Internal Audit Agency) and external 
auditors (Grant Thornton)

b) Performance and financial reports to the Trust 
Board and its subcommittees

c) NHS Improvement performance management 
reports

d) NHS England Area Team performance management 
reports

e) Clinical Commissioning Groups performance 
management reports

f) Governance reports to the Quality Committee, Audit 
Committee and Trust Board

g) Compliance with action plans as part of our 
performance management arrangements

h) Patient Led Assessments of the Care Environment

i) Care Quality Commission Report

j) Reports from external inspections and assessments 
during the course of the year from bodies such as 
Royal Colleges, Health Education North West etc .

k) Information Governance risk assessment against the 
Information Governance Toolkit

l) Information Commissioners Office Audit (October 
2017)

m) Feedback from local and national staff and patient 
surveys

n) The work of the Executive team within the 
organisation who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the internal 
control framework within their portfolios .

105 . Where reports have identified limitations in assurance 
these have been acted upon and in relation to auditors’ 
reports have been monitored by the Audit Committee . 
The Trust Board and its subcommittees have been 
actively engaged in the on-going development 
and monitoring of the Assurance Framework and 
will continue to shape the iterative development of 
the Assurance Framework and its associated risk 
management systems and processes throughout  
2019-20 . 

Significant Issues 
106 . The following issues have prejudiced the achievement of 

the priorities set during 2019-20 for the Trust:

a) Financial Position: The Trust was able to meet its 
financial objectives for 2019-20 delivering a £5 .1 
million surplus and living within its Capital Resource 
Limit . Prior to Covid-19 pandemic the Trust board 
agreed a draft annual financial plan of a £36 .4 
million deficit, which included a Waste Reduction 
Programme of 3 .1% amounting to a value of £17 
million . Since the submission, the planning round 
has been suspended for the NHS . Initially for the 
first four months of the financial year, NHS England/
Improvement have set block contracts for all 
providers with no expectations of efficiency savings . 
Further guidance on the position for the entire 
2020-21 financial year is expected imminently . The 
following measures are in place:

b) Workforce – including staffing, supporting 
attendance and Health and Wellbeing

i . Mitigating actions taken include:

• On-going Global Learners Programme (GLP) 
through Health Education England (HEE) to 
recruit international nurses – as at the end 
of March 2020, the Trust has had 48 nurses 
start through the GLP and has a further 14 
candidates in the pipeline . 

• Continuing to reduce time to hire through the 
Trust Vital Signs Programme – the Trust has 
continued to improve upon it’s time to hire 
figures, reducing by a further day in 2019-20 . 
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The Trust actively monitors time to hire figures 
in the monthly Agency Group meetings which 
allows us to manage avoidable delays as well 
as highlight areas for process improvement . 

• Use of a number of recruitment platforms 
which have reduced the number of vacancies 
within the last six months and are still helping 
to recruit to the hard to fill roles

• Increased advertising through the BMJ for all 
medical posts

• Increased internal bank recruitment to reduce 
reliance on agency supply – significant 
Healthcare Assistant Bank recruitment 
undertaken in December 2019 and January 
2020 which yielded an additional 220 
workers for the Trust . The Trust has continued 
to increase agency to bank conversion for 
Medical staff .

• Regular reviews of all medical rotas against 
establishment and budget and review of long 
term agency workers in line with recruitment 
activity

• Completing the implementation of the Allocate 
rota system for Medics in order that the Trust 
has clearer oversight of its medical workforce 
for the purposes of planning

• A review of the end to end governance 
process for Medical bank/agency bookings, 
rates agreed and off cap/off framework 
requests

• Ongoing collaboration across Trusts in the 
North West in relation to options such as a 
collaborative medical bank and harmonisation 
of rates . Workforce Transformation strategy 
which will support the reduction in vacancies 
through the use of the HEE STAR tool to 
support workforce transformation, which has 
5 main points of focus – Supply, Upskilling, 
New Roles, New Ways of Working and 
Leadership . This is further supported across 
the Trust and across the ICS using the 
Workforce Repository and Planning Tool 
(WRaPT) which is an activity-based workforce 
capacity and demand modelling tool which 
allows managers to test scenarios and develop 
new models of care

Supporting Attendance

• The Trust has a detailed action plan in place 
to address sickness absence and has identified 
high impact areas to support improvement, as 
outlined below:

• The creation of an Attendance Team at the 
end of 2019 to identify hotspot areas (sickness 
over 6%) and work with Directorates on 
identifying reasons and developing relevant 
action plans

• Newly developed training for managers, with 
e-learning to be developed in 2020/21

• Real time absence reporting to be rolled out  
in 2020/21

Health & Wellbeing

• The Trust launched its new Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy in January 2019 & the 
EASE Service is one way in which we are 
committed to support staff with their health 
and wellbeing . EASE stands for Early Access 
to Support for Employees . It is an early 
intervention service provided by Occupational 
Health for all staff who are unable to attend 
work due to musculoskeletal (MSK) or mental 
health (MH) conditions

• The Staff Health & Wellbeing Strategy Action 
Plan identifies 6 key themes to holistically 
support people at work . These are Leadership 
& Management, Data & Communication, 
Healthy Working Environment, Mental health, 
Musculoskeletal (MSK) and Healthy Lifestyles .

c) Patient Flow

i . Mitigating actions taken include:

• Development of Same Day Emergency Care 
facilities for:

– Acute Respiratory conditions

– Older Persons Rapid Assessment

– Medical Ambulatory Emergency Care

– Surgical Ambulatory Emergency Care

• Same Day Emergency Care Facilities are now 
operational 7 days a week with Streaming 
of patients following triage on arrival in the 
Emergency Department and Urgent Treatment 
Centres here at ELHT . Clinical Pathways are 
in place to support the appropriate streaming 
of patients to the right service to meet their 
needs on arrival . 

• GP referrals are centralised in Acute Medicine 
through the Medical Emergency Ambulatory 
Care Unit with calls being taken by a clinician 
who is able to access Consultant advice 
to support decision making . Patients also 
have the option to be offered Hot Clinic 
appointments and diagnostics in a planned 
way to avoid unnecessary admission . 
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• A North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) 
Low Risk Chest Pain Pathway is now in place 
which allows direct access for Ambulance 
Crews to the Medical Ambulatory Emergency 
Care Unit for a number of patients therefore 
supporting the reduction in occupancy within 
ED .

• In addition, the Trust is working to redevelop 
its two Acute Medical Units (AMU) to be 
sited together and closer to the emergency 
department . This is scheduled for delivery in 
December 2020 .

• In relation to the point above, work is ongoing 
with clinical teams to review the Medical 
Model of Care . The developments will provide 
new ways of working to support inpatients in 
accessing the right specialist care in a timely 
way which will help to reduce their length of 
stay (LOS) . 

• Covid-19 has accelerated the Trust’s need 
and ability to work differently . It has allowed 
work plans to be brought forward, and 
cross-divisional working has been enhanced 
which will assist the care delivery within the 
new unit . Examples of this include: admission 
avoidance, speciality in-reach and reduction in 
length of stay . 

• The Trust is also in the process of improving 
its discharge processes including Delayed 
Transfers of Care (DTOC) and ‘Senior review, 
All patients, Flow, Early discharge, Review’ 
(SAFER) work .

• Redeployment or necessary modifications 
to the working environment for vulnerable 
staff during the response to Covid-19, e .g . 
home working or redeployment to lower risk 
services/areas . 

• The Integrated Discharge Service (IDS) has 
successfully maintained a healthy discharge 
position . The position is closely monitored and 
reported daily to ensure that any barriers to 
discharge are managed in a timely manner . 
The Complex Case Management Team has 
operated a 7 day, 8am-8pm service . 

• The IDS service manager has worked closely 
with care/residential home managers to 
support the timely discharge of patients by 
providing infection control advice and ongoing 
support via clinical monitoring of patients .

• We have also developed additional work 
streams to support internal flow and capacity 
and an external case management service 
to support the increased discharge to assess 

activity this needs to be further developed 
prior to autumn 2020 as a key priority to 
support winter preparedness .

• Implementation of Home First (Discharge to 
Assess) model which has been subsequently 
expanded 

• Staff were redeployed from other service 
areas to ensure that our Home First Pathway 
remained our default discharge pathway . 

• Given the implementation of the Rapid 
Discharge Guidance there has not been a 
need for the MADE events to review the 
trigger list though there continues to be 
close multi-agency monitoring of discharge 
pathways and potential delays .

• Redesign of clinical flow arrangements 
within the Trust, including Control Room/Co-
ordination Centre established within the Trust .

• A programme of improvement has 
commenced looking to embed SAFER 
principles across the organisation . 2 rapid 
improvement events highlighted a number 
of improvement workstreams including the 
implementation of a live sitrep (situation 
report), revised bed meetings and improving 
utilisation of the discharge lounge . During 
the COVID pandemic the clinical flow team 
have embraced lean techniques in the use of 
visual management to oversee management 
of COVID bed occupancy and implemented 
virtual bed meetings to ensure social 
distancing .

Conclusion
107 . In line with the guidance on the definition of the 

significant control issues I have no significant internal 
control issues to declare within this year’s statement . 
The system of internal control has been in place in 
East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust for the year ended 
31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts .

108 . My review confirms that East Lancashire Hospitals 
NHS Trust has a generally sound system of governance 
and stewardship that supports the achievement of its 
policies, aims and objectives . 

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020
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iv. Directors’ Report 
As at 31 March 2020 The Trust Board comprises the 
Chairman, six Non-Executive Directors and five Executive 
Directors with voting rights as detailed in the Board profile 
below . In addition the Trust has four Associate Non-
Executive Directors . The Director of Human Resources 
and Organisational Development, the three Directors of 
Operations, Director of Communications and Engagement and 
the Director of Corporate Governance/Company Secretary also 
attend the Trust Board to give advice within their professional 
remits . The Trust Board functions as a corporate decision-
making body and Executive and Non-Executive Directors are 
full and equal members .

The Trust Board provides strategic leadership to the Trust 
and ensures that the Trust exercises its functions effectively, 
efficiently and economically . The Board monitors the 
arrangements to maintain the quality and safety of the 
Trust’s services, including ensuring processes are in place for 
managing risks .

Non-Executive and Associate Non-Executive Directors have 
a particular role in scrutinising the performance of the Trust’s 
management in meeting agreed objectives, and ensuring 
that robust systems of financial control and risk management 
are in place . The Non-Executive Directors of the Trust are 
appointed by NHS Improvement, acting on behalf of the 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care . They are each 
appointed for a four-year term which may be renewed subject 

to satisfactory performance . Non-Executive Directors are not 
employees of the Trust and do not have responsibility for 
day-to-day management; this is the role of the Chief Executive 
and Executive Directors but as a ‘unitary Board’, Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors share equal responsibility for the 
Board’s decisions, and all share responsibility for the direction 
and control of the organisation .

The Trust Board meets six times a year and meetings are open 
to the public except when confidential information is being 
discussed . Details of public Board meetings are available, 
including minutes and papers from previous meetings, on the 
Trust Board section of our website (www .elht .nhs .uk) .

The Trust Board delegates its authority to take decisions 
about the Trust and its services in accordance with a Scheme 
of Delegation which is available on our website within the 
publication section in our Standing Orders and Standing 
Financial Instructions .

The Executive Directors are appointed by a Committee 
comprising the Chief Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
following a competitive interview process .

Information on personal data related incidents that have been 
formally reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office 
(ICO) can be found in the Annual Governance Statement 
section of this report .
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Voting Board Members

Professor Eileen Fairhurst, Chairman February 2014 to present

Experience
Eileen Fairhurst was appointed to East Lancashire Hospitals Trust in February, 2014 . She is a 
highly experienced Chairman and has chaired a number of large, complex public and third sector 
organisations, including Acute, Specialised Mental Health and Primary Care Trusts . Within six 
months of being appointed, she led the Trust out of Special Measures and the Trust now has 
a CQC rating of ‘Good’ She established Salford PCT in 2001 which became one of the highest 
performing PCTs in the country . Subsequently, she was Chairman of NHS Greater Manchester, the 
largest PCT cluster in England . 

She has a national profile for partnership working and the governance of organisations  .Her 
partnership working in health has involved regeneration of localities . Her expertise in the practice 
of regeneration is mirrored in her academic profile with a number of publications and conference 
presentations .

Eileen has always ensured that perspectives of patients and communities contribute to service 
developments . She has championed a number of whole systems innovative service re-design 
programmes, including mental health, children’s and women’s health, urgent care and the Greater 
Manchester Healthier Together programme .

Over the years she has been a regular contributor to development programmes for NEDs 
and Aspirant Executive Directors and Chairs and to national conferences on Governance and 
leadership . Eileen has been awarded an MBE in recognition of her contribution to the NHS . A 
former Professor in Public Health at the University of Salford, she has an international research 
profile . She is a Founding Fellow of the British Society of Gerontology .

In December 2018 Eileen received an Honorary Doctorate to acknowledge the significant 
contribution she has made to the development of UCLan’s School of Medicine and her academic 
achievements in the field of Health and Wellbeing . Currently, as a Visiting Professor at the 
University of Chester, she is developing programmes on governance in the public sector .

Qualifications
BA (Econ), PhD, DSc, Fellow of the Royal Society of Medicine

Mr Kevin McGee, Chief Executive, September 2014 to present

Experience
Kevin is a qualified accountant with over 34 years’ experience working in healthcare, with 22 of 
those years being at executive level .

Prior to joining East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust, Kevin held a range of roles including Chief 
Executive at both George Eliot Hospital NHS Trust and Heart of Birmingham Primary Care Trust . He 
has also held a range of Director positions, including Director of Finance and Chief Operating Officer 
in large acute hospitals, and Director of Commissioning and Performance Management at a Teaching 
Primary Care Trust .

Kevin sits on the North West Leadership Academy Board and is a strong advocate of Compassionate 
Leadership . Kevin also sits on the Senior Leadership Forum for Pennine Lancashire and chairs the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Chief Executives’ Provider Forum . Recently Kevin has become a 
member of the ACCEA and sits on the National Guardian’s Office Advisory Working Group .

Kevin received an Honorary Fellowship from UCLan to acknowledge the significant contribution 
made to the development of the University’s School of Medicine through the instrumental strategic 
support he has provided to UCLan’s partnership with ELHT . 

Qualifications
BA (Hons), MSc, Member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
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Mrs Patricia Anderson, Non-Executive Director, June 2018 to May 2019 and October 2019 to Present (Leave 
of absence taken May 2019 to October 2019)

Experience
Trish has over 30 years of experience working in health and social care services and has enjoyed 
roles across a wide range of settings, including executive Board appointments . She has proven 
ability in both the provision and the commissioning of services, strong negotiation and influencing 
skills, in addition to a strong working knowledge of the key challenges that the NHS is facing . In 
addition, Trish is skilled in identifying and managing risks within and across organisations . She is 
clear that the overall goal is to improve health outcomes for the local population and recognises 
that the Trust will be judged on that delivery . 

Trish was the Accountable Officer for Wigan Borough CCG until her early retirement in mid-2018, 
contributing greatly to the development of a strategic commissioning function across the CCG 
and the Local Authority . She is keen to maintain her links to the NHS whilst championing quality 
patient services and is committed to working in a supportive capacity as a Non-Executive Director 
at the Trust, providing a constructive perspective as a member of the Board .

Qualifications
BA Joint Honours, CQSW/DipSW, ASW

Professor Graham Baldwin, Non-Executive Director, January 2020 to present

Experience
Graham is the Vice-Chancellor at the University of Central Lancashire (UCLan) . As Vice-
Chancellor, Graham is responsible for the leadership and management of the University within the 
principles laid down by the Board of Governors . 

Graham is a member of Universities UK, a director of the University Alliance and Deputy Chair of 
the University and College Employers Association . He recently returned to UCLan after spending 
five years as the Vice-Chancellor of Solent University in Southampton, where he oversaw the 
development and opening of a number of complex and industry-leading programmes, including a 
new indoor sports complex and nursing and maritime simulation centres . 

Graham’s previous roles have included the Deputy Vice-Chancellor at UCLan and Dean of 
Academic Development and Director for Cumbria . In addition to academic roles, Graham has been 
employed as the National Skills Research Director for the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority at 
Sellafield Limited . 

Graham also worked closely with partner institutions, particularly in Hong Kong, China and the 
Middle East, and he received an Outstanding Foreign Expert Award from Hebei Province, China . 
He has previously been appointed as Honorary Professor at Hebei University in Baoding, and was 
appointed as a Visiting Professor by the National Academy for Education Administration, Beijing .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), PGCE, MSc, Ph .D
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Mr Stephen Barnes, Non-Executive Director, January 2015 to present

Experience
Stephen Barnes was appointed to the Trust Board on 1 January 2015 . He has been a local 
government chief executive in Lancashire for the past 22 years and prior to that was a director of 
finance in local government for six years . Stephen is an accountant by profession, a past President 
of the North West and North Wales region of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy and a past Examiner of the final part of the Professional Accountancy Examination .

During his time in Local Government, Stephen has gained broad experience in strategic 
leadership, partnership working and joint venture initiatives across the private sector, including 
economic development and regeneration services and community development and engagement .

Stephen is also currently chair of Nelson and Colne college and a board member of the 
Association of Colleges and chair of the Nelson Town Deal Regeneration Board . Stephen was 
reappointed for a further four years in January 2017 .

Qualifications
Member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

Mrs Michelle Brown, Executive Director of Finance, August 2019 to present

Experience
Michelle joined the Trust in December 2006 from Calderstones NHS Trust, where she was 
Assistant Director of Finance . She was substantively appointed to the role of Executive Director 
of Finance for the Trust in September 2019, having ten years’ experience in the Deputy Director 
position . She is a qualified accountant and member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) . An alumni of the National Financial Management Training Scheme, 
Michelle has trained and worked in a number of NHS organisations across North Wales and 
Lancashire, including North Wales Health Authority, Glan Clwyd and Wrexham Maelor hospitals 
and Burnley Healthcare NHS Trust .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), Member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

Mr Martin Hodgson, Executive Director of Service Development and Deputy Chief Executive, November 
2009 to present

Experience
Martin joined the Trust in November 2009, from Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust, where he was Executive Director of Children’s Services . He has considerable 
operational management experience and of implementing major strategic change, including the 
reconfiguration of children’s services across Manchester .

Martin takes a lead role in the development of strategy, planning and working with partners to 
improve services both in the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) and the 
Pennine Lancashire Integrated Care Partnership (ICS) .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resource Management
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Dr Jawad Husain, Executive Medical Director, February 2020 to Present

Experience
Jawad joined East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust as Executive Medical Director in February 2020 . 
Jawad is a practicing urological surgeon with extensive general management experience . He also 
has a strong track record of achievements in change management, service improvement and 
innovation . He is a team player with a reputation for building successful partnerships, developing 
strategy and leading delivery within a complex environment . A visible leader, able to engage with 
colleagues on all levels with integrity and enthusiasm .

He started his career as a consultant urological surgeon at Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh NHS 
FT in 2002 . He has been trained in the North West region and has a sub-speciality interest in 
management of stone diseases . Jawad established a fully comprehensive stone service at his 
organization and helped develop the urological department . 

He takes a special interest in patient safety and clinical governance . Jawad strongly believes in 
value based leadership and helped in embedding a culture which empowered staff and engaged 
them in improving safety, quality and performance . 

Jawad chaired the Surgical North West Sector for Healthier Together and has been instrumental 
in leading the group to design and deliver pathways for management of surgical patients . His 
collaborative working across organizational boundaries is reflective of his leadership skills in 
bringing people together to deliver the best in them . 

Jawad takes a keen interest in teaching and training and has been the Surgical Tutor for the Royal 
College of Surgeons . He has been an examiner for the University of Manchester Medical School 
and mentor for the medical students, educational and clinical supervisor for urology and surgical 
trainees, and a panel member for National Selector for core surgical trainees .

He is a Clinical Advisor to the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman, NCAS case manager 
and case investigator and Responsible Officer .

Qualifications
M .B,B .S, FRCS (I), FRCS (Urol), Membership of BAUS, MPS, BMA

Miss Naseem Malik, Non-Executive Director, September 2016 to present

Experience
Naseem started her public sector career in Local Government . She is a former Commissioner at the 
IPCC and has held NED roles at Blackburn with Darwen Primary Care Trust and Lancashire Care NHS 
Foundation Trust .

Naseem is also a qualified (non-practicing) solicitor .

Qualifications
BA (Hons)

Mrs Christine Pearson, Director of Nursing, January 2014 to present

Experience
Chris is a Registered Nurse with experience in a variety of clinical settings and has worked in 
acute hospitals, community and primary care . She has held management and leadership positions 
as well as roles within education and professional development . She commenced as Chief 
Nurse at East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust in January 2014, where she provides professional 
leadership to employed nurses, midwives and Allied Health Professionals .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), MSc
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Mr Richard Smyth, Non-Executive Director, March 2017 to present

Experience
Richard is a solicitor with 40 years’ experience of regulatory issues and criminal litigation . He 
has had a highly successful career as a criminal lawyer and held senior positions in well-known 
law firms representing a wide range of clients including global corporations and professional 
individuals . His work has included compliance, governance and risk management advice as well as 
conducting serious and complex cases mainly within the context of business and finance .

Richard is the Chair of the Audit Committee .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), Member of the Law Society

Mr David Wharfe, Non-Executive Director, May 2013 to 28 February 2020

Experience
David was appointed in May 2013 . He has a wealth of public sector experience, having enjoyed 
a successful career in the NHS, holding a number of Board level posts across a range of 
organisations in the UK as a Finance Director .

David was educated in Burnley, and lives locally . He chairs the Finance and Performance 
Committee and is a member of the Audit Committee . He is also a Trustee of Pendleside Hospice 
and a lifelong supporter of Burnley Football Club .

Qualifications
BA (Hons), Member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
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Non-Voting Board Members 

Harry Catherall, Associate Non-Executive Director

Experience
Harry began his career as an apprentice accountant at Tameside Borough Council aged 16 . From 
there he moved into management at Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, joining Blackburn 
with Darwen Council in 1997 as it prepared to be a unitary council . Harry has held a number of 
different positions at the local authority, starting as Deputy Director of Social Services and various 
Executive Director roles . 

In 2012 was appointed Chief Executive, a post which he held until his retirement earlier this year . 
He has spent more than half of his working life employed within the area and as such holds East 
Lancashire close to his heart . He is keen to work with the Trust to develop effective partnership 
working across the Pennine Lancashire and Lancashire and South Cumbria areas .

Qualifications
FCCA, Qualified Accountant

Mrs Christine Hughes, Director of Communications and Engagement June 2016 to present

Experience
Christine has had a long and successful career in communications in the NHS including at 
commissioner, primary care, mental health and acute Trusts . Following a highly productive interim 
period here in ELHT, she became a permanent member of the team in June 2016 . She has lately 
acted in an advisory capacity to a neighbouring Trust and provides executive communications 
support to Blackpool Teaching Hospitals Trust, both in addition to her substantive role here .

Qualifications 
BA (Hons), MA

Mr Kevin Moynes, Director of HR & OD October 2013 to present

Experience
Kevin joined the Trust on 1st October 2013 as the Interim Director of HR and Organisational 
Development . He joined the NHS in 1978, qualifying as a Registered Nurse (RGN) in 1981 and later 
as a Registered Sick Children’s Nurse (RSCN) in 1986 . He obtained his Master’s Degree in Nursing 
from the University of Bradford in 1993 . In addition to his NHS experience, Kevin has worked in the 
USA and the Middle East and has held a Director of Nursing post within the hospice sector . Kevin 
leads the Trust’s agenda relating to HR and OD with a key focus on Staff Engagement, Staff Health 
and Well-being, Recruitment and Retention, Learning and Development and Leadership and Talent 
Management .

In October 2018 Kevin commenced in the role of Joint Strategic Director of HR and OD role for the 
Trust and Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust . 

Qualifications
RGN, RSCN, MSc, MCIPD
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Feroza Patel, Associate Non-Executive Director, July 2019 to present

Experience
Prior to being appointed as an Associate Non-Executive Director Feroza was one of the Trust’s 
Shadow Public Governors for Blackburn with Darwen . During her time as a Shadow Governor Feroza 
had worked with the Trust to work with staff and other patient representatives to develop services 
and improve the overall patient experience .

She also has experience as a Governor for her local primary and secondary schools and worked as 
a volunteer for SureStart Blackburn West where she developed a parent forum and also sat on the 
Local Management Board .

She has previously worked as a teaching assistant within primary school education where she was 
the parental involvement leader, managed the parents committee and organised community health 
events .

Mr Khalil Rehman, Associate Non-Executive Director, January 2020 to present

Experience
With a passion for improving the lives and well-being of others, Khalil is a co-founder of Medisina 
Foundation, a UK and US based Non-Governmental Organisation delivering global health and social 
care in developing countries and currently leads on program delivery and strategy .

He was previously Chief Executive of Doctors Worldwide, an international health charity between 
2011-18 and has delivered many innovative humanitarian and public health projects as well as 
managing local healthcare service delivery across Africa and S Asia . Prior to this he was Director of 
Finance & IT of a leading North West based social care charity working in Lancashire and Greater 
Manchester . Before moving into the NGO sector, he spent 10 years in mergers & acquisitions and 
corporate finance advisory roles followed by time in academia as a Research Fellow and post 
graduate teaching at one of the world’s top universities . Khalil holds a first degree from UCL, an MSc 
from the Bartlett School, UCL and graduated from executive programs at Harvard Medical School 
and INSEAD Global Business School .

Khalil also has over 17 years’ NED experience on boards and corporate governance roles in social 
housing and national charities and is currently a non-executive director at Salix Homes .

Qualifications
MSc, B .Eng . (Hons) 

Mr Michael Wedgeworth MBE, Associate Non-Executive Director, April 2017 to present

Experience
Mike Wedgeworth MA, BSc, MBE joined the Trust in April 2017 . Mr Wedgeworth, has been the 
Chairman of Healthwatch Lancashire, Chief Executive of Hyndburn Borough Council and Chair of 
Blackburn College, and has held senior executive positions both locally and nationally . He now 
serves as an assistant priest at Blackburn Cathedral . He is the Non-Executive Director representative 
for the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care Systems Board .

Mr Wedgeworth was awarded the MBE in 2010 for services to Further Education and the 
Community of Lancashire and is committed to the values of the NHS, and public services generally, 
and is very aware of the need to provide safe, personal and effective care to patients . Mike is a 
member of the Trust’s Quality Committee and the NED champion for Maternity Services .

Qualifications
BSc, MA
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Board members who have left the Trust/ stepped 
down from the Board during the financial year 
2019-20
• Mr John Bannister, Director of Operations (Non-Voting) 

(December 2016 to May 2019) – Left the Trust

• Professor Mike Thomas, Associate Non-Executive Director 
(December 2018 to December 2019) – Left the Trust

• Dr Damian Riley, Executive Medical Director and Deputy 
Chief Executive (July 2015 to October 2019) – Stepped 
down from the Board

• Dr Ian Stanley, Acting Executive Medical Director (May 
2019 to October 2019) – Stepped down from the Board .

• Mr Jonathan Wood, Executive Director of Finance and 
Deputy Chief Executive (2009 to July 2019) – Left the Trust

Directors’ Statements and Register of Interests
So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the Trust’s auditor is unaware . Each 
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have 
taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of 
any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
Trust auditor is aware of that information, including making 
enquiries of his/her fellow directors and the auditor for that 
purpose, and has taken such other steps for that purpose 
as are required by his/ her duty as a director to exercise 
reasonable care, skill and diligence . 

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable 
expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future . For this 
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the accounts .

The accounting policies for pensions and other retirement 
benefits are set out in the notes to the accounts and details 
of senior employees’ remuneration can be found in the 
remuneration report .

The Directors believe that the annual report and accounts 
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and 
provide the information necessary for patients, regulators and 
other stakeholders to assess the NHS Trust’s performance, 
business model and strategy .

It is the Board’s belief that each Director is a fit and proper 
person within the definitions in the Health and Social Care 
Act 2008 (Regulation of Regulated Activities) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 .

Each Director is:

 � of good character

 � has the qualifications, skills and experience which are 
necessary for carrying on the regulated activity or (as the 
case may be) for the relevant office or position

 � is capable by reason of their health, after reasonable 
adjustments are made, of properly performing tasks which 
are intrinsic to the carrying on of the regulated activity or 
(as the case may be) the office or position for which they 
are appointed or, in the case of an executive director, the 
work for which they are employed

 � not responsible for, been privy to, contributed to or 
facilitated any misconduct or mismanagement (whether 
unlawful or not) in the course of carrying on a regulated 
activity, or discharging any functions relating to any office 
or employment with a service provider, and

 � not prohibited from holding the relevant office or position, 
or in the case of an individual from carrying on the 
regulated activity, by or under any enactment .

There are no company directorships or other significant 
interests held by directors which may conflict with their 
management responsibilities other than those disclosed 
below:

Name and Title Interest Declared Date last 
updated

Professor Eileen 
Fairhurst
Chairman

• Professor at Salford University (until 21 .12 .2017) .
• Trustee, Beth Johnson Foundation (until 31 .03 .2017) .
• Chairman of Bury Hospice (from 23 .01 .2017 until 19 .06 .2018) .
• Member of the Learning, Training & Education (LTE) Group and Higher 

Education Board (until 12 .3 .2017) .
• Chairman of the NHS England Performers Lists Decision making Panel  

(PDLP) (until November 2018) .
• Honorary Doctorate UCLan awarded 2018 .
• Visiting Professor, Chester University

09 .05 .2019
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Name and Title Interest Declared Date last 
updated

Kevin McGee
Joint Chief Executive 
Officer and Accountable 
Officer for East 
Lancashire Hospitals 
NHS Trust (ELHT) and 
Blackpool Teaching 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust (BFWH) 
(From 01 .10 .2019)

• Spouse is the Director of Finance and Commercial Development at 
Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust .

• Honorary Fellow at University of Central Lancashire .
• Interim Chief Executive, Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

(from 01 .05 .2019), this became a permanent appointment across both 
Trust’s on 01 .10 .2019 .

23 .10 .2019

Patricia Anderson
Non-Executive Director 
(Mrs Anderson took a 
leave of absence from the 
Trust from 10 .05 .2019 to 
03 .10 .2019)

• Accountable Officer at Wigan Borough CCG (until 31 .05 .2018) .
• Public Sector Director on One Partnership (LIFTCO) (January 2015 until 

31 .05 .2018)
• Spouse is a recently retired Consultant Psychiatrist formerly employed at 

Mersey Care NHS Trust
• Assignment with Knowsley Clinical Commissioning Group, supporting the 

Accountable Officer for a period of six months (10 .05 .2019 to 01 .10 .2019) . 
During this time Mrs Anderson took a leave of absence from the Trust Board 
at ELHT . 

13 .03 .2019

Professor Graham 
Baldwin
Non-Executive Director 
(from 01 .01 .2020)

• Director of Centralan Holdings Limited
• Director of UCLan Overseas Limited
• Deputy Chair and Director of UCEA
• Director of University Alliance
• Chair of Maritime Skills Commission
• Member of Universities UK
• Treasurer of Million Plus

30 .03 .2020

Stephen Barnes
Non-Executive Director

• Chair of Nelson and Colne College .
• Member of the National Board of the Association of Colleges (from 

02 .03 .2017) .
• Chair of the National Council of Governors at the Association of Colleges
• Chair of the Nelson Town Regeneration Board

13 .03 .2019

Michelle Brown
Executive Director of 
Finance 
(from 01 .08 .2019)

• Vice Chair of Board of Governors and Chair of the Finance and Resources 
Committee of St Catherine’s Catholic Primary School, Leyland . (No known 
association with ELHT) .

• Spouse works for the North West Ambulance Service as a Paramedic .

30 .03 .2020

Harry Catherall
Associate Non-Executive 
Director 
(from 01 .07 .2019)

• Member STAR Multi Academy Trust former Tauheedul Academy Trust
• Former Chief Executive Blackburn with Darwen Council .
• Interim Chief Executive at St Helens Council (from 07 .10 .2019 to 11 .03 .2020)

30 .03 .2020

Martin Hodgson
Executive Director of 
Service Development /
Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer

• Partner is the Chief Operating Officer at Liverpool University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust .

30 .03 .2020
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Name and Title Interest Declared Date last 
updated

Christine Hughes
Director of 
Communications and 
Engagement

• provided strategic communications advice to a neighbouring Trust 
(Lancashire and South Cumbria Care NHS Foundation Trust) on a temporary 
basis (ended 31 .12 .2019)

• Provide advice, guidance and support to Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust (BFWH) as part of the ongoing collaboration between the 
two Trusts (from 01 .11 .2019) .

30 .03 .2020

Jawad Husain
Executive Medical 
Director 
(from 17 .02 .2020)

• Clinical Advisor to Health and Social Care Ombudsman
• Spouse is a GP in Oldham

30 .03 .2020

Naseem Malik
Non-Executive Director

• Independent Assessor – Student Loans Company – Department for 
Education – Public Appointment .

• Fitness to Practice, Panel Chair: Health & Care Professions Tribunal Service 
(HCPTS) – Independent Contractor .

• Investigations Committee Panel Chair at Nursing & Midwifery Council (NMC) 
– Independent Contractor .

• Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director (SID) at Lancashire 
Care NHS Foundation Trust (until 29 .07 .2016) .

• Worked for Blackburn Borough Council (now Blackburn with Darwen 
Borough Council) in 1995/6 .

• Non-Executive Director at Blackburn with Darwen Primary Care Trust (from 
2004 until 2010) . 

• Relative (first cousin) is a GP in the NHS (GP Practice) .
• Relative (brother-in-law) is a registered nurse employed by Lancashire and 

South Cumbria Care NHS Foundation Trust .

04 .09 .2019

Kevin Moynes
Director of Human 
Resources & 
Organisational 
Development

• Spouse is a very senior manager at Health Education England (from 
02 .10 .2017) .

• Governor of Nelson and Colne College (until 01 .02 .2018) .
• Joint Appointment as Executive Director of HR and OD at East Lancashire 

Hospitals NHS Trust and Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
(10 .10 .2018)

13 .09 .2019

Feroza Patel
Associate Non-Executive 
Director  
(from 01 .04 .2019)

• Positive Nil Declaration 25 .10 .2019

Christine Pearson
Director of Nursing

• Spouse is the Head of Medicines Optimisation, at Heywood, Middleton  
& Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group .

• Seconded to Manchester Health Care Commissioning as Clinical/Nursing 
Board member for 4 days per month (from 01 .12 .2019)

30 .03 .2020

Khalil Rehman
Associate Non-Executive 
Director  
(from 01 .01 .2020)

• Director at Salix Homes Ltd 
• Director at Medisina Foundation .

19 .05 .2020
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Name and Title Interest Declared Date last 
updated

Richard Smyth
Non-Executive Director

• Consultant Solicitor with DLA Piper UK LLP Law Firm . DLA Piper undertakes 
work for the NHS .

• Spouse is a Lay Member of Calderdale CCG (until 31 .01 .2019) . 
• Spouse is a Patient & Public Involvement and Engagement Lay Leader for the 

Yorkshire and Humber Patient Safety Translational Research Centre, based at 
Bradford Institute for Health Research, Bradford Royal Infirmary .

• Sister is an advanced clinical nurse practitioner with Pennine Acute Hospitals 
Trust based at the Royal Oldham hospital .

• Member of the Law Society .
• Spouse is a Non-Executive Director at Lancashire Teachings Hospitals 

Foundation Trust as from 04 .02 .2019 .

21 .03 .2019

Michael Wedgeworth
Associate Non-Executive 
Director

• Positive Nil Declaration 12 .09 .2019

David Wharfe
Non-Executive Director 

• Trustee of Pendleside Hospice (from June 2018) 01 .04 .2019
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Mrs Lee Barnes, Scientific, Therapeutic and Technical

Lee has over 10 years’ experience as a Physiotherapist in the Trust . She is a former union 
representative and has championed staff views and campaigned for positive change . She believes 
that all staff have a significant contribution to make to the success of the Trust . Lee became 
a Governor so that she could ensure that the ideas, experiences and concerns of staff are 
communicated and considered . She is also interested in promoting the work which staff are doing 
to the Board and wider community .

Mrs Vicky Bates, Pendle

Vicky is a retired healthcare professional with over 20 years’ experience working as a nurse, 
midwife and health visitor . In addition she has experience in teaching nurses and health visitors 
and has worked as a health development worker within the voluntary sector . Vicky is Chair of her 
local Parish Council where she represents the views of her local community . She believes that the 
role of Governor will provide a unique opportunity to be involved in the change and development 
of the Trust for the benefit of the patient .

Mr Karl Cockerill, Healthcare Assistants and Other Support Staff

Karl has worked as part of the NHS for 18 years; his current role within the Trust is as an Assistant 
Practitioner within the Community Services Division . He has experience of working on staff 
engagement and organisational change projects . Karl is also Mediation Co-ordinator for the Trust . 
His reasons for becoming a Governor include ensuring that the views of staff are represented at 
Trust Board level and promoting staff engagement throughout the Trust .

Mr Brian Parkinson, Rossendale

Having spent 46 years in the retail motor industry, Brian feels he can bring significant private 
sector experience to the role of Governor . Brian’s reasons for becoming a Governor include the 
belief that public sector organisations must deliver best practice whilst managing the resource 
constraints of recent public sector funding reductions .

v. Shadow Governors’ Report
Composition of the Shadow Governors
The organisation has Shadow Governors to represent the views of local people . This means discussing matters such as the 
Annual Report and Accounts . The Shadow Governors were elected by the public and Trust staff . Our Shadow Council of 
Governors is currently made up of 8 elected individuals, 6 Public Shadow Governors and 2 Staff Shadow Governors . A brief 
biography of our Shadow Council members can be found below .
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Mr Graham Parr, Pendle

Graham has a wealth of experience in senior positions within the NHS, including Executive and 
Non-Executive Director roles and more recently has served as the Chair of an NHS Foundation 
Trust . He is an Associate Member of two local mental health Trusts, which brings him into regular 
contact with service users and their families and is the Chairman of The Board of Trustees East 
Lancashire Hospice . Graham is also a Magistrate and a Trustee/Director of Coldwell Activity 
Centre . His reasons for becoming a Governor at ELHT are to provide a link in the community 
between the Trust Board and patients, to provide constructive challenge and scrutiny of the Trust 
and also to ensure that services provided to the local community are of the highest possible 
standard .

Mrs Marion Ramsbottom, Blackburn with Darwen

Marion is a former Non-Executive Director of ELHT and is a Trustee of Age UK Blackburn with 
Darwen Charity Board and also the Chair of Age UK Blackburn with Darwen Trading Board . 
Marion also works as an Associate Manager for Lancashire Care Foundation Trust, where she 
comes into regular contact with patients, their carers and family members . Marion’s reasons for 
becoming a Governor include the desire to contribute the views of the population into future 
plans for the Trust, ensuring the delivery of high quality care to the local population .

Mrs Brenda Redhead, Ribble Valley

Brenda is a retired secondary school science teacher and until recently served as Vice-Chair of 
her local Parish Council . She has been the parish representative on the Parish Councils Liaison 
Committee and possesses skills in absorbing and evaluating information in preparation for action . 
Brenda has previously volunteered as a road safety trainer at her local primary school and has, 
until recently volunteered as a walks leader for Dales Rail . Her reasons for becoming a Governor 
include the belief that hospital services should be accountable to their users and consider the 
views of patients .

Mr David Whyte, Hyndburn

David is a retired manager, who previously worked in the theatre and music industry and is also 
a qualified English teacher . He has carried out voluntary work for the Trust and is concerned 
with ensuring that local communities have their views fed into the work of the Trust . His area of 
interest as a governor is in the monitoring and improvement of services for the benefit of patients .

David has always had an interest in writing and puts this to use by collating Patient Stories in 
advance of them being presented to Trust Board .

The Shadow Governors have been very 
active within the Trust and have been 
involved in a range of activities over the 
course of the past year . These include:

 � CQC-style mini-inspections

 � PLACE Assessment training and 
visits

 � Dementia Strategy meetings

 � Bereavement Strategy Group 
meetings

 � STAR Award judging

 � Patient Participation Panel

 � Patient Engagement schemes

 � Nutrition and Hydration Steering 
Group meetings

 � End of Life Care Steering Group 
meetings

 � Frailty Steering Group
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b) Remuneration and Staff Report

The Trust’s Remuneration Committee has overarching responsibility for the remuneration, 
arrangements for the appointment and agreement of termination packages for Executive 
Directors and senior managers. The members of the Committee are the Non-Executive Directors 
of the Trust. 

The members are:

 � Professor Eileen Fairhurst 

 � Mrs Patricia Anderson (Non-
Executive Director from 1 July 2018 
to 10 May 2019 and 3 October 2019 
to date)

 � Professor Graham Baldwin (Non-
Executive Director from 1 January 
2020)

 � Mr Stephen Barnes

 � Mr Harry Catherall (Non-voting 
Associate Non-Executive Director 
from 1 July 2019)

 � Miss Naseem Malik 

 � Mrs Feroza Patel (Non-Voting 
Associate Non-Executive Director 
from 1 July 2019)

 � Mr Khalil Rehman (Non-voting 
Associate Non-Executive Director 
from 1 January 2020)

 � Mr Richard Smyth 

 � Mr Michael Wedgeworth (Non-
voting Associate Non-Executive 
Director) 

 � Professor Mike Thomas (Associate 
Non-Executive Director to 31 
December 2019)

 � Mr David Wharfe (Non-Executive 
Director to 28 February 2020)

The Remuneration Committee is chaired 
by the Trust Chairman . Information on 
the term of office of each Non-Executive 
Director is provided in the Directors 
Report section of this Annual Report . 
The interests and details of the Trust 
Board are disclosed in the Directors’ 
Register of Interests section earlier this 
Annual Report .

The Remuneration Policy of the Trust 
states that it does not make awards 
on performance criteria . Performance 
in the role of Directors is assessed 
separately by the Chief Executive Officer 
in relation to an Executive Director’s 
role in leading the organisation and 
achieving performance objectives 
and by the Chairman of the Trust in 
relation to performance as a member 
of the Trust Board . The Trust will 
review its remuneration policy within 

the next three months to ensure that 
the policy covers the approach on the 
remuneration of directors for future 
years .

In assessing any pay awards during the 
course of the year, the members of the 
Committee have had due regard both 
for the average salary of the executive 
director in peer organisations and the 
changes in remuneration agreed as part 
of the Agenda for Change pay scheme . 
The Executive Directors have received 
changes in their remuneration only in 
cases that relate to changes in their 
executive and operational duties and in 
line with peer organisations .

The employment contracts of Executive 
Directors are not limited in term and 
notice periods are six months . The only 
provision for early termination is in 
relation to gross misconduct .

Financial information relating to 
remuneration can be found later in 
this document under the Financial 
Statements and Report section of this 
Annual Report .
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Staff numbers & composition
The Trust is a major local employer and we employ over 8,000 people . During the course of the year the Trust has worked hard 
to recruit and retain staff . The Trust now employs 428 WTE more than at the end of 2018-19 . The Trust is fully committed to 
eliminating gender inequality and continues to monitor the gender profile of the workforce . The current profile is typical of other 
NHS organisations:

Staff Group % Female % Male

Add Prof Scientific and Technic 72% 28%

Additional Clinical Services 89% 11%

Administrative and Clerical 82% 18%

Allied Health Professionals 77% 23%

Estates and Ancillary 58% 42%

Healthcare Scientists 65% 35%

Medical and Dental 37% 63%

Nursing and Midwifery Registered 95% 5%

Students 100% 0%

Grand Total 80% 20%

� Full-time Female 
� Part-time Female 
� Full-time Male 
� Part-time Male

 Gender % Employee Category (%)

20

80

44.00

36.43

16.57

3

 Directors (%) Senior Managers – Band 8+ (%)

48

25

7552

� Female 
� Male

� Female 
� Male

� Female 
� Male
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Sickness
The Trust has implemented a number of initiatives to improve the health & wellbeing of its staff and to minimise absence due 
to sickness, these initiatives are starting to impact the absence figures . Overall the Trust sickness days lost have increased when 
compared with 2018-19 but the staff numbers have also increased in this time period . Duration of absence has decreased in 
2019-20 . 

Staff sickness absence 2019-20 2018-19

Total days lost 139,950 132,721

Total no of episodes 13,375 11,733

Average working days lost per episode 10.46 11 .31

The Trust monitors sickness absence rates on a monthly basis in the workforce scorecard element of the integrated performance 
report .

Staff policies
The Trust recognises that giving staff access to skills and development supports the delivery of safe, personal and effective care 
to our patients . The Trust has developed a full range of employment policies to support staff throughout their time working 
at the Trust . These policies are regularly reviewed in line with employment legislation and best practice . Policies are assessed 
to ensure that there is equal opportunity for all job applicants and staff, including those who provide services as volunteers . 
Specific policies have been developed to support people with disabilities during the recruitment process and whilst in their roles .

The Trust has employed a Staff Guardian since 2014 and has successfully introduced the ‘If you see something say something’ 
campaign which encourages all of our staff to speak out safely if they have any concerns . The guardian works independently 
alongside Trust leadership teams to support our organisation in becoming a more open and transparent place to work, where all 
staff are actively encouraged and enabled to speak up safely .

The Trust has policies in place to ensure that staff have access to appropriate training, qualifications and access to continuing 
professional development so that staff are supported to develop their skills and grow their experience .

The Trust recognises a number of trade unions, with whom we consult on workforce training and development issues . In 2019-
2020 we continued our commitment to a systematic approach to engage and empower our employees in order to support our 
vision ‘to be widely recognised for providing safe, personal and effective care’ .

All our policies are consistent with our responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 and are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure 
compliance and that they adhere to best practice

The Trust has a strong commitment to the delivery of education, training, and learning and development opportunities to ensure 
all our staff have the skills necessary to fulfil their role and contribute to excellent patient care . In addition to our ongoing 
mandatory training programmes, which are tailored for staff groups, we offer coaching and mentorship for personal and 
professional development .
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Staff Engagement Indicators
The 2019 National Staff Survey demonstrated that ELHT has achieved its best ever scores for staff engagement with 9 of the 
11 key themes better than average when compared with all Combined Acute and Community Trusts across the country . 90 
questions can be compared historically between 2018 and 2019 . ELHT demonstrated that 13 questions scored significantly 
better, 65 questions no significant difference and 12 questions significantly worse when compared with 2018 .

The results showed that for the fifth year in a row, staff ratings have improved which has helped ELHT maintain its position in 
the top 20% of hospital Trusts for staff satisfaction and engagement . When compared nationally against all Combined Acute 
and Community Trusts ELHT ranked: 

 � 2nd nationally for staff health and wellbeing . 

 � 4th nationally for staff morale .

 � 4th nationally for quality of appraisal .

 � 4th nationally for quality of care .

 � 4th nationally for team working .

 � 6th nationally for safety culture .

 � 6th nationally for staff engagement .

 � 8th nationally for safe environment bullying and harassment .

The results show that as an organisation we continue to improve the support we provide for our most important asset, our 
staff . The results are also excellent news for patients as we know that high levels of employee engagement and satisfaction 
directly and indirectly influence the quality of patient care and customer satisfaction in our hospitals and clinics .

Likewise our quarterly Staff Friends and Family Test scores continue to demonstrate that staff would be happy to recommend 
the Trust for care and as a place to work and at Quarter four 83% of respondents recommended ELHT as a place for care/
treatment and 77% recommended the Trust as a good place to work . It is a testimony that so many staff would recommend 
the Trust as a place for care/treatment and as a good place to work and as a Trust we will strive to further improve our staff 
engagement and satisfaction by continuing to embed our employee engagement strategy . 

Staff costs (subject to audit)

2019-20 2018-19

Permanently employed Other Total Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Salaries and wages 278,497 15,016 293,513 271,648

Social security costs 30,157 0 30,157 28,053

Apprentice Levy 1,404 73 1,477 1,426

NHS Pensions Scheme 33,687 0 33,687 31,668

Pension cost – employer contributions paid by 
NHSE on provider’s behalf (6 .3%)

14,668 0 14,668 0

Pension cost – other 83 0 83 35

Termination benefits 0 0 0 49

Temporary staff 0 12,886 12,886 13,196

Total employee benefits 358,496 27,975 386,471 346,075

Employee costs capitalised 684 0 684 646

Gross employee benefits excluding 
capitalised costs 357,812 27,975 385,787 345,429
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Staff numbers

2019-20 2018-19

Permanently 
employed Other Total Total

Number Number Number Number

Average staff numbers

Medical and dental 607 280 888 822

Administration and estates 1,242 107 1350 1,328

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 2,505 258 2763 2,573

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 2,365 255 2620 2,569

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 823 14 837 816

Healthcare Science Staff 135 0 135 134

Other 8 0 8 8

Total average staff numbers 7,686 914 8,600 8,250

Of the above – staff engaged on capital projects 17 0 17 17

Off-payroll engagements
The Trust employs the services of some staff through invoicing arrangements, rather than through payroll . The numbers of these 
staff falling under the following criteria are shown below .

All off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months are:

Number

No. of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 5

Of which...

number that have existed for less than one year at time of reporting 0

number that have existed for between one & two years at time of reporting 0

number that have existed for between two and three years at time of reporting 0

number that have existed for between three and four years at time of reporting 2

number that have existed for four or more years at time of reporting 3

All staff paid through this arrangement are assessed for compliance with IR35 .
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All off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020,  
for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six months:

Number

No . of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2019 and 
31 March 2020

0

No . assessed as caught by IR35 0

No . assessed as not caught by IR35 0

No . engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) and are on the departmental payroll 0

No . of engagements reassessed for consistency / assurance purposes during the year 0

No . of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency review 0

Off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility, between  
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Number

No . of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility, during the financial year .

0

No . of individuals that have been deemed ‘board members, and/or, senior officials with significant 
financial responsibility’, during the financial year . This figure includes both off-payroll and on-payroll 
engagements .

11

No payments have been made during 2019-20 to former senior managers and no compensation on early retirement or loss of 
office or other exit packages have been made during this period .

Exit packages (subject to audit)
During 2019-20 there were no exit payments made to any member of staff .

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020
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Independent auditor’s report to the Directors  
of East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust
Report on the Audit of the Financial 
Statements 

Qualified opinion
We have audited the financial statements of East Lancashire 
Hospitals NHS Trust (the ‘Trust’) for the year ended 31 March 
2020, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement 
of Changes in Taxpayers Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies . The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as 
interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and 
Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020 .

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter 
described in the basis for qualified opinion section of our 
report, the financial statements:

 � give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Trust as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and

 � have been properly prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as 
adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and 
adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020; and

 � have been prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the National Health Service Act 2006 .

Basis for qualified opinion
Due to the national lockdown arising from the Covid-19 
pandemic we did not observe the counting of physical 
inventories at the end of the year . We were unable to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
inventory quantities held as at 31 March 2020, which have 
a carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position of 
£8 .311 million, by performing other audit procedures . There 
may be an impact on the valuation of supplies and services 
expenditure for the same reason .

Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustment to these amounts were necessary . In addition, 
were any adjustment to these amounts to be required, the 
Annual Report would also need to be amended .

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law . Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements’ section of our report . We are 
independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements . We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our qualified opinion .

c) Audit Report
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The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on 
our audit
Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an 
understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those 
arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic 
uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit . All audits assess 
and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the 
Directors and the related disclosures and the appropriateness 
of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial 
statements . All of these depend on assessments of the future 
economic environment and the Trust’s future operational 
arrangements .

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant 
economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date 
of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels 
of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and 
their impacts unknown . We applied a standardised firm-wide 
approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing 
the Trust’s future operational arrangements . However, no 
audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors 
or all possible future implications for an entity associated with 
these particular events .

Material uncertainty related to going concern
We draw attention to note 1 .3 to the financial statements, 
which indicates that the Trust’s draft 2020-21 financial plan 
prepared in March 2020 reported a £36 .4 million deficit . As 
disclosed in note 1 .3 to the financial statements, as a result 
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the financial plans have yet to be 
finalised and updated to take account of its impact . Current 
changes to national funding arrangements are expected to 
be extended for the remainder of the 2020-21 financial year 
and may continue into 2021-22, but in the event that they are 
discontinued the Trust expects that any shortfall in earned 
income over expenditure will be met in the form of revenue 
support from the Department of Health and Social Care . This 
additional support has not been confirmed .

These events or conditions, along with the other matters as 
set forth in note 1 .3 indicate that a material uncertainty exists 
that may cast significant doubt about the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern . Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter .

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the 
valuation of land and buildings
We draw attention to Note 1 .4 of the financial statements, 
which describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on 
the valuation of land and buildings as at 31 March 2020 . 
As, disclosed in Note 1 .4 to the financial statements, a full 
valuation of land and buildings was carried out by the Trust’s 
valuer as at 31 March 2020 . The valuer declared a ‘material 
valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation report . This is on 
the basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19 . 

While the valuer declared this material valuation uncertainty, 
the valuer continued to exercise professional judgement 
in providing the valuation and so this remains the best 
information available to the Trust . Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter .

Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information . The 
other information comprises the information included in 
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon . Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except 
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon .

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated . If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information . If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other 
information, we are required to report that fact .

As described in the basis for qualified opinion section of 
our report, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence regarding the inventory quantities, which 
have a carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position 
of £8,311,000 at 31 March 2020, and related balances . 
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the 
other information is materially misstated with respect to this 
matter .

Other information we are required to report on 
by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National 
Audit Office in April 2015 on behalf of the Comptroller and 
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required 
to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does 
not comply with the guidance issued by NHS Improvement or 
is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which 
we are aware from our audit . We are not required to consider 
whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all 
risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by 
internal controls .

We have nothing to report in this regard .
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Opinion on other matters required by the Code 
of Audit Practice
In our opinion:

 � the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be 
audited have been properly prepared in accordance with 
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted 
and adapted by the Department of Health and Social 
Care Group Accounting Manual 2019 to 2020 and the 
requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006; and

 � except for the possible effects of the matter described 
in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report, 
based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit 
of the financial statements and our knowledge of the 
Trust gained through our work in relation to the Trust’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information 
published together with the financial statements in the 
Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements .

Matters on which we are required to report by 
exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to 
you if:

 � we issue a report in the public interest under Section 24 of 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course 
of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 � we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under Section 
30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 because 
we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer of 
the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision which 
involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful 
expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a 
course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would 
be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or

 � we make a written recommendation to the Trust under 
Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit .

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters .

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those 
Charged with Governance for the financial 
statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in 
the Accounts Directions, for being satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error .

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant 
national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without 
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity .

The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance . 
Those Charged with Governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting process .

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion . 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists . Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements .

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council’s website at: www .frc .org .uk/auditorsresponsibilities . 
This description forms part of our auditor’s report .

Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements – Conclusion on the Trust’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources

Qualified conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance 
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, 
except for the effects of the matters described in the basis 
for qualified conclusion section of our report we are satisfied 
that, in all significant respects, East Lancashire Hospitals NHS 
Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 .

Basis for qualified conclusion
Our review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing efficiency, 
economy and effectiveness in its use of resources, identified 
the following matters:

 � In line with national guidance, the Trust submitted a 
draft operational plan to NHS Improvement for 2020/21 
in March 2020, which forecast a deficit of £36 million . 
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The Trust’s latest forecasts for 2020/21, based on current 
national funding arrangements, indicate that a deficit of 
between £11 .9 million and £15 .9 million is likely; and

 � The Trust’s pre-Covid-19 financial planning, which has 
been suspended nationally due to the Covid-19 national 
pandemic, identified a Waste Reduction Programme target 
for 2020/21 of £17 million . There are challenges in the 
Trust fully delivering this Waste Reduction Programme, 
which has since been revised to a target of £12 .3 million 
due to an interim financial framework being in place 
across the NHS because of the Covid-19 pandemic .

These matters identify weaknesses in the Trust’s arrangements 
for setting a sustainable budget with sufficient capacity to 
absorb emerging cost pressures .

They are evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements 
for sustainable resource deployment in planning finances 
effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic 
priorities and maintain statutory functions .

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer
The Accountable Officer is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of the Trust’s resources .

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the 
Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources
We are required under Section 21(1)(c) and Schedule 13 
paragraph 10(a) of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources and to report where we 
have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has done so . 
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
are operating effectively .

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on 
the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General in April 2020, as to whether in all significant respects, 
the Trust had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people . The 
Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion 
as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit 
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Trust put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 
March 2020, and to report by exception where we are not 
satisfied .

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice . Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such 
work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Trust 
has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources .

Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements – Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial 
statements of East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice .

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Directors of the Trust, as 
a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 . Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the Trust’s Directors those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for 
no other purpose . To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Trust and the Trust’s Directors, as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed .

Gareth Kelly

Gareth Kelly, Key Audit Partner 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 
Glasgow 
1 July 2020
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Finance  
Report
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Financial review for the year ending  
31 March 2020
Financial duties
The Trust reported a £5 .1 million adjusted financial 
performance surplus for the 2019-20 financial year . The 
surplus includes a non-recurrent £12 .6 million allocation from 
the Provider Sustainability Fund and Marginal rate emergency 
tariff (MRET), approved by the Department of Health and 
Social Care (DHSC) and HM Treasury . This is in line with the 
2019-20 financial plan .

The Trust achieved this outturn whilst delivering a £16 .4 
million Waste Reduction Programme (WRP) improving the 
way it delivers services . In addition, the Trust achieved all its 
other financial duties as set out later in this report .

2019-20 2018-19

Break-even duty  

In year – the Trust must achieve 
an in-year revenue break-even 
position (before technical items)

 

Cumulative – the Trust must 
deliver a cumulative break-even 
position (before technical items)

 

Capital Resource Limit – the Trust 
must not exceed its resource limit

 

External Financing Limit – the Trust 
must not exceed its financing limit

 

Where our money comes from
In 2019-20, the Trust received income of £567 .7 million 
compared with £512 .7 million in the previous year, including 
£426 .8 million for healthcare services provided to people 
living in East Lancashire and Blackburn with Darwen .

Most of the Trust’s income comes from Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) who purchase healthcare on behalf of their 
local populations . The Trust negotiates an annual contract 
with the local CCGs for the payment of services .

Where our money goes
From a total revenue spend of £601 .1 million in 2019-20, 
£385 .8 million or 64% was spent on staff costs . Throughout 
the year the Trust employed an average of 7,686 staff and 
contracted a further average 915 staff .

At £42 .1 million, drugs costs were the next highest area of 
expenditure with the Trust spending a £33 .7 million on other 
clinical supplies and services and a further £16 .1 million on 
clinical negligence ‘insurance’ premiums .

Capital Expenditure
In total the Trust invested £22 .9 million on new building 
works, improvements and equipment across all its sites .

The Trust has continued to invest in healthcare facilities on 
all sites including a further £5 .0 million on the Fairhurst 
Building, the new Ophthalmology Department at Burnley 
General Teaching Hospital, which opened in October 2019 
and was funded from Public Dividend Capital (PDC) received 
from DHSC . An additional £4 .5 million of PDC funding has 
been spent on the new Emergency Care Village at the Royal 
Blackburn Teaching Hospital site, with further investment of 
£5 .5 million planned in advance of the scheduled opening 
in December 2020, backed by a further £2 .5 million of PDC 
funding . 

In total the Trust invested £22 .9 million on new building 
works, improvements and equipment across all its sites .  
A summary is provided below:

£m

Estate infrastructure and environmental 
improvements

11 .4

PFI lifecycle costs 2 .4

Information technology equipment 3 .5

Medical equipment 4 .5

Other capital costs 1 .1

Total 22.9

Revaluation of land and buildings
A full revaluation of the Trust estate has been carried out as 
at 31 March 2020, as well as a retrospective valuation as at 1 
April 2019, resulting in a £48 .0 million reduction in the value 
of these assets at the end of the financial year . £38 .9 million 
of this valuation adjustment has been charged to operating 
expenses as a net impairment, although this is excluded from 
the adjusted financial performance of the Trust . Further detail 
is set out in note 12 .1 to the annual accounts .
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External Financing Limit
The External Financing Limit (EFL) is used by DHSC to measure 
how well the Trust manages its cash resources and is a 
threshold the Trust is not permitted to overshoot . In 2019-
20, the Trust undershot its EFL by £5 .9 million and therefore 
remained within the overall cash limit set by DHSC .

Capital Resource Limit
The Capital Resource Limit (CRL) is used by DHSC to measure 
how well the Trust controls its spending on capital schemes 
with the Trust permitted to spend up to its CRL . In 2019-20, 
the capital investment made by the Trust represented an 
underspend by less than £0 .1 million against the CRL set by 
DHSC of £22 .6 million .

Better Payment Practice code
Although it is not a financial duty, the Trust met the Better 
Payment Practice Code target by paying more than 95% of 
undisputed invoices within 30 days of receipt of the goods or 
invoice, whichever is the later .

Prompt Payments Code
The Trust continues to support the Department of Health 
and Social Care’s prompt payment code which is an initiative 
developed by HM Treasury and the Institute of Credit 
Management (ICM) . Details of this code can be found at 
www .promptpaymentcode .org .uk

Payments made to non-NHS organisations (value)

2019-20 2018-19

Total invoices paid (£m) 299 .3 225 .7

Total invoices paid in target (£m) 294 .0 216 .6

Percentage achievement 98 .2% 96 .0%

Charges for information
The Trust does not make charges for information, save for 
those required in relation to medical records in line with 
the relevant legislation . The Trust has complied with HM 
Treasury’s guidance on setting charges for information .

Finance income
The Trust receives income from the interest earned on the 
management of its cash balances . Finance income in 2019-20 
amounted to £0 .3 million, compared with £0 .2 million earned 
in 2018-19 .

Counter Fraud
The Trust is committed to maintaining high standards of 
honesty, openness and integrity within the organisation . With 
this it supports the work of the National Fraud Initiative . The 
Trust has a designated accredited local counter fraud specialist .

External audit
The Trust appointed Grant Thornton to carry out the external 
audit of the 2019-20 accounts at a cost of £67,920 .

Financial Outlook for 2020-21
The financial outlook for the NHS is uncertain due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic . Prior to pandemic the Trust had 
submitted a draft annual financial plan of a £36 .4 million 
deficit, which included a Waste Reduction Programme of £17 
million . Since the submission of the draft financial plan the 
planning round has been suspended for the NHS, for the first 
four months of the financial year NHS England/Improvement 
have set block contracts with further guidance on the outlook 
for 2020-21 expected imminently .

In response to the global pandemic the full planning round 
was suspended including the financial plans . The Trust is to be 
monitored against a breakeven position for 1 April to 31 July 
2020 after receipt of top up funding and is currently awaiting 
further guidance for the remainder of the financial year . 

Annual Accounts
Restrictions on movement in the United Kingdom in March 
2020, as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, meant that the 
Trust’s auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, was unable to attend 
year-end inventory counts to complete procedures required 
by auditing standards . For this reason only, the auditor has 
issued a qualified opinion . The qualification is a technical 
‘limitation of scope’ and does not imply any criticism of the 
Trust or any weaknesses in the Trust’s internal controls . 
We are aware that a number of NHS trusts in the country 
are affected by the same issue in 2019-20 and the Trust is 
satisfied that its inventory balance is presented fairly in all 
material respects .

The Trust has prepared the Annual Accounts 2019-20 on a 
going concern basis, but has disclosed a material uncertainty 
in respect of the financial outlook for 2020-21 as, at the time 
of preparing the accounts, the funding regime for the year 
had not been finalised . This is a direct result of the Covid-19 
pandemic and the subsequent halt to the financial planning 
process

Remuneration Report
The remuneration report, which is subject to audit, sets out 
the amounts awarded to Trust Board members, as the Trust’s 
senior managers, being those persons in senior positions 
having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling 
the major activities of the Trust . This means those who 
influence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather than 
the decisions of individual directorates or departments . Since 
Non-Executive Board members do not receive pensionable 
remuneration, there are no entries in respect of their pensions .
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Fair Pay Disclosure (subject to audit)
No director received performance related pay or bonuses for 
their director related services . East Lancashire Hospitals NHS 
Trust is required to disclose the relationship between the 
remuneration of the highest-paid director in the organisation 
and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce .

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in the 
Trust in the financial year 2019-20 was £150,000-155,000 
(2018-19: £205,000-£210,000) . This was 5 .9 times (2018-19 
8 .4 times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which 
was £26,018 (2018-19: £24,824) . The median pay calculation 
does not include external agency staff costs . All agency staff 
are paid via invoices and may include commission charges to 
the agencies .

In 2019-20, 71 employees (2018-19: 2 employees) received 
remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director . This 
follows a change to the highest paid director as a result of the 
sharing arrangement with Blackpool Teaching Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust in relation to the Chief Executive Officer . 
Remuneration ranged from £636 to £264,519 (2018-19: £379 
to £247,582) . 

Total remuneration for the purposes of the highest paid 
director calculation includes salary, non-consolidated 
performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind, but not severance 
payments . It does not include employer pension contributions 
and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions .

74 | Finance Report



www.elht.nhs.uk

D
ir

ec
to

r’s
 P

en
si

on
s 

(s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

au
di

t)

N
am

e 
an

d 
tit

le

Re
al

 in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 p
en

si
on

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

ag
e

Re
al

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

pe
ns

io
n 

lu
m

p 
su

m
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
at

 p
en

si
on

 a
ge

To
ta

l a
cc

ru
ed

 
pe

ns
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
t 

pe
ns

io
n 

ag
e 

 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
0

Lu
m

p 
su

m
 a

t 
pe

ns
io

n 
ag

e 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
ac

cr
ue

d 
pe

ns
io

n 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
0

Ca
sh

 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
Tr

an
sf

er
 V

al
ue

  
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
20

Re
al

 in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 C
as

h 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
Tr

an
sf

er
 V

al
ue

Ca
sh

 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
Tr

an
sf

er
 V

al
ue

  
at

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
19

(b
an

ds
 o

f  
£2

,5
00

)
(b

an
ds

 o
f  

£2
,5

00
)

(b
an

ds
 o

f  
£5

,0
00

)
(b

an
ds

 o
f  

£5
,0

00
)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

M
r 

K 
M

cG
ee

* 
**

0-
2 .

5
5-

7 .
5

70
-7

5
21

5-
22

0
1,

73
1

63
1,

55
1

M
r. 

J 
W

oo
d 

0-
2 .

5
2 .

5-
5

55
-6

0
13

0-
13

5
1,

06
4

35
91

7

M
rs

. C
 P

ea
rs

on
**

*
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

53

M
r. 

D
 R

ile
y

0-
2 .

5
0-

2 .
5

45
-5

0
13

5-
14

0
1,

06
6

24
99

7

M
r. 

K 
M

oy
ne

s*
 *

* 
**

**
2 .

5-
5

7 .
5-

10
45

-5
0

14
5-

15
0

0
0

1,
04

7

M
r. 

M
 H

od
gs

on
*

0-
2 .

5
0

50
-5

5
11

5-
12

0
95

0
15

89
5

M
rs

. C
 H

ug
he

s*
0-

2 .
5

0
40

-4
5

11
5-

12
0

92
2

18
87

0

M
r 

J 
Ba

nn
is

te
r*

**
0

0
0

0
0

0
1,

16
5

M
rs

 M
 B

ro
w

n*
2 .

5-
5

7 .
5-

10
35

-4
0

70
-7

5
64

2
75

49
0

M
r. 

J 
H

us
ai

n
0-

2 .
5

0-
2 .

5
55

-6
0

17
0-

17
5

1,
38

7
6

1,
27

1

* 
Fo

r t
he

se
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 T
ru

st
 B

oa
rd

, t
he

 a
cc

ru
ed

 p
en

sio
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, l

um
p 

su
m

 a
nd

 c
as

h 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 tr
an

sf
er

 v
al

ue
s a

s a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

0,
 a

s w
el

l a
s t

he
 re

al
 in

cr
ea

se
 sh

ow
n 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

ab
ov

e 
an

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
re

la
te

d 
be

ne
fit

s i
n 

th
e 

ta
bl

e 
of

 
Sa

la
rie

s a
nd

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s,

 d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f t
he

 1
 .3

2%
 c

on
so

lid
at

ed
 p

ay
 a

w
ar

d 
an

d 
0 .

77
%

 n
on

-c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 c
as

h 
aw

ar
d 

ba
ck

da
te

d 
to

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
19

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

Tr
us

t’s
 R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
11

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l 

gu
id

an
ce

 .

**
 F

or
 th

e 
Ch

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

O
ffi

ce
r, 

Ke
vi

n 
M

cG
ee

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 O

rg
an

isa
tio

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

Ke
vi

n 
M

oy
ne

s,
 th

e 
re

al
 in

cr
ea

se
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
ab

ov
e,

 a
s w

el
l a

s t
he

 p
en

sio
n 

re
la

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s i

n 
th

e 
ta

bl
e 

of
 

Sa
la

rie
s a

nd
 A

llo
w

an
ce

s,
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
to

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 tw

o 
an

d 
ha

lf 
da

ys
 a

 w
ee

k 
w

or
ke

d 
fo

r B
la

ck
po

ol
 T

ea
ch

in
g 

Ho
sp

ita
ls 

N
HS

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

Tr
us

t .

**
* 

Th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f N
ur

sin
g,

 C
hr

ist
in

e 
Pe

ar
so

n 
an

d 
th

e 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

Di
re

ct
or

 o
f O

pe
ra

tio
ns

, J
oh

n 
Ba

nn
ist

er
, o

pt
ed

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 N

HS
 P

en
sio

n 
Sc

he
m

e 
on

 1
st

 A
pr

il 
20

19
 .

**
**

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

CE
TV

 v
al

ue
 o

n 
re

ac
hi

ng
 N

or
m

al
 P

en
sio

n 
ag

e 
(N

PA
) .

Annual Report 2019/20 | 75

Fi
na

nc
e 

Re
po

rt



Cash Equivalent Transfer Values
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially 
assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued 
by a member at a particular point in time . The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent 
spouse’s pension payable from the scheme . A CETV is a 
payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure 
pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement 
when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer 
the benefits accrued in their former scheme . The pension 
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has 
accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the 
pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity 
to which disclosure applies . The CETV figures and the other 
pension details include the value of any pension benefits in 
another scheme or arrangement which the individual has 
transferred to the NHS pension scheme . They also include 

any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a 
result of their purchasing additional years of pension service 
in the scheme at their own cost . CETVs are calculated within 
the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries .

Real Increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the 
employer . It does not include the increase in accrued pension 
due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for 
the start and end of the period .

Further information on how pension liabilities are treated can 
be found in note 8 .3 of the Trust annual accounts .
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Quality Account
2019/20

Quality Report
The Trust has published its Annual Quality Account in line with Department of Health and Social 
Care requirements and this is available on our website at www.elht.nhs.uk. This Annual Report 
should be read in conjunction with our Quality Account which provides further key information 
about the Trust and our performance against quality requirements. It also highlights our major 
successes in the financial year.
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These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared by the East Lancashire 
Hospitals NHS Trust in accordance with schedule 15 of the National Health Service Act 2006.

80 | Financial Statements



www.elht.nhs.uk

Statement of comprehensive income

note 2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Operating income from patient care activities 2 517,950 468,470

Other operating income 3 49,506 43,969

Operating expenses 4 (589,389) 501,837)

Operating surplus / (deficit) (21,933) 10,602

Finance costs 

Finance income

277 213

Finance expenses 9 (8,851) (9,072)

Public dividend capital dividends payable (2,816) (3,819)

Net finance costs (11,390) (12,678)

Other gains / (losses) 6 (11)

(Deficit) for the financial year (33,317) (2,087)

Other comprehensive income

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Amounts that will not be reclassified subsequently to income and expenditure:

Impairments

(9,891) (364)

Revaluations 744 1,457

Public dividend capital received 13,622 12,098

Total other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year 4,475 13,191

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the year 28,842) 11,104

Adjusted financial performance for the year

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

(Deficit) for the year 33,317 (2,087)

Add back net impairments / (reversals) 38,866 (1,682)

Remove impact of capital donations (69) (118)

Remove impact of 2018-19 post accounts PSF reallocation (2019-20 only) (369) 0

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) for the year 5,111 (3,887)
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Statement of financial position

note 31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 11 6,874 4,999

Property, plant and equipment 12 217,255 255,342

Receivables 14 7,092 1,500

Total non-current assets 231,221 261,841

Current assets

Inventories 13 8,311 5,420

Receivables 14 32,498 30,955

Non-current assets for sale 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 15 8,490 12,082

Total current assets 49,299 48,457

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 (43,745) (39,268)

Borrowings 17 (11,751) (5,000)

Provisions 18 (558) (452)

Other liabilities (1,505) (2,577)

Total current liabilities (57,559) (47,297)

Total assets less current liabilities 222,961 263,001

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 17 (98,443) (110,177)

Provisions 18 (3,949) (3,413)

Total non-current liabilities (102,392) (113,590)

Total assets employed 120,569 149,411

Financed by: Taxpayers' equity

Public dividend capital 205,610 191,988

Revaluation reserve 12,261 21,408

Income and expenditure reserve (97,302) (63,985)

Total taxpayers' equity 120,569 149,411

The notes on pages 5 to 27 form part of these accounts .

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 and accompanying notes were approved by the Audit Committee on 1 July 2020 and 
were signed and authorised for issue on its behalf by:

Signed (electronically): 

Kevin McGee, Chief Executive  
Date: 1 July 2020

82 | Financial Statements



www.elht.nhs.uk

Statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity 

Statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

note

Public 
dividend 
capital 
£000s

Revaluation 
reserve 
£000s

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve  
£000s

Total 
reserves 
£000s

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2019 191,988 21,408 (63,985) 149,411

(Deficit) for the year 0 0 (33,317) (33,317)

Revaluations 0 744 0 744

Impairments 6 0 (9,891) 0 (9,891)

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Public dividend capital received 13,622 0 0 13,622

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2020 205,610 12,261 (97,302) 120,569

Statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

note

Public 
dividend 
capital 
£000s

Revaluation 
reserve 
£000s

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve  
£000s

Total 
reserves 
£000s

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2018 179,890 20,450 (62,033) 138,307

Deficit for the year 0 0 (2,087) (2,087)

Revaluations 0 1,457 0 1,457

Impairments 6 0 (364) 0 (364)

Transfers between reserves 0 (135) 135 0

Public dividend capital received 12,098 0 0 12,098

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2019 191,988 21,408 (63,985) 149,411

Information on reserves 
Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities . Additional 
PDC may also be issued to NHS trusts by the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) . A charge, reflecting the cost of 
capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the DHSC, as the annual PDC dividend, in two instalments, the second of which 
is payable in March based on the estimate dividend payable . Any difference to the actual dividend payable is settled in the 
following financial year .

Revaluation reserve
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent 
that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating 
expenses . Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that 
a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a 
reduction in service potential .

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve represents the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the Trust .
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Statement of cash flows

note
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus / (deficit) (21,933) 10,602

Depreciation and amortisation 4 11,125 10,434

Impairments and reversals 4 38,866 (1,682)

Income recognised in respect of capital donations (325) (371)

(Increase) in inventories (2,891) (1,548)

(Increase) / decrease in receivables (4,892) 2,858

Increase in trade and other payables 1,801 896

(Decrease) in other liabilities (1,072) (478)

(Decrease) in provisions 632 (388)

Net cash generated from operations 21,311 20,323

Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received 277 214

Purchase of intangible assets (3,359) (2,895)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,496) (18,899)

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 6 234

Net cash generated (used in) investing activities (20,572) (21,346)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 13,622 12,098

Movement in loans from the DHSC 17 .1 (1,752) 9,100

Capital element of PFI payments 17 .1 (3,228) (3,788)

Interest paid (8,844) (9,045)

PDC dividend paid (4,129) (3,416)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (4,331) 4,949

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,592) 3,926

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 12,082 8,156

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 8,490 12,082

Public dividend capital (PDC) received in 2019-20 has been used to fund specific capital projects with £4 .5m received for the 
Phase 6 development on the Royal Blackburn Teaching Hospital site and £3 .7m received for the Phase 8 development on the 
Burnley General Teaching Hospital site .
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Notes to the accounts

1. Accounting policies and other information

1.1 Basis of preparation
The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has 
directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet 
the accounting requirements of the DHSC Group Accounting 
Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury . 
Consequently, the following financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the GAM 2019-20 issued by the 
DHSC . The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow 
International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent 
that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as 
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial 
Reporting Advisory Board . Where the GAM permits a choice 
of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to 
be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the 
trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been 
selected . The particular policies adopted are described below . 
These have been applied consistently in dealing with items 
considered material in relation to the accounts .

1.2 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of 
certain property, plant and equipment, inventories and certain 
financial assets and financial liabilities .

1.3 Going concern
Management has assessed the ability of the Trust to continue 
as a going concern, considering events and conditions that 
may cast significant doubt upon its ability to do so . Since it is 
unaware of any prospect of dissolution within the next twelve 
months and so anticipates the continuation of the provision of 
services in the foreseeable future from its existing hospital sites, 
these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis .

As well as performance against its statutory and other 
financial duties, the events and conditions considered by 
Management include reliance on non-recurrent items, the 
need for significant improvements to the Trust’s estate, 
excessive reliance on borrowing, significant concerns raised 
about finances or the quality of services raised by the Care 
Quality Commission or an inability to pay suppliers on time .

The Trust has reported an adjusted financial performance 
surplus of £5 .1 million for 2019-20 and has met the control 
total set by NHS England and NHS Improvement for 2019-20, 
subject to an allowance made for the impact of the change in 
discount rate applied to the calculation of post-employment 
benefit provisions .

Following changes to national funding arrangements for NHS 
Trusts in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 2020-21 
draft financial plan prepared in March 2020, which reported a 
£36 .4 million deficit, is yet to be finalised and updated to take 
account of its impact, with the Trust due to report an adjusted 
financial performance break-even position to July 2020 .

Current arrangements are expected to be extended for the 
remainder of the 2020-21 financial year and may continue 
into 2021-22, although in the event that current arrangements 
are discontinued, the Trust expects that any shortfall in 
earned income over expenditure for the remainder of the 
year will be met in the form of revenue support from the 
Department of Health and Social Care .

However, since this additional support has not been confirmed, 
these current conditions at this exact time are considered 
to represent a material uncertainty that may cast significant 
doubt about the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern .

1.4 Sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are assumptions about the future and other 
major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant 
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Non-current asset valuations
Valuation services are provided to the Trust by Cushman & 
Wakefield, a property services firm whose valuers are registered 
with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the 
regulatory body for the valuation services industry . A full 
valuation of land and buildings has been carried out as at 31 
March 2020 to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets 
does not differ materially from their fair value, reflecting the 
current economic conditions and the location factor for the 
North West of England .

However, in applying the RICS Valuation Global Standards 
current at the valuation date, the valuer has declared a ‘material 
valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation report . This is on the 
basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19 . While 
the valuer has declared this material valuation uncertainty, the 
valuer has continued to exercise professional judgement in 
providing the valuation and so this remains the best information 
available to the Trust .

The valuations for PFI buildings exclude VAT on the basis that 
the replacement of these assets would be carried out under  
a special purchase vehicle where VAT would be recoverable .
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Private Finance Initiative (PFI) – unitary payment
PFI annual contract payments are split between three 
elements, the payment for services, payment for property 
(comprising repayment of the liability, finance cost and 
contingent rental) and lifecycle replacement . The Trust has 
adopted the national PFI accounting guidance to determine 
the split between these elements .

Clinical negligence liabilities
The provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical 
negligence liabilities relating to the Trust, as disclosed in the 
provisions note, are estimated by NHS Resolution on a case  
by case basis .

1.5 Critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies
The following are the judgements, apart from those involving 
estimations (see below) that management has made in the 
process of applying the Trust accounting policies and that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements:

PFI liabilities
PFI liabilities, which are accounted for as finance leases, are 
rebased on an annual basis using the most current applicable 
RPI indices . On this basis, the Trust does not consider the fair 
value of these liabilities to differ materially from the reported 
carrying value .

Segmental reporting
The Trust has one material segment, being the provision of 
healthcare, primarily to NHS patients . Divisions within the 
Trust all have similar economic characteristics with healthcare 
activity being undertaken via ward-based hospital care and 
through a range of primary care and community services . 
Segmental reporting is not considered necessary for private 
patient activity on materiality grounds .

Non-current asset valuations
Since 2017-18 the Trust has adopted an alternative site 
valuation model, whereby the valuation of its estate is based 
on the value of the modern equivalent asset required to 
deliver the services the Trust currently provides without taking 
account of the existing estate and its current utilisation .

1.6 Revenue from contracts with customers
Where income is derived from contracts with customers, 
it is accounted for under IFRS 15 . The GAM expands the 
definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations 
which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial 
asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National 
Statistics (ONS) .

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised 
when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by 
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is 

measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated 
to those performance obligations . At the end of the financial 
year, the Trust accrues income relating to performance 
obligations satisfied in that year . Where the Trust’s entitlement 
to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a 
contract receivable will be recognised . Where entitlement to 
consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the 
passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised . Where 
consideration received or receivable relates to a performance 
obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income 
is deferred and recognised as a contract liability .

Revenue from NHS contracts
The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with 
commissioners for health care services . A performance 
obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care 
is generally satisfied over time as healthcare is received 
and consumed simultaneously by the customer as the 
Trust performs it . The customer in such a contract is the 
commissioner, but the customer benefits as services are 
provided to their patient . Even where a contract could 
be broken down into separate performance obligations, 
healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the 
Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods or services 
that are substantially the same and have a similar pattern of 
transfer . At the end of the financial year, the Trust accrues 
income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a 
patient care spell is incomplete . This accrual is disclosed as 
a contract receivable as entitlement to payment for work 
completed is usually only dependent on the passage of time .

Provider sustainability fund (PSF)
The PSF enable providers to earn income linked to the 
achievement of financial controls . Income earned from the 
funds is accounted for as variable consideration .

1.7 Expenditure on employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as 
social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are recognised 
in the period in which the service is received from employees .

Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of 
the two NHS Pension Schemes . Both schemes are unfunded, 
defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employer, general 
practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and 
Wales . The schemes are not designed in a way that would 
enable employers to identify their share of the underlying 
scheme assets and liabilities . Therefore, the schemes are 
accounted for as though they are defined contribution 
schemes: the cost to the Trust is taken as equal to the 
employer’s pension contributions payable to the scheme for 
the accounting period . These contributions are charged to 
operating expenses as they become due .
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Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements 
are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement 
is due to ill-health . The full amount of the liability for the 
additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the 
time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of 
the method of payment .

1.8 Expenditure on goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and 
to the extent that they have been received, regardless of 
whether payment has been made, and is measured at the fair 
value of those goods and services . Expenditure is recognised 
in operating expenses except where it results in the creation 
of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment .

1.9 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative 
purposes

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to,  
or service potential be provided to, the Trust

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably

• the item has cost of at least £5,000

• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least 
£5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, 
where the assets are functionally interdependent, had 
broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated 
to have similar disposal dates and are under single 
managerial control, or

• items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up 
cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 
individual or collective cost .

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying 
amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future 
economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost 
incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the 
enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably . 
Other expenditure that does not generate additional future 
economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and 
maintenance is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income in the period in which it is incurred .

Measurement
Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured 
initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable 
to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management .

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation . Assets 
which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie 
operational assets used to deliver either front line services 
or back office functions) are measured at their current value 
in existing use . Assets that were most recently held for their 
service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them 
back into use are measured at fair value where there are no 
restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do 
not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets 
held for sale .

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed 
with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are not 
materially different from those that would be determined at 
the end of the reporting period . Current values in existing use 
are determined as follows:

• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for 
existing use .

• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost on  
a modern equivalent asset basis .

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is 
interpreted as the present value of the asset’s remaining 
service potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to 
the cost of replacing that service potential . Specialised assets 
are therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost 
(DRC) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis . An MEA 
basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern 
asset of equivalent capacity and location requirements of 
the services being provided . Assets held at depreciated 
replacement cost have been valued on an alternative site basis 
where this would meet the location requirements .

Valuation guidance issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered 
Surveyors states that valuations are performed net of VAT 
where the VAT is recoverable by the entity . This basis has been 
applied to the Trust’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme 
where the construction is completed by a special purpose 
vehicle and the costs have recoverable VAT for the Trust .

Properties in the course of construction for service or 
administration purposes are carried at cost, less any 
impairment loss, but are revalued when brought into use . 
Cost includes professional fees .

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, 
and plant and machinery that are held for operational use 
are valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets 
have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not 
considered to be materially different from current value in 
existing use .

Properties in the course of construction for service or 
administration purposes are carried at cost, less any 
impairment loss, but are revalued when brought into use . 
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Cost includes professional fees .

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, 
and plant and machinery that are held for operational use 
are valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets 
have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not 
considered to be materially different from current value in 
existing use .

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with 
the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits . 
Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not 
depreciated . Assets in the course of construction are not 
depreciated until the asset is brought into use .

Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, 
except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a 
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised 
in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 
operating expenditure .

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve 
to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset 
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses .

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are 
reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an 
item of ‘other comprehensive income’ .

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from 
a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service 
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses . A 
compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve 
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to 
the lower of the impairment charged to operating expenses 
and the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that 
asset before the impairment .

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of 
economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and 
to the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss 
is reversed . Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure 
to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it 
would have had if the impairment had never been recognised .

Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation 
reserve . Where, at the time of the original impairment, a 
transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income 
and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to 
the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is 
recognised .

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses . Reversals 
of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains .

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a 
service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are 
accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the 
Trust . In accordance with HM Treasury’s FReM, the underlying 
assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, 
together with an equivalent liability . Subsequently, the assets 
are accounted for as property, plant and equipment .

The annual contract payments are apportioned between 
the repayment of the liability, a finance cost, the charges for 
services and lifecycle replacement of asset components, which 
are capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital 
expenditure . The element of the annual unitary payment 
increase due to cumulative indexation is treated as contingent 
rent and is expensed as incurred .

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and 
the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income .

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment
Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the 
remaining life of an asset . The range of useful lives are shown 
in the table below:

Min life 
Years

Max life 
Years

Buildings 60 90

Plant & machinery 3 25

Information technology 5 10

Other property, plant and equipment 5 26

1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at current cost . This is considered to be 
a reasonable approximation to determine fair value due to the 
high turnover of stocks .

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial 
institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more 
than 24 hours . Cash equivalents are investments that mature 
in three months or less from the date of acquisition and 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
insignificant risk of change in value .

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 
are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash 
management . Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded 
at current values .
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1.12 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, 
and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation 
to pay cash or another financial instrument . The GAM 
expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and 
regulations which give rise to arrangements that in all other 
respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise 
to transactions classified as a tax by ONS .

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such 
as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance 
with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements 
and are recognised when, and to the extent which, 
performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods 
or services is made .

Classification and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured 
at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction 
costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair 
value through income and expenditure . Fair value is taken as 
the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to 
quoted market prices or valuation techniques .

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 
are those held with the objective of collecting contractual 
cash flows and where cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest . This includes cash equivalents, contract 
and other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and 
obligations under PFI arrangements and loans payable . All of 
the Trust’s financial assets and financial liabilities are classified 
on this basis .

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets) . 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised 
cost of a financial liability .

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
a financing income or expense . In the case of DHSC loans 
held, the effective interest rate is the nominal rate of interest 
charged on the loan .

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts 
payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial 
Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities .

De-recognition
Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights 
to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the 
Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership .

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is 
discharged, cancelled or expires .

1.13 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the 
lessee . All other leases are classified as operating leases . All 
Trust leases are operating leases .

The Trust as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term . Lease incentives 
are recognised initially in other liabilities on the statement of 
financial position and subsequently as a reduction of rentals 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term .

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred .

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is 
separated from the building component and the classification 
for each is assessed separately .

The Trust as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease . Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term .

1.14 Provisions
The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal 
or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for 
which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of 
cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount . The amount recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources 
required to settle the obligation . Where the effect of the time 
value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash 
flows are discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rates . Early 
retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use 
the HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of minus 0 .5% in real 
terms .

Clinical negligence costs
NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which 
the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, 
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims . 
Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all 
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clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the 
Trust . The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried 
by NHS Resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed in the 
provisions note but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts .

Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and 
the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme . Both are risk pooling 
schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution 
to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the 
costs of claims arising . The annual membership contributions, 
and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims are 
charged to operating expenses when the liability arises .

1.15 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity 
finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the 
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation . 
HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial 
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32 .

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require 
repayments of PDC from, the Trust . PDC is recorded at the 
value received .

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, 
is payable as public dividend capital dividend . The charge is 
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3 .5%) 
on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the 
financial year . Relevant net assets are calculated as the value 
of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for:

(i) donated assets,

(ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government 
Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) 
deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts 
that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and

(iii) the receivable associated with the PSF incentive and PSF 
bonus, and

(iv) for 2019-20, the net book value of assets purchased in 
response to COVID 19 .

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the DHSC 
(as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated 
on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the 
‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts . The dividend thus 
calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets 
occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts .

1.16 Value added tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of 
VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax 
on purchases is not recoverable . Irrecoverable VAT is charged 
to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 
capitalised purchase cost of non-current assets . Where output 
tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are 
stated net of VAT .

1.17 Losses and special payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would 
not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health 
service or passed legislation . By their nature they are items 
that ideally should not arise . They are therefore subject to 
special control procedures compared with the generality of 
payments . They are divided into different categories, which 
govern the way that individual cases are handled . Losses 
and special payments are charged to the relevant functional 
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis .

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from 
the losses and compensations register which reports on an 
accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses .

1.18 Charitable funds
Under the provisions of IAS27 ‘Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements’, those Charitable Funds that fall under 
common control with NHS bodies are consolidated within the 
entity’s financial statements . The Trust has not consolidated 
the accounts of the ELHT&Me, the charity for which the Trust 
is the corporate trustee, on the basis of immateriality .

1.19 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical 
substance which are capable of being sold separately from 
the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual 
or other legal rights . They are recognised only where it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably .

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware is 
capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and 
equipment . Software which is not integral to the operation of 
hardware is capitalised as an intangible asset .

Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising 
all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and 
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management . Subsequently 
intangible assets are measured at depreciated historic cost 
which is considered to be a reasonable approximation to 
determine fair value due to their low useful asset lives .

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful 
lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of 
economic or service delivery benefits .

Useful lives of intangible assets
Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the 
remaining life of an asset, which range from 1 to 10 years .
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1.20 Early adoption of standards, amendments 
and interpretations
No new accounting standards or revisions to existing 
standards have been adopted early in 2019-20 .

1.21 Standards, amendments and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective or adopted
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and 
other interpretations and is applicable in the public sector 
for periods beginning 1 April 2021 . The standard provides a 
single accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use 
asset and obligation in the statement of financial position for 
most leases: some leases are exempt through application of 
practical expedients explained below . For those recognised in 
the statement of financial position the standard also requires 
the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific circumstances 
after the commencement of the lease term . For lessors, the 
distinction between operating and finance leases will remain 
and the accounting will be largely unchanged .

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 
and IFRIC 4 . The Trust will apply this definition to new leases 
only and will grandfather its assessments made under the old 
standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease .

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the Trust will apply 
the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of 

initially applying the standard recognised in the income and 
expenditure reserve at that date . For existing operating leases 
with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an 
underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will 
be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments 
discounted on transition at the Trust’s incremental borrowing 
rate . The Trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be a rate 
defined by HM Treasury . Currently this rate is 1 .27% but this 
may change between now and adoption of the standard . The 
related right of use asset will be measured equal to the lease 
liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments . 
No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2021 for existing 
finance leases .

For leases commencing in 2021-22, the Trust will not 
recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term 
leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low 
value assets (less than £5,000) . Right of use assets will be 
subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned 
assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term .

HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 
in the UK public sector to 1 April 2021 on 19 March 2020 . 
Due to the need to reassess lease calculations, together 
with uncertainty on expected leasing activity in from April 
2021 and beyond, a quantification of the expected impact of 
applying the standard in 2021-22 is currently impracticable .
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2. Income from patient care activities

2.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature)

2019-20 
£000s

Restated 2018-19 
£000s

Acute services

Elective income 63,302 61,019

Non-elective income 142,066 121,063

First outpatient income 40,041 45,168

Follow up outpatient income 29,608 21,075

A&E income 25,139 21,645

High cost drugs income from Commissioners* 29,538 30,053

Other NHS clinical income 108,003 106,813

Community services

Income from Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England 43,181 41,560

All trusts

AfC pay award central funding** 0 5,102

Additional pension contribution central funding *** 14,668 0

Other clinical income 22,404 14,972

Total income from patient care activities 517,950 468,470

* Comparatives have been restated to separately identify high cost drugs income from Commissioners, previously included within other NHS clinical income .

** Additional costs of the Agenda for Change pay reform in 2018-19 received central funding . From 2019-20 this funding is incorporated into the National tariff .

*** The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14 .3% to 20 .6% (excluding administration charge) from 1 April 2019 . For 2019-20, the Trust continued 
to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers’ behalf . The full cost and related funding have been 
recognised in these accounts .

2.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2019-20 
£000s

Restated 2018-19 
£000s

NHS England 73,661 48,627

Clinical Commissioning Groups 438,568 409,821

Department of Health and Social Care 0 5,102

Other NHS bodies 1,111 1,195

Injury costs recovery 2,259 1,970

Other 2,351 1,755

Total income from patient care activities 517,950 468,470

Other income from patient care activities includes £0 .7m from local authorities (2018-19: £0 .7m), which was previously 
separately disclosed, £0 .2m from private patients (2018-19: £0 .2m) and £0 .4m from overseas visitors (2018-19: £0 .3m) .

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income .
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3. Other operating income
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Other operating income from contracts with customers:

Research and development 4,076 1,481

Education and training 16,692 13,854

Non-patient care services to other bodies 10,095 10,848

Provider sustainability fund / Marginal rate emergency tariff income (PSF/MRET) 12,632 11,911

Other contract operating income 4,772 5,000

Other non-contract operating income 1,239 875

Total other operating income 49,506 43,969

Total operating income 567,456 512,439

PSF/MRET income includes a core allocation of £12 .6m (2018-19: £5 .6m) and a nil incentive allocation (2018-19: £6 .3m) for 
achieving the annual financial control total set by NHS England and NHS Improvement .

Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services . Revenue from the sale of goods is immaterial .

4. Operating expenses
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 4,478 4,436

Staff and executive directors costs – refer to note 8 .1 for further detail 385,787 345,429

Supplies and services – clinical 33,717 34,227

Supplies and services – general 7,484 7,472

Drugs costs 42,093 40,183

Establishment 6,899 6,505

Business rates paid to local authorities 2,453 3,066

Premises – other 12,331 11,960

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9,476 8,906

Amortisation on intangible assets 1,649 1,528

Net impairments 38,866 (1,682)

Clinical negligence premium 16,097 17,838

Education and training 2,822 950

Rentals under operating leases 9,239 8,197

PFI charges to operating expenditure 8,918 8,046

Other operating expenses 7,080 4,776

Total operating expenses 589,389 501,837

Other operating expenses include £1 .0m for outsourced financial services (2018-19: £1 .0m) and £1 .0m for transport services 
(2018-19: £1 .0m) .
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5. External audit
Audit fees payable to the external auditor for the Trust’s statutory audit were £67,920, inclusive of VAT (2018-19: £57,120) . 
Other auditor remuneration in 2019-20 was nil (2018-19: £18,942) .

The limitation on the auditor’s liability for external audit work is £1 .0m (2018-19: £1 .0m) .

6. Impairment of assets
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting 
from:

Changes in market price 38,866 (1,682)

Other 0 0

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 38,866 (1,682)

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 9,891 364

Total net impairments 48,757 (1,318)

For 2019-20, net impairments predominantly relate to the valuations of land and buildings provided by Cushman & Wakefield, 
the Trust’s external valuer . Net impairments of £27 .2m were charged to operating expenses for the valuation as at the start of 
the financial year, with £9 .4m of impairments charged to the revaluation reserve .

To ensure the carrying amount of land and buildings does not differ materially from its fair value at 31 March 2020, a further 
£11 .7m of net impairments was charged to operating expenses and a further £0 .5m of impairments charged to the revaluation 
reserve to reflect the year end valuation .

7. Operating leases

Trust as lessee

Property 
£000s

Other 
£000s

2019-20 
Total 
£000s

2018-19 
Total 

£000s

Operating lease expense

Minimum lease payments 5,570 3,669 9,239 8,197

Total 5,570 3,669 9,239 8,197

Future minimum lease payments due:

– not later than one year 0 2,436 2,436 2,300

– later than one year and not later than five years 0 6,076 6,076 6,436

– later than five years 0 0 0 352

Total 0 8,512 8,512 9,088

Property related lease arrangements predominantly relate to the occupation of properties by the Trust’s community based 
services, where there is no future commitment . Total future minimum lease payments include £4 .4m relating to two managed 
equipment contracts for Pathology services .
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Trust as lessor

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Operating lease revenue

Minimum lease receipts 244 306

Total 244 306

Future minimum lease receipts due:

– not later than one year 238 238

– later than one year and not later than five years 956 955

– later than five years 26,242 26,482

Total 27,436 27,675

Future minimum lease receipts relates to the long term arrangement with Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust for their use of 
property on the Royal Blackburn Teaching Hospital site .

8. Employee benefits

8.1 Employee benefits

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Salaries and wages 293,513 271,648

Social security costs 30,157 28,053

Apprenticeship levy 1,477 1,426

Employer contributions to NHS Pensions 33,687 31,668

Employer contributions to NHS Pensions paid by NHSE on behalf of Trust 14,668 0

Other costs 83 84

Temporary agency staff 12,886 13,196

Total staff costs 386,471 346,075

Employee costs capitalised 684 646

Total staff costs excluding capitalised costs 385,787 345,429

8.2 Retirements due to ill-health
During 2019-20 there were 2 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2018-19: 5 early retirements) . 
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £0 .2m (2018-19: £0 .1m) .

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by NHS Pensions .

8.3 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes . Details of the benefits payable and 
rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www .nhsbsa .nhs .uk/pensions . Both are unfunded defined 
benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State 
for Health and Social Care in England and Wales . They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities . Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions 
payable to that scheme for the accounting period .

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that 
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would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that ‘the period between formal 
valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years’ . An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) 
as at the end of the reporting period . This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction 
with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust 
figures for financial reporting purposes . The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2020, is based on valuation data as 
at 31 March 2019, updated to 31 March 2020 with summary global member and accounting data . In undertaking this actuarial 
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM 
Treasury have also been used .

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the 
annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts . These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually . 
Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office .

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into 
account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers .

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016 . The results of this 
valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20 .6%, and the Scheme Regulations were amended 
accordingly .

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set following the 
2012 valuation . Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a pause to that part 
of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process .

9. Finance expenses
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Interest expenses

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 141 44

Main finance costs on PFI obligations 4,057 4,231

Contingent finance costs on PFI obligations 4,643 4,788

Total interest expenses 8,841 9,063

Provisions – unwinding of discount 10 9

Total finance expenses 8,851 9,072
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10. Better Payment Practice code
2019-20 2018-19

Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS payables

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 96,394 299,344 97,918 225,709

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 94,812 293,960 94,148 216,635

Percentage of non-NHS invoices paid within target 98.4% 98.2% 96 .1% 96 .0%

NHS payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 2,693 27,676 2,760 26,367

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,597 27,412 2,631 25,693

Percentage of NHS invoices paid within target 96.4% 99.0% 95 .3% 97 .4%

The ‘Better payment practice code’ requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of 
receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later .

11. Intangible assets
All intangible assets are purchased software licences .

12. Property, plant and equipment

12.1 Property, plant and equipment valuation information
For 2019-20, Cushman & Wakefield, the Trust’s external valuer, have provided a full valuation of land and buildings as at 
31 March 2020 on an alternative site valuation basis, as well as an updated valuation as at 1 April 2019, both of which are 
reflected in the financial statements . The value of these assets as at the start of the year, which has been used as the basis for 
calculating their depreciation charge, fell by 16 .6% with net impairments of £27 .2m charged to operating expenses and £8 .7m 
of net revaluation losses charged to the revaluation reserve .

To ensure the carrying amount of land and buildings does not differ materially from its fair value at 31 March 2020, a further 
£11 .7m of net impairments was charged to operating expenses and a further £0 .5m of net revaluations losses charged to the 
revaluation reserve to reflect the year end valuation . These revaluation adjustments further reduced the value of these assets by 
6 .3% .
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13. Inventories
31 March 2020 

£000s
31 March 2019 

£000s

Drugs 2,391 2,078

Consumables 5,728 3,135

Energy 192 207

Total 8,311 5,420

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £79 .3m (2018-19: £76 .8m) .

Restrictions on movement in the United Kingdom in March 2020 meant that the Trust’s auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, was 
unable to attend year end inventory counts to complete procedures required by auditing standards . While the auditor has issued 
a qualified opinion, as a result, we are aware that a number of trusts in the country are affected by the same issue in 2019-20 
and the Trust is satisfied that its inventory balance is presented fairly in all material respects .

14. Receivables

31 March 2020 
£000s

Restated  
31 March 2019 

£000s

Contract receivables 27,706 22,671

Allowance for impaired contract receivables (940) (818)

Prepayments 2,391 6,978

VAT receivable 1,376 1,507

PDC dividend receivable 1,396 83

Other receivables 569 534

Total – current 32,498 30,955

Comparatives have been restated to separately disclose the PDC dividend receivable .

In total, £21 .9m of current receivables are receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies (31 March 2019: £17 .6m)

Non-current receivables include £6 .2m of PFI lifecycle prepayments, which were previously misclassified as current receivables 
(31 March 2019: £4 .3m) . Comparatives have not been restated on materiality grounds .

15. Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 March 2020, cash and cash equivalents of £8 .5m (31 March 2019: £12 .1m) were almost entirely represented by cash 
deposited with the Governing Banking Service with the balance of less than £0 .1m represented by cash in hand (31 March 
2019: less than £0 .1m) .
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16. Trade and other payables – current
31 March 2020 

£000s
31 March 2019 

£000s

Trade payables 3,845 3,585

Capital payables 7,200 4,524

Accruals 18,679 15,739

Social security costs 4,232 3,842

Other taxes payable 3,166 2,937

NHS Pension contributions payable 4,730 4,285

Other payables 1,893 4,356

Total 43,745 39,268

In total, £5 .3m of current trade and other payables are payable to NHS and DHSC group bodies (31 March 2019 £4 .2m) .

17. Borrowings
Current Non-current

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

DHSC loans 7,965 1,772 800 8,748

Obligations under PFI contracts 3,786 3,228 97,643 101,429

Total 11,751 5,000 98,443 110,177

17.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

DHSC loans 
£000s

PFI schemes 
£000s

Total 
£000s

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 10,520 104,657 115,177

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows – payments and receipts of principal (1,752) (3,228) (4,980)

Financing cash flows – payments of interest (144) (4,057) (4,201)

Non-cash movements:

Application of effective interest rate 141 4,057 4,198

Carrying value at 31 March 2020 8,765 101,429 110,194
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17.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

DHSC loans 
£000s

PFI schemes 
£000s

Total 
£000s

Carrying value at 1 April 2018 1,400 108,445 109,845

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 2 0 2

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows – payments and receipts of principal 9,100 (3,788) 5,312

Financing cash flows – payments of interest (26) (4,231) (4,257)

Non-cash movements:

Application of effective interest rate 44 4,231 4,275

Carrying value at 31 March 2019 10,520 104,657 115,177

18. Provisions

18.1 Provisions

Pensions 
£000s

Other 
£000s

Total 
£000s

Balance at 1 April 2019 3,604 261 3,865

Change in the discount rate 197 0 197

Arising during the year 143 1,155 1,298

Utilised during the year (340) (39) (379)

Reversed unused (289) (195) (484)

Unwinding of discount 10 0 10

Balance at 31 March 2020 3,325 1,182 4,507

Expected timing of cash flows: £000s £000s £000s

Not later than one year 268 290 558

Later than one year but not later than five years 1,071 0 1,071

Later than five years 1,986 0 1,986

Balance at 31 March 2019 3,325 290 3,615

18.2 Clinical negligence liabilities
At 31 March 2020, £349 .3m was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities relating to 
the Trust (31 March 2019 £310 .0m) .
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19. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes
The Trust has two separate PFI schemes in operation on each of its main sites as detailed below:

Royal Blackburn Hospital – Single Site
This scheme has provided a single hospital site within the Blackburn locality and has been operational since July 2006 .  
The contract term is 35 years .

Burnley General Hospital – Phase 5
The phase 5 unit on the Burnley General site has been in operation since May 2006 and accommodates hospital facilities 
including elective care, radiology, outpatients and renal services . The contract term is 30 years .

The contracts in place for these schemes are for the construction and provision of healthcare facilities . At the end of the 
agreement term the sites will revert back to the ownership of the Trust without the need for further payments . Both contracts 
include options for early termination where there has been a event of default by the Project Company . During the term of the 
contracts there is provision for planned replacement at regular intervals of components included in these facilities . This ensures 
that the assets are maintained in the required condition throughout the life of the contract . The Trust is charged for these 
lifecycle costs through the unitary payments although the charges remain fixed irrespective of the actual pattern of lifecycle 
costs incurred by the operators . Both contracts include provision for performance and availability deductions against the unitary 
charge . Unitary charges are subject to an annual inflation uplift which is linked to the published retail price index .

Under IFRIC 12, the assets are treated as assets of the Trust; the substance of the contracts is that the Trust has a finance lease 
and the payments made comprise two elements – imputed finance lease charges and service charges . As well as provision of 
the infrastructure assets, the contract for the Blackburn PFI also includes facilities management provision both for the PFI asset 
and parts of the wider estate, and managed equipment services . The contract for the Burnley PFI scheme also includes facilities 
management but just for the PFI asset .

19.1 Imputed ‘finance lease’ obligations
The Trust has the following obligations in respect of the finance lease element of on-Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) PFI 
schemes:

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

Gross PFI obligations of which are due 149,383 156,726

– not later than one year 7,728 7,286

– later than one year and not later than five years 30,478 29,946

– later than five years 111,177 119,494

Finance charges allocated to future periods (47,954) (52,069)

Net PFI obligations of which are due 101,429 104,657

– not later than one year 3,786 3,228

– later than one year and not later than five years 16,047 14,931

– later than five years 81,596 86,498
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19.2 Total on-SoFP PFI arrangement commitments
The Trust’s total future obligations under these on-SoFP PFI schemes are as follows:

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

Total future payments committed in respect of PFI arrangements 621,159 645,569

– not later than one year 24,740 24,147

– later than one year and not later than five years 105,301 102,777

– later than five years 491,118 518,645

19.3 Analysis of amounts payable to PFI operator
The Trust’s total future obligations under these on-SoFP PFI schemes are as follows:

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Unitary payment payable to PFI operator 24,147 23,594

Consisting of:

– Interest charge 4,057 4,231

– Repayment of finance lease liability 3,228 3,788

– Service element and other charges to operating expenditure 6,978 6,789

– Lifecycle costs 5,241 3,998

– Contingent rent 4,643 4,788

Other amounts paid to operator due to a commitment under the 
service concession contract but not part of the unitary payment 943 657

Total amount paid to service concession operator 25,090 24,251

20. External financing
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Cash flow financing (from SOCF) 12,234 13,484

External financing requirement 12,234 13,484

External Financing Limit 18,170 23,390

Underspend against the External Financing Limit 5,936 9,906

The Trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend .
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21. Capital Resource Limit
2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Gross capital expenditure

Property, plant and equipment 19,567 16,259

Intangible assets 3,359 2,895

Total gross capital expenditure 22,926 19,154

Less: disposals of property, plant and equipment 0 (240)

Less: donated capital additions (325) (371)

Charge against the Capital Resource Limit 22,601 18,543

Capital Resource Limit 24,605 21,118

Underspend against the Capital Resource Limit 2,004 2,575

The Trust is given a Capital Resource Limit which it is not permitted to exceed .
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22. Breakeven duty

22.1 Breakeven duty – financial performance

2019-20 
£000s

2018-19 
£000s

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (control total basis) 5,111 (3,887)

Add back income for impact of 2018-19 post-accounts PSF reallocation 369 0

Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / (deficit) 5,480 (3,887)

22.2 Breakeven duty – rolling assessment

Total  
(2003-04- 
2008-09)

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance 380 287 723 3,025 8,011 6,600

Breakeven duty cumulative position 380 667 1,390 4,415 12,426 19,026

Operating income 1,677,587 336,952 342,027 389,797 404,986 420,579

Cumulative breakeven position as  
a percentage of operating income 0 .20% 0 .41% 1 .13% 3 .07% 4 .52%

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance 1,342 7,887 3,068 3,402 (3,887) 5,480

Breakeven duty cumulative position 20,368 28,255 31,323 34,725 30,838 36,318

Operating income 435,107 466,767 477,519 495,471 512,439 567,456

Cumulative breakeven position as  
a percentage of operating income 4 .68% 6 .05% 6 .56% 7 .01% 6 .02% 6 .40%

The application of breakeven duty means that if a cumulative surplus or deficit is reported (greater than a materiality threshold 
of 0 .5% of operating income), it should be recovered within the subsequent two financial years . NHS England and NHS 
Improvement (NHSEI) has provided guidance that the first year for consideration for the breakeven duty should be 2009-10 .

While the cumulative breakeven position of 6 .4% is above the 0 .5% threshold, NHSEI uses annual financial control totals for 
NHS Trusts as the primary mechanism for financial control . For 2019-20, the Trust was set a control total of a £7 .0m deficit, 
excluding its Provider Sustainability Fund allocation, which has been met, subject to an allowance made for the impact of the 
change in discount rate applied to the calculation of post-employment benefit provisions .
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23. Financial instruments
23.1 Financial instruments – financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in 
creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities . Because of the continuing service provider relationship 
that the Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the way those CCGs are financed, the Trust is not exposed 
to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities . Financial instruments also play a much more limited role in creating 
or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies . As an NHS Trust, the Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest 
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities .

Treasury management operations are carried out by the Finance Department, within parameters defined formally within the 
Trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Trust Board . Treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust’s 
internal auditors .

23.1 Financial instruments – financial risk management (continued)
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with no overseas operations . As a consequence, the great majority of 
transactions, assets and liabilities are UK and sterling based meaning the Trust has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations .

Interest rate risk
The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England and NHS 
Improvement (NHSEI) . Borrowings are typically made for up to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, with interest 
fixed for the life of the loan at the National Loans Fund rate . The Trust also borrowed from Government in 2019-20 to ensure it can 
continue to meet its financial obligations while maintaining the minimum cash balance set by NHSEI of £2 .5 million . This borrowing 
is repayable in three years with interest fixed at 1 .5% . The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations .

Credit risk
Since the majority of income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk . The 
maximum exposures are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note .

Liquidity risk
Operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCGs financed from resources voted annually by Parliament . The Trust also 
finances its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its capital resource limit . As a result, the Trust is not exposed to 
significant liquidity risks .

23.2 Financial instruments – carrying value

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

Financial assets held at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 28,200 23,880

Cash and cash equivalents 8,490 12,082

Total 36,690 35,962

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 36,347 29,647

Obligations under PFI contracts 101,429 104,657

Other borrowings 8,765 10,520

Total 146,541 144,824

The fair value of financial instruments is not considered to differ from their carrying values .
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23.3 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 2020 
£000s

31 March 2019 
£000s

In one year or less 48,098 34,647

In more than one year but not more than two years 3,003 3,985

In more than two years but not more than five years 13,844 19,494

In more than five years 81,596 86,698

Total 146,541 144,824

24. Related party transactions
During the year none of the Trust Board members or members of the key management staff, or parties related to any of them, 
has undertaken any material transactions with East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust .

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party . During the year East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust 
has had a significant number of material transactions with the Department and with other entities for which the Department is 
regarded as the parent department . Those entities where the value of transactions exceeds £5 .0m, ordered alphabetically, are:

• Community Health Partnerships

• Health Education England

• Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• NHS Blackburn with Darwen Clinical Commissioning Group

• NHS East Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group

• NHS England

• NHS Resolution

In addition, the Trust has had a number of notable transactions with other government departments and other central 
government bodies . Most of these transactions have been with Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (HMRC) and the National 
Health Service Pension Scheme .

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from ELHT&ME, the charity for which the Trust is the corporate 
trustee . The financial statements of the Charity have not been consolidated within the financial statements of the Trust on 
the basis of immateriality, but the latest set of audited accounts of the Charity, relate to the year ended 31 March 2019 and 
are available on request from Trust Headquarters or via the Charity Comission website (https://www .gov .uk/government/
organisations/charity-commission) .

The Trust provides financial and administrative support to the Charity for which it is reimbursed . In 2019-20 this reimbursement 
amounted to £0 .1m (2018-19 £0 .1m) .

25. Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Trust had £7 .8m of contractual capital commitments (31 March 2019: £5 .3m), £5 .0m of which relates 
to the Phase 6 development on the Royal Blackburn Teaching Hospital site .
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26. Losses and special payments
2019-20 2018-19

Total value 
of cases 
£000s

Total 
number of 

cases

Total value of 
cases 
£000s

Total number 
of cases

Losses 17 303 114 59

Special payments 68 53 103 75

Total losses and special payments 85 356 217 134

27. Events after the end of the reporting period
On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) and NHS England and NHS Improvement announced 
reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 2020-21 financial year . During 2020-21, existing DHSC interim revenue and capital loans 
as at 31 March 2020 will be extinguished and replaced with the issue of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) to allow the repayment . 
Given this relates to liabilities that existed at 31 March 2020, DHSC has updated its Group Accounting Manual to advise this is 
considered an adjusting event after the reporting period for providers . Outstanding interim loans totalling £7 .7m as at 31 March 
2020 in these financial statements have been classified as current as they will be repayable within 12 months .
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Glossary
Accruals basis
Under the accruals concept, expenses 
are recognised when incurred, not 
when the cash is actually paid out, and 
income is recognised when it is earned, 
not when the cash is actually received .

AGM
Annual General Meeting

Annual Governance Statement
A statement about the controls the NHS 
Trust has in place to manage risk .

Amortisation
The term used for depreciation of 
intangible assets – an example is the 
annual charge in respect of some 
computer software .

Annual accounts
Documents prepared by the NHS Trust 
to show its financial position . Detailed 
requirements for the annual accounts 
are set out in the Group Accounting 
Manual, published by the Department 
of Health and Social Care .

Annual report
A document produced by the NHS  
Trust, which summarises the NHS  
Trust’s performance during the year  
and includes the annual accounts .

Asset
Something the NHS Trust owns – for 
example a building, some cash, or an 
amount of money owed to it .

Audit Opinion
The auditor’s opinion on whether the 
NHS Trust’s accounts show a true and 
fair view of its financial affairs . If the 
auditors are satisfied with the accounts, 

they will issue an unqualified audit 
opinion .

Board Assurance Framework/
BAF
The main document that details the 
strategic risks of the Trust .

Breakeven
An NHS Trust has achieved breakeven  
if its income is greater than or equal  
to its expenditure .

Capital Resource Limit
An expenditure limit set by the 
Department of Health and Social Care 
for each NHS organisation, limiting the 
amount that may be spent on capital 
items .

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand (petty cash) 
and cash at the bank . Cash equivalents 
are any other deposits that can be 
converted to cash straightaway .

Clinical Commissioning Group
The body responsible for commissioning 
all types of healthcare services across a 
specific locality .

Code of Audit Practice
A document issued by the National 
Audit Office and approved by 
parliament, which sets out how audits 
for the NHS Trust must be conducted .

Contingent asset or liability
An asset or liability which is too 
uncertain to be included in the 
accounts .

DTOC
Delayed Transfer of Care

EPRR
Emergency Preparedness, Resilience 
and Response . The Civil Contingencies 
Act (2004) required NHS organisations 
to show that they can deal with such 
incidents whilst maintaining services . 

Group Accounting Manual
An annual publication from the 
Department of Health and Social 
Care which sets out the detailed 
requirements for the NHS Trust 
accounts .

Intangible asset
An asset that is without substance,  
for example, computer software .

International Financial 
Reporting Standards
The accounting standards that the NHS 
has adopted from April 2009 .

International Standards on 
Auditing (United Kingdom and 
Ireland)
The professional standards external 
auditors must comply with when 
carrying out audit .

Inventories
Stock, such as clinical supplies .
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IR35
IR35 legislation, also known as 
‘intermediaries legislation’ is a set of 
rules that aid in the determination 
of the tax and national insurance 
that a candidate working through an 
intermediary should pay, based on the 
substance of that working arrangement .

Non-current asset or liability
An asset or liability the NHS Trust 
expects to hold for more than one year .

Non-Executive Director
Non-executive directors are members 
of the NHS Trust Board but do not 
have any involvement in day-to-day 
management of the NHS Trust . They 
provide the board with independent 
challenge and scrutiny .

Operating lease
An arrangement whereby the party 
releasing the asset is paying for the 
provision of a service (the use of the 
asset) rather than exclusive use of  
the asset .

Payables
Amounts the NHS Trust owes .

Primary Statements
The four main statements that 
make up the accounts: Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Financial Position, Statement of 
Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows .

Private Finance Initiative/PFI
A way of funding a major capital 
investment, without immediate recourse 
to the public purse . Private consortia, 
usually involving large construction 
firms, are contracted to design, build, 

and in some cases manage new 
projects . Contracts typically last for 30 
years, during which time the building is 
leased by the NHS Trust .

Public Dividend Capital
Taxpayers equity or the tax payers 
stake in the NHS Trust, arising from the 
Government’s original investment in NHS 
trusts, when they were first created .

Receivables
Amount owed to the NHS Trust .

Remuneration Report
The part of the annual report that 
discloses senior officers’ salary and 
pensions information .

Reserves
Reserves represent the increase in 
overall value of the NHS Trust since it 
was first created .

SAFER
A patient flow bundle from NHS 
Improvement which is based around 
five principles, they are: Senior review, 
All patients, Flow, Early discharge and 
Review .

Senior Information Risk Owner/
SIRO
The establishment of the role of a SIRO 
within NHS organisations is one of 
several NHS Information Governance 
(IG) measures needed to strengthen 
information assurance controls for NHS 
information assets .

Sentinal Stroke Audit 
Programme/SSNAP
The Sentinal Stroke Audit Programme 
is the single source of stroke data in 
England, Wales and Northern Ireland .

Statement of Cash Flows
This shows cash flows in and out of the 
NHS Trust during the period .

Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers’ Equity
One of the primary statements – it 
shows the changes in reserves and 
public dividend capital in the period .

Statement of Comprehensive 
Income
The income and expenditure account, 
and the public sector equivalent of the 
profit and loss account . It shows what 
income has been earned in the year, 
what expenditure has been incurred 
and hence the surplus or deficit for the 
year .

Statement of Financial Position
Year-end statement prepared by all 
public and private sector organisations, 
which shows the net assets controlled 
by the organisation and how these have 
been funded . It is also known as the 
balance sheet .

Those Charged with 
Governance
Auditors terminology for those people 
who are responsible for the governance 
of the NHS Trust, usually the Audit 
Committee .

True and fair
It is the aim of the accounts to show 
a true and fair view of the NHS Trust 
financial position . In other words, they 
should faithfully represent what has 
happened in practice .

Vital Signs
An NHSI improvement programme .
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This document is available in a variety of formats and languages. 
Please contact Trust Headquarters for more details: 

East Lancashire Hospitals NHS Trust 
Royal Blackburn Teaching Hospital, Haslingden Road, Blackburn 

BB2 3HH

Tel: 01254 732801


